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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& D

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's record revenue
was approximately HK$88 million (2014: HK$228 million). The Group's
revenue is contributed from oil production segment and supply of
electricity and heat segment.

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2015 was approximately HK$493 million (2014: HK$674
million). The loss of the Group has decreased by approximately HK$228
million as compared to the last corresponding year.

ELECTRICITY AND HEAT BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, Shanxi Zhong Kai Group
Lingshi Heat and Power Company Limited (“Shanxi Zhong Kai Group
Lingshi”), in which the Group owns a 60% equity interest, generated
revenue of approximately HK$47 million (2014: HK$126 million), a
decrease of approximately 63% as compared to the last corresponding
year. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease in
electricity consumption and there was no supply of heat energy to
Central Heat Transmit Station of Lingshi Country, the local government
authority which is the largest customer of our heat energy supply,
since April 2015. In the second half of 2015, due to the Notice as
further explained below, the supply of electricity to both government
authority and local customers continued but with a smaller scale. It
is expected that such small scale of supply of electricity will continue
until the negotiation with the local government comes to a conclusion
or agreement.

The supply of electricity and heat segment recorded a loss of
approximately HK$90 million (2014: HK$272 million). The decrease in
loss was mainly due to decrease in impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment and prepaid land lease payments amount by HK$127
million and HK$11 million respectively.

Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi received a notice issued by the
People’s Government of Lingshi County (the “Lingshi Government”)
dated 23 April 2015 (the “Notice”). In the Notice, the Lingshi
Government ordered Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi to shut down the
operations of its 2 sets of power generating units (the “Power Plant”)
before 30 June 2015, for the purposes of anti-pollution and emission
reduction (the “Shutdown”).

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

The Company has instructed the management of Shanxi Zhong Kai
Group Lingshi and the legal advisers in the PRC to negotiate with the
Lingshi Government and to advise the Company on the implications
arising from the Shutdown. In the meantime, the Company has also
been in discussions with [IFAF S EZESEEGR AT (Shanxi Zhong
Kai Group Limited) (the “JV Partner”), our 40% joint venture partner
in Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi, as to the appropriate actions in
response to the Notice. These negotiations and discussions are ongoing
and the Company has yet to come to a conclusion or agreement with
the JV Partner and the Lingshi Government.

OIL BUSINESS

In 2015, global economic recovery was slow and the growth rate of
the Chinese economy has slowed down. The demand in the petroleum
market was weak and the international crude oil price continued to
fluctuate at a low level. In the face of the complicated and harsh
economic environment, the Group focused on lowering the costs and
enhancing efficiency. The operating results before the impairment
losses of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment for the
year decreased substantially as compared with last year.

According to our original planning, we expected that in 2015 we
would be able to drill 30 production wells and extract approximately
30,000 metric tonnes of oil. However, the drilling and extraction
schedule was delayed during the year due to several interruptions and
unexpected circumstances. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
we have extracted approximately 17,000 metric tonnes (2014: 23,000
metric tonnes) of oil.

It is not cost effective to drill production well at the current low
oil price environment. Our technician has been analysing the data
received from existing extraction activities in order to determine if
new extraction method should be deployed to save cost. We are still
negotiating with technical department of our partner, China National
Petroleum Corporation (“CNPC"”), and other local expertise in this
study.

The results from operations and costs incurred in oil business are
detailed as below. In 2015, the Group achieved a turnover of
approximately HK$41 million (2014: HK$102 million), representing a
decrease of 60% as compared with last year. The reportable segment
loss of oil production before impairment losses of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment for 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$29 million (2014: profit of HK$15 million). This was primarily due
to the combined impact of the decrease in both the selling price and
the sales volume of crude oil.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRE D

Results from operations REXE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
—®-H% —z-pmF
FTHET FHET
Net sales to customers BEPHEFR 40,675 102,099
Other income HAob WA 23 2,944
Operating expenses KB (55,798) (61,023)
Depreciation e (14,076) (17,631)
Special petroleum revenue tax apiEs Rl &gy = (11,569)
Impairment loss of intangible assets B.EEZREERE (408,954) (441,894)
Impairment loss of property, M- BERREZREEE
plant and equipment (33,843) (185,136)
Results from operations before income tax MRETISTR AT & 4R (471,973) (612,210)
Cooperation Contract Impairment SRR E
As at 31 December 2015, the Company reviewed the carrying amounts RZE-—RFE+_A=+—H ARFAIERTH
of its assets related to the cooperation contract entered between FREABMAAREE AR EAEFERERIRESRS
CNPC and China Era Energy Power Investment Limited (an indirect RAR (ARRMEEZ2EMBAR) RZZEZE

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) dated 13 August 2007 (the
“Cooperation Contract”), and determined that impairment would be
necessary. The impairment losses were mainly due to the decrease
in oil prices and delays in the drilling and extraction schedules. The
planned drilling and extraction schedules were delayed mainly due to
the following factors.

o More time spent on the research on the detail structure of
underground oil reserve;

o Further determination of the type of wells to be drilled;
o Insufficient funding to expand the production; and
o Environmental concern near the site area by the local authority.

Accordingly, the Company determined that the carrying amounts of
the assets related to the Cooperation Contract would likely not be
recoverable based on the revised timing of future cash flows projected
from the Cooperation Contract.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENmR DN

In assessing the recoverable amount of the cash generating units of
the oil business (the “Oil Production CGU") at 31 December 2015, the
Company calculated the value-in-use derived by the discounted cash
flow analysis to reflect deferral of development of the property by the
revised price and cost considerations. The projected cash flows are
based on the following key assumptions:

o Total estimated operating and construction costs of wells of
the PRC oil field for the remaining terms of the Cooperation
Contract;

° The crude oil price projection basis by reference to market price

of New York Mercantile Exchange WTI (“NYMEX WTI") at the
end of 2015; and

o The discount rate by reference to market comparable.

The review on the carrying amounts of the Oil Production CGU resulted
in total impairment losses of approximately HK$442,797,000 (2014:
HK$627,030,000). The impairment losses have been recorded within
operating expenses on the face of the consolidated income statement
and relates to the Company’s segment information in oil production.

For the purpose of calculating the recoverable amount, the following
major variables and assumptions were adopted:

(i) The estimated operating costs of the PRC oil field for the
remaining terms of the Cooperation Contract would increase
and a growth rate of 3% (2014: 3%) was being adopted,

(i) According to the terms of the Cooperation Contract, when
determining the oil price, reference should be made to the
transaction prices in the world’s major oil markets. Same as last
year, the Company has adopted crude oil prices with reference
to the rate of change of the NYMEX WTI forecast on crude oil
prices and applied the rate of change to the PRC crude oil price
in current forecast.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN WK D

(iii)

As compared with last year’s calculation, the management has

(iii)

adopted a delayed drilling and extraction schedules as detailed

MEREFZAE EBERAEENE
REFAREHER FB0T:

below:
Drilling and extraction schedules
ERRHAREER
Variables used in Variables used in
current year projection previous year projection
AEERAMAZEE BEFERUFMAZEE
Million Million
Years New wells metric tonnes New wells metric tonnes
FE 3oh ER-p om BHEAMW
2015 “T—Ah%F - 0.017 30 0.030
(actual) (EE) (actual) ()
2016 —E-REF - 0.015 60 0.154
After 2016 AN 791 3.643 701 3.491
Total &% 791 3.675 791 3.675
The delay is mainly due to the following factors: HEZFERZNOT

Cost effective consideration during low oil price
environment as expected for years 2015 and 2016;

Additional time spent on the research on the detail
structure of the underground oil reserves;

Additional time required to determine the type of wells

— KRB —AFR=_FT—RFH
BERAZERETHR AN E
&

n

- i TR ERBETHRMR
EBEZHRE:

- BERTEBEEHFERFEES

to be drilled;

- Insufficient funding to expand the production in the

short run; and

- Tighten environmental concern near the site area by the

local authority.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WD

(iv)

(v)

The funding requirements for capital expenditure, including
well development and well maintenance, on the planned
drilling were detailed below:

(iv) FIEIBRZEARFX (¥R
HHEBE)MESHFRFHABET:

Capital expenditure
EARMX
Variables used in  Variables used in
current year previous year

projection projection
N EEEA BEFERER
FFAZEE FTAZEE
Years HKS$' million HK$' million
FE BEEERT BEER
2015 TR — (actual) (BR) 84
2016 AN 9 168
After 2016 —E—RFE 2,200 1,958
Total =11 2,209 2,210

The management planned to obtain necessary funding for the
capital expenditure from both internal and external sources.
However, in current year the net cash used in operating
activities of the Group amounted to approximately HK$186
million. The management is of the view that it was not
beneficial to the Group to spend significant amount on capital
expenditure during the low oil price period. Therefore the
management has lowered the planned capital expenditure in
2015 and also delayed the capital expenditure for subsequent
years.

The management assumed that the discount rate will be close
to market comparable and a pre-tax discount rate used to
determine value-in-use is 18.5% (2014: 18.5%).

ERE TR RN E RS B AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRE D

The review on the carrying amounts of the Qil Production CGU resulted
in total impairment losses of approximately HK$442,797,000 (2014:
HK$627,030,000), which is mainly due to the delays in the drilling
and extraction schedules and decrease in projected oil prices. The
impairment losses have been recorded as expenses on the face of the
consolidated income statement and relates to the Group’s segment
information in oil production.

TERMINAL, STORAGE AND LOGISTICS
BUSINESS

By end of 2015, the Group has injected RMB115 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$136 million) to Shandong Shundong Port Services
Company Limited ( IUERJER &G 2 E]) (“Shandong Shundong”) to
obtain 51% equity interest in Shandong Shundong. Since the control
in Shandong Shundong was obtained by end of 2015, the results of
Shandong Shundong do not have significant impact to the Group's
results. As at 31 December 2015, net current liabilities and net assets
of approximately HK$88 million and HK$314 million from this business
have been reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.

EXPLORATION AND MINING BUSINESS

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 26 and 27
August 2010 and the Company's 2010 interim report, the Board, to its
astonishment, found out that as from 31 January 2010 the exploration
licence held by QHFSMI, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company established in the PRC, had been transferred to Yuen Xian
Company, which is wholly-owned by Ms Leung beneficially through a
company, HK Yuenxian, without the Company’s knowledge, consent or
approval. Due to the loss of the exploration licence, it was the Board's
intention to suspend the Group’s exploration and mining business until
the Group regains control of QHFSMI and the exploration licence.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 11 June 2015,
12 June 2015 and 9 March 2016, the Higher People’s Court of Qinghai
Province had made a final judgement that the change of exploration
right agreement between QHFSMI and Yuen Xian Company was invalid
and the Qinghai Province People’s Procuratorate had expressed its “no
support”
respectively.

as to the review of the abovementioned final judgement,

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WD

The Group has sought legal opinion in respect of regaining the power
over QHFSMI and the exploration license. The Group has appointed the
PRC lawyer to handle this matter.

In the opinion of the directors, the aforesaid legal proceedings have no

material impact on the financial position and operations of the Group
as the Group is still in the process of regaining the controlling power
over QHFSMI and IMFSMI which had already been de-consolidated
since 2010.

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS

()

Electricity and heat business

Regarding the Notice of the Shutdown received in April 2015,
the Company is inclined to obey the shutdown order from the
Lingshi Government, but is concerned as to, amongst other
things, the employment of the workforce at the Power Plant
and the economic damages suffered by the Group as a result
of the Shutdown. The Company currently expects that, if the
Power Plant is shut down permanently and no remedial plan is
available to us, the Group will not only suffer significant loss
but will also be forced to terminate the operations of its Supply
of Heat and Electricity segment entirely.

On 30 December 2015, Precious New Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party who has
conditionally agreed to acquire and Precious New Limited has
conditionally agreed to sell its shares in Sunlight Rise Limited,
intermediate holding company of Shanxi Zhong Kai Group
Lingshi, and the sale loan. The consideration for the sale and
purchase of the sale shares and the sale loan is HK$1,500,000
(subject to adjustment).
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In view that Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi has to close down
the factory and shut down the operations of two of its power
generating units in the future and thereafter, Sunlight Rise
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Disposed Group”) will have
no operation at all and the unlikelihood of recovering the sale
loan from the Disposed Group is in doubt. The Disposed Group
will be of no value and the Company has to write-off most of
the assets in the Disposed Group. The disposal will allow the
Group to realise its investment in the Disposed Group. Further
with the possible adjustment mechanism to the consideration
mechanism in place, the Group will be able to share any future
compensation given out by the PRC government authorities,
organisations, entities and/or individuals to Shanxi Zhong
Kai Group Lingshi (or its nominee). The Board considers
that disposal of the sale shares and the sale loan at the
consideration (subject to adjustment) is fair and reasonable. In
addition, a bank loan in the sum of RMB35,000,000 advanced
by a PRC licensed bank to Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi had
expired on 29 December 2015. As at the date of this report,
Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi has not yet renewed the said
bank loan. Under the circumstances, Shanxi Zhong Kai Group
Lingshi needs to repay the said bank loan and the Company
may have to inject further capital to the Disposed Group for
its operation. Through the disposal, the Company does not
need to commit further capital investment to the Disposed
Group for its general maintenance and reduce the impact of
any future notices that may be issued by the PRC government
which may increase the costs of maintaining the Disposed
Group. Upon completion of the disposal, the Group can lower
its gearing level and streamline its businesses and focus on the
oil production business and the development of the terminal,
storage and logistics facilities, which is expected to generate
stable income to the Group and is of high growth potential and
profitability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WD

(i)

Oil business

In 2016, the recovery of the global economy will remain highly
uncertain, The crude oil price is likely to continue to keep at
low levels but will be higher than that in 2015. Experienced
the drop in January 2016, the crude oil price is in a growing
trend recently. As compared to end of 2015, according to
NYMEX WTI, the international crude oil price records more than
10% growth. The Group will continue to improve extraction
techniques in order to increase the overall efficiency. The Group
will continue to place great emphasis on its scientific and
geological researches, increase efforts to make breakthroughs
on key techniques, strengthen the meticulous exploration of
mature oil field, actively push forward venture exploration in oil
field.

Taking into accounts the production capacity of existing wells
and facilities and the demand in oil market, it is estimated
that the annual oil production of the oil field of the Lower
Cretaceous System Quantou Formation Third Member
Yangdachengzi Layer which is situated at Liangjing Block of
the Songliao Basin at Jilin Province of the PRC in 2016 would
be approximately 15,000 metric tonnes (equivalent to 110,000
barrels of oil).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4 July
2015 in relation to the legal proceedings brought by, inter
alia, the Company against, inter alia, the vendors of and
other parties relating to the acquisition of our oil production
business (the “Liangjing Project”). Since such litigation is only
in a preliminary stage, based on the prevailing situation, the
Group is inclined to continue the oil extraction activities in the
Liangjing Project. The Board will closely monitor the operations
and performance of the Group's oil production business under
the Liangjing Project.

(i)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRE D

(iii) Terminal, storage and logistics business

On 18 December 2015, the Company entered into an
agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with an independent
third party for the acquisition of 100% equity interest (the
“Acquired Interest”) of Mission Achiever Limited (“Mission
Achiever”) for a total cash consideration of HK$185 million.
By acquiring the Acquired Interest, the Group can effectively
acquire the contractual right to participate in 51% equity
interest in Shandong Shundong. It is a condition of the
Acquisition Agreement that a portion of the consideration,
amounted to RMB115 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$136 million), was directly applied to satisfy the capital
contribution agreed to be made to Shandong Shundong in
order to obtain 51% equity interest in Shandong Shundong.
The capital contribution has been made by end of year 2015.

Payment of the consideration for the acquisition was funded
from the internal financial resources of the Group. Shandong
Shundong is designed to provide a comprehensive range of
terminal, storage and logistics services for liquid chemical
products in Dongying Port, which is an important regional
port in Shandong Province, the PRC and is located on the
coastline of Bohai Bay and the banks of the Yellow River Delta
of Shandong Province. This project is expected to reduce the
Group’s reliance on the existing businesses and enable the
Group to diversify its businesses and to broaden its source of

revenue in the future.

As at 31 December 2015, Shandong Shundong has
substantially completed the land forming and reclamation
construction of land in Dongying Port, and is in the process
f (i) constructing the chemical tankers with total designed
annual thruoughput capacity of not less than 3.6 million metric
tonnes; and (ii) applying for permits and licenses in respect
of the construction of vertical liquid storage tanks and liquid
storage speres with total storage capacity of 348,000 cubic
metres of liquid chemicals. The construction of the facilities and
application of related permits and licenses are expected to be
completed by end of 2016 or early 2017, and the operation is

expected to be commenced before mid-2017.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 18 December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEN WD

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

()

(i)

(iii)

Revenue

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately HK$88 million. The administrative expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2015 were approximately
HK$42 million, which represented a increase of 36% compared
to the administrative expenses incurred last year.

Gross loss

Gross loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately HK$44 million (2014: gross profit of HK$17
million). The gross loss arose from both the electricity and heat
business and the oil business.

Gross loss arising from the electricity and heat business is
mainly caused by the decrease in supply of electricity in the
second half of 2015 and the cease in supply of heat from April
2015 onwards. Without drawing conclusion on negotiation
with the Lingshi Government, Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi
has maintained the workforce even the revenue decreased
due to the Notice. Gross loss from the oil business is mainly
attributable to the decrease in selling price and sales volume of
crude oil, but with the same level of certain fixed cost, such as
staff costs and depreciation.

The Board believes that after the disposal of the Disposed
Group and the crude oil price recovered from the bottom level,
together with certain cost saving policies such as temporary
close down of the less efficient oil wells and minimising of staff
costs, the gross loss situation is expected to be substantially
improved.

Loss attributable to the owners of the
Company

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately HK$493
million which represented a decrease of 27%, as compared to
last corresponding year. The loss was mainly resulted from the
impairment losses of intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$409 million and
HK$82 million respectively.
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(ii)

(iii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEESWEDM

The Group’s sales and purchases were denominated in RMB and the
Group did not use any hedging instrument during the year under
review. The directors considered that its exposure to foreign exchange
rate risk is limited since the Group is closely monitoring the financial

market and would consider appropriate measures if required.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

()

Placing of new shares on 12 June 2015 under
general mandate

On 15 May 2015, the Company as the issuer and China
Everbright Securities (HK) Limited as placing agent and
Pacific Foundation Securities Limited as placing agent (the
“Placing Agents”) entered into the placement agreement (the
“Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company had
conditionally agreed to place through the Placing Agents, on
a best effort basis, up to an aggregate of 369,417,012 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the
Company (the “Placing Shares”), to not less than six placees
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are third parties
independent of and not connected with the Company and
any of its connected persons or their respective associates,
at a price of HK$0.145 per Placing Share. The Placing Shares
were allotted and issued pursuant to the general mandate
refreshed by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2014.
On 12 June 2015, the placing was completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement. The
Company received net proceeds of approximately HK$52.5
million from the Placing Shares, representing a net issue price
of approximately HK$0.142 per Placing Share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

(ii) Placing of convertible bonds on 16
September 2015 under specific mandate

On 15 May 2015, the Company and the Placing Agents
entered into the convertible bonds placing agreement (the “CB
Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company had
conditionally agreed to place through the Placing Agents, on
a best effort basis, the convertible bonds (the “CBs”) with a
principal amount of up to HK$300,000,000 to not less than
six CB Placees. The initial conversion price is HK$0.158 per
conversion share, and 1,898,734,177 conversion shares will
be allotted and issued by the Company upon exercise in full
of the conversion rights attaching to the CBs. All conditions
set out in the CB Placing Agreement have been fulfilled and
the completion of the CB placing took place on 16 September
2015 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the CB
Placing Agreement. The CBs were allotted and issued pursuant
to the specific mandate approved by the shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) held on 17
August 2015. As at 31 December 2015, principal amount
of HK$110,000,000 had been converted to 696,202,521
new ordinary shares and the outstanding CBs amounted to a
principal amount of HK$190,000,000.

CURRENT AND GEARING RATIOS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$1,511 million (2014: HK$1,380 million), total liabilities of
approximately HK$824 million (2014: HK$522 million), indicating a
gearing ratio of 0.55 (2014: 0.38) on the basis of total liabilities over
total assets. The current ratio of the Group for the year was 0.79
(2014: 0.57) on basis of current assets over current liabilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Group had capital and other commitments contracted but not
provided for of approximately HK$588,456,000 (2014: HK$791,000)
and HK$50,622,000 (2014: HK$50,986,000) respectively as at 31
December 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRE D

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had interest-bearing bank
borrowings of approximately HK$41 million (2014: HK$43 million)
and pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$22,000 (2014:
HK$1,003,000).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed 432 full-time
employees (2014: 446). The Group’'s emolument policies are
formulated on the performance of individual employees and are
reviewed annually in line with industry practice. The Group also
provides provident fund schemes (as the case may be) to its employees
depending on the location of such employees.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

INFORMATION OF OIL RESERVES

Changes in estimated quantities of proved crude oil reserves for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are indicated as follows:

g ERA
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RITE R A #41,000,0008 0 (T —WE:
43,000,000/ 7T ) & B AR 1717 5K /B 922,000
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BEEH
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LFEZEARS (ZF—MF:®)
AmHEEER
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Crude oil

R

(million metric tonnes)
(B8BANE)

Reserves as at 1 January 2014 R-ZE—ME-—A—RAZHE 3.698
Changes resulted from: EAATEEmMEELE:

Production EE (0.023)
Reserves as at 31 December 2014 RZZE—NFF+_A=+—HZR=E 3.675
Changes resulted from: RIATEEmMEEZS:

Production HE (0.017)
Reserves as at 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+_A=+—HZ2H= 3.658

Note: Based on the Group’s share of participated interests in the oil field
through jointly controlled operations.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEBEEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wang Meiyan, aged 53, was appointed as executive Director
of the Company in January 2011. She graduated from a vocational
education institute. She was a senior officer of the Office of Dongying
Municipal Committee, Shandong Province, Geology Research Institute
of Shengli Oilfield ( & 7| h H #E # 9t ) , Huaren Group of Shenyang
Military Area Command (E5E @ ZE{Z&E ), Chinese Enterprises
Daguan Magazine (HEI{bZR#EFET4E) , the Association of Chinese
Enterprises Television Stations (FEI2ER 21 € ), American Pan
Asia Investment Group Corporation (E£EZ 5% E &£ H A7) and
Kashgar project of Tarim Qilfield in Xinjiang. Ms. Wang has extensive
experience in corporate management and leadership.

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral, aged 42, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company in March 2012
and was redesignated as executive Director in November 2013. He
holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy from City University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has extensive experience
in accounting and auditing field. Mr. Chan is an independent non-
executive director of Jia Meng Holdings Limited (stock code: 8101) and
a non-executive director of China Nonferrous Metals Company Limited
(stock code: 8306), both of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director of
Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (stock code: 996), which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Jin Yuping, aged 44, graduated from the undergraduate
program in Petroleum Engineering from China University of Petroleum
(Huadong) and holds a Master's Degree in Oil and Gas Engineering
from China University of Petroleum (Huadong). Ms. Jin has served as
head of oil production team and deputy director of oil production in
Gudong Oil Production Centre of Sinopec Shengli Oilfield during the
period from 2006 to 2012. Currently, Ms. Jin is a Vice President of
Beijing Huaxia Taiyue Energy Investment Company Limited. Ms. Jin has
accumulated over 20 years of working experience in oil production.

Mr. Lan Yonggiang, aged 48, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in July 2014 and was re-designated
as executive Director in December 2014. He holds a Bachelor of Laws
Degree from Lanzhou University. Mr. Lan has extensive experience
in investment, mergers and acquisitions as well as in the business
of public listing laws. Mr. Lan is currently an executive partner of
Guangda Law Firm in Guangdong. Mr. Lan is an independent non-
executive director of Guangdong Macro Co., Ltd. (stock code: 00533),
which is listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Hoi Yan, aged 32, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2013. He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce from The University of Auckland, New
Zealand. Mr. Lee is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. In the past, Mr. Lee has worked in one of the
top-tier international accounting firms. He is currently working in
an investment bank. He has extensive experience in the field of
accounting, auditing and corporate finance and specialised expertise in
mergers and acquisitions and the capital market.

Mr. Wang Jinghua, aged 34, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director of the Company in July 2011. He graduated from
University of Exeter, United Kingdom. He holds two Bachelor of Arts
degrees with major in Internet Computing and Economics & Finance
and a Master of Science degree with International Management.
From 2009, Mr. Wang acted as a General Manager Assistant in China
Western Holdings Co., Ltd. He has most experience in the investment
program and contract in the urban construction project.

Mr. Fung Nam Shan, aged 39, holds a bachelor's degree in
accounting awarded by the University of Newcastle, Australia. Mr.
Fung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a CPA member of the Australian Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Fung is currently the company secretary
and authorized representative of Seamless Green China (Holdings)
Limited (listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 8150)), and company secretary and authorized representative
of Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Group Limited (listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8047)). Mr. Fung served
Zhejiang Chang’an Renheng Technology Co., Ltd. (listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8139)) as financial controller and
company secretary from April 2013 to March 2014. Mr. Fung was
employed as financial controller and company secretary of South
China Land Limited (listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8155)) from February 2010 to April 2013. Mr. Fung served for
a reputable property development group as financial controller from
2009 to 2010. He has worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers as an
audit manager for several years which brought him strong experience
in auditing, accounting and taxation in Hong Kong and the PRC. He
has been one of the marketing committee members of The Hong
Kong Youth Hostels and also a member of its charity walk organising
committee since 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e gp

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, holding the beliefs of transparency, honesty and
accountability. The Board of the Company considers that sound
corporate management and governance practices are essential to the
Company'’s healthy growth under all business environments. Therefore,
we continuously review and improve our corporate governance
standards to ensure maximum compliance with the relevant laws and
codes.

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December
2014, the Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
of the CG Code as and when they were/are in force, except for the
deviation as disclosed in this annual report.

DEVIATION FROM CG CODE

(i) A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (the “CEQ") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and CEO should be
clearly established and set out in writing. Since the positions of
the chairman and CEO are vacated, the Company is still looking
for a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of chairman and
CEQ;

(i) A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. For the
year under review, all independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have not been appointed for a specific term
but they are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association;

(iii) E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board should
attend the annual general meeting (the “AGM"). However, the
chairman is vacated. One of the executive directors will attend
the AGM and will be available to answer questions at the AGM;

(iv) A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders, Mr. Wang Jinghua
(the “Mr. Wang”) and Mr. Lee Hoi Yan, the independent non-
executive directors, were unable to attend the AGM of the
Company held on 30 June 2015 and Mr. Wang and Mr. Fung
Nam Shan, the independent non-executive directors, were
unable to attend the EGM of the Company held on 17 August
2015, due to their other prior engagements; and
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(v) Mr. Lan Yonggiang (“Mr. Lan”) has been re-designated as
an executive director of the Company on 8 December 2014.
Following the re-designation of Mr. Lan, the number of
independent non-executive directors fall below the minimum
number required under the Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange. The Board appointed Ms. Zhao Hangi as
the independent non-executive director on 6 March 2015 to
comply with the aforesaid ruling.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries with
each Director and each of them confirmed that he had complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2015.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board determines and keeps under review the objectives of the
Group. It makes decisions on overall strategies and actions necessary
for achieving these objectives, monitors and controls financial
and operating performance, formulates appropriate policies, and
identifies and ensures best practices of corporate governance. The
Board members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in
good faith to maximise the Shareholders’ value in the long run, and
have aligned the Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing
economic and market conditions. Daily operations and administration
are delegated to the management. It has given clear directions as
to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management should report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board comprises a balanced number of executive Directors
and non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) that can ensure there is adequate independent judgement
for the running of the Company’s business. The members of the Board
comprise experts from various professions with extensive experience.
Two of the independent non-executive Directors have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. In all corporate communications, the Company
had disclosed the composition of the Board according to the categories
and responsibilities of the directors.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises seven
members, including four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Board members during the year and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Meiyan

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral
Ms. Jin Yuping

Mr. Lan Yonggiang

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Zhao Hangi (Re-designed on 28 May 2015 and resigned
on 11 September 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Hoi Yan

Mr. Wang Jinghua

Ms. Zhao Hangi (Appointed on 6 March 2015 and
re-designed as non-executive Director on 28 May 2015)

Mr. Fung Nam Shan (Appointed on 28 May 2015)

Appointment, Re-election and Rotation of
Directors

All Directors were not appointed for any specific terms and they are
subject to re-election by Shareholders at AGM and at least once every
three years on a rotation basis in accordance with Article 108 of the
Articles of Association of the Company. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for reelection at AGM and shall continue to act as a Director
throughout the meeting which he retires. Where vacancies arise at
the Board, candidates are proposed and put forward to the Board by
the Nomination Committee as more fully explained below under the
section on Nomination Committee.

Directors’ Training

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors receive a package
of orientation materials about the Group and are provided with
a comprehensive induction to the Group’s businesses by senior
executives. The package includes a copy of “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry of Hong Kong. All Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this annual report are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors”
section on pages 19 to 20 of this annual report. None of the Directors
has any financial,
relationships among members of the Board.

business, family or other material or relevant

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation,
the Company considers that the three independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

RAFHRAM ARAREEFEEHBHRAFR
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, 17 full Board meetings, one HEZZ—AF+ZA=+—BLFE ~Q7A
AGM and one EGM were held and details of attendance are set out as BOTLREEFSeH —ARREFAE
follows: R—RBRENREG SEF2HFERFRAT
Number of
Board meetings
attended/eligible
to attend AGM/EGM
HEBEEEE
BERRH BREBE HAAE
Executive Directors BITES
Ms. Wang Meiyan FESMLL 14/17 0/2
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral PRIEE ST A 17/17 2/2
Ms. Jin Yuping EEFLT 17/17 0/2
Mr. Lan Yonggiang Bk 17/17 0/2
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Ms. Zhao Hanqi (Re-designed EHBmLZt (R=ZFE—aF
on 28 May 2015 and resigned AA=ZF/NHEFT-
on 11 September 2015) PR =F—FHEF
NA A+ —HEHE) 3/7 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTESE
Mr. Lee Hoi Yan P BEE 17/17 1/2
Mr. Wang Jinghua THELRE 17/17 0/2
Ms. Zhao Hanqi (Appointed on EREmLt (RZFE—AF
6 March 2015 and re-designed ZHANAEZFT
as non-executive Director RZFE-—AFERA=F+NH
on 28 May 2015) EHFRIFHNTEE) 3/4 0/1
Mr. Fung Nam Shan (Appointed BELEE (R=ZF—AF
on 28 May 2015) AA=ZTFT/NHEZE) 12/12 12
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Every Board member has full and timely access to Board papers BUNEFEeREHNIETEKSEHNESS MG

and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and MABBAER WA RIS ATMEZERM=E
services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek external AEMRHZRY REEBHERERISRKIN

professional advice if so required. The company secretary continuously EXER -RARESTHAMBESRHE LD
updates all Directors on the latest development of the Listing Rules HRAREMBEREERTE ZENER  UBRA
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and NEETREFRECEELSEH -

upkeep of good corporate governance practice.

The Company has attached much importance to the risk management RAGEEERHESTEC2AKEE LEH
about Directors’ liabilities and has arranged appropriate liability §$&$“ ERAEEELTHEEETRE R
insurance for Directors and senior management of the Company. The BRIREHE ST FIRT -

insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMZEES

The remuneration committee, established in compliance with the CG AARBRAPEERTAKNIFHNEZE S R
Code, currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors KEBE=ZABIIERNTEETR —BRITES
and one executive Director, is responsible for reviewing and evaluating BEEMETAARTRRTEERSREREZ
the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior FMESE TARREESRAEKBRRES
management of the Company and making recommendations to the

Board from time to time.

The remuneration committee has adopted written terms of reference FHNZEGERABRBLEE ST ZFANEX
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated B.1 .21kt 2 A2 R I F E M AR & 2 B S i
under the Code Provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. °

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee have been FZEerBREEED FHEA QAN RE

uploaded to the Company’'s website and its official website for {ﬁ“TﬁﬂﬁH B EAE k-
corporate communications.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration HE_Z-—RAF+A=+T—"RLLEE HiE
committee held three meetings to review the remuneration package of BgR{TT= /’XQE% L EEERE kmk
the Board members and the senior management. Composition of the ERECHFNEFE - FTMEEGHEKKEES
remuneration committee and details of members’ attendance to the KB 7w = JTE?DT

committee are as follows:

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HEBEE
HEEERH
Mr. Lee Hoi Yan FYRKE 3/3
Mr. Wang Jinghua FIEELE 3/3
Ms. Zhao Hangi (Appointed HRmLZE (R=ZF—AF=ANH
on 6 March 2015 and ceased to BZT ﬂZii‘_f AFARA=F/H
be a member on 28 May 2015) 7@%’%&@@5) 1/2
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral RERLEE (R=ZF—AF
(Appointed on 27 March 2015) A=+ EJ%;?E/E) 1/1
Mr. Fung Nam Shan (Appointed BEILEE (R-ZF—AF
on 28 May 2015) AA=ZTNHEZ(E) 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee, established in compliance with the CG
Code, currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors
and one executive Director, is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and management of the
Board succession.

The nomination committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee have been
uploaded to the Company's website and its official website for
corporate communications.

During the year 2015, three meetings of the nomination committee
were held. Details of members’ attendance to the committee are as
follows:

REEES
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Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend
HE BB
HESRXE
Mr. Lee Hoi Yan F B - 3/3
Mr. Wang Jinghua FEELAE 3/3
Ms. Zhao Hanqi (Appointed EHmzt (R=F—aF=HA~H
on 6 March 2015 and ceased to EZEF 'ﬂfi@_f—ﬁﬁ—cﬁﬁ_ +/1H
be a member on 28 May 2015) 7\_755%5/:?/73?5) 2/2
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral PREELE (R AF
(Appointed on 27 March 2015) A=+ + EJ)%???E) 1/1
Mr. Fung Nam Shan (Appointed HELEE (RZFE—AF
on 28 May 2015) AA=ZFNNHEZE) N/A 7~
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the suggested terms of reference stated under the Code Provision
C.3 of the CG Code. The audit committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Lee Hoi
Yan. The audit committee is responsible for review of the Group's
accounting principles, practices internal control procedures and
financial reporting matters including the review of the interim and final
results of the Group prior to recommending to the Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the audit committee have been uploaded
to the Company’s website and its official website for corporate
communications.

Three meetings of the audit committee were held during the year to
approve the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2014 and for the six months period ended 30 June 2015
and grant the share options. During the year, the Board conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group covering all material financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. One of the audit committee
meetings was held to review this internal control of the Company and
the internal weakness report submitted by the independent auditor,
and the audit committee was satisfied that such systems are effective
and adequate. The attendances at these meetings are as follows:
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Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend

HE/BE®

HESZBRH

Mr. Lee Hoi Yan Yl B & 3/3

Mr. Wang Jinghua FREELLE 3/3

Ms. Zhao Hangi (Appointed ERmEET (R=ZF—AF=ANH

on 6 March 2015 and ceased to BT IR=—F—AFAA=+/H

be a member on 28 May 2015) TEffi'/fﬁeﬁ) 1/2

Mr. Fung Nam Shan (Appointed
on 28 May 2015)

BRAUEE (RZF—LF
'ﬁﬁf+/15’i%§/f)
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit committee reviews and monitors the independent auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process.
It receives each year the letter from the independent auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the independent auditor to consider the scope
of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of
non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The audit committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the independent auditor.

During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the auditor of the
Company and to hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM of
the Company.

The following table sets forth the type of, and estimated fees for, the
principal audit services and non-audit services provided by BDO Limited
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015:

BB AT &

ERZERRMNMEBBIZEN 2Bt RE
BB EEUR R ERLE ST FRES
SAZEREDE 2 i EREBIEREEE X
HBUVZBMRKRBITEH EEEREE
HWEHBR ARESRHEZIFEZRSE (0E)
CHEENREHEE BREESNAEERER
BUGBMMEESRLEERE

FR BRELGERZSANEBMBERAFES
BAARBzZZEE TEEEARAT—ER
RBFRETHER/L-

TREIBE-_Z-HEFT_A=T—HILFE
HEBUERZREHAMEBMAERARARHTA
KB T ERBRGFIERBRGE 2 BE R
W

Services rendered
Fees paid/payable

HK$'000

P i 4 AR 3%

e/ ENER

FET

Audit services % ER % 998
Non-audit services FEAZ BRI -
Total Hit 998

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company endeavors to implement a sound risk management and
internal control system. The Board is responsible for maintaining an
adequate internal control system to safeguard Shareholder investments
and Company’s assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such system
on an annual basis, as well as through the audit committee. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, the audit committee reported to the
Board on any material issues and inadequate measures and made
recommendations to the Board.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Siu Keung, Joe has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since May 2011. Mr. Wong is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He reports to the
Board and assists the Board in functioning effectively and efficiently.

During the year 2015, Mr. Wong has confirmed that he has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update his skill
and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for them to demand
a poll on resolutions at Shareholders’ meetings are contained in
the Company’s Articles of Association. Details of such rights to
demand a poll and the poll procedures are included in all circulars to
Shareholders prior to 31 December 2015 and will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings. Poll results, if any, will be posted on both
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company no later than 30
minutes before the earlier of the morning session or any pre-opening
session on the next business day of the Shareholders’ meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
an EGM shall be convened on the written requisition of one or more
Shareholders of the Company for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary.

The written requisition shall specify the purpose of requiring the EGM
and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that such requisitionist(s)
held as at the date of deposit of the written requisition not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed
to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the Head Office or at the Registration Office at least
seven clear days before the date of the general meeting.

Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for
election as a Director at the AGM, the following documents must be
validly served at the Company's head office or the registration office
within the period specified in Article 113 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, namely, (1) his/her notice of intention to propose a
resolution to elect a nominated candidate as a Director at the AGM;
(2) a notice signed by the nominated candidate of the candidate’s
willingness to be elected; (3) the nominated candidate’s information as
required to be disclosed under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and
(4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the publication of
his/her personal data.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Our
Directors are available at the Shareholders’ meetings of the Company
to answer questions and provide information which Shareholders may
enquire. The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

Taking advantages of various resources, the Company keeps
communicating with its Shareholders regularly and properly to ensure
that Shareholders are adequately aware of any important issues during
the course of the Company’s operations, and then exercise their rights
as Shareholders with sufficient knowledge. Investors are welcome to
write directly to the Company at its Hong Kong registered office for
any inquiries.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the preparation
of financial statements of the Group and for ensuring that financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of financial statements of the Group. The Directors confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited,
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 43 to
47 of this annual report.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. As such, all the resolutions
set out in the notice of the AGM will be voted by poll.

EERRRMBBRAAR2EE

SR HAEREASE ZME®WE - AW
f%ﬁ‘ilzﬁﬁffki&%zfﬁ%‘%ﬁé\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂii%ﬁ&
EREFEZRE-EFENMAERAEEY
BHRRESH TR BEREEL A RERRE
R MBS FAEEAE BRELTANEFHE
EREATEERAZMA LS MHARRZHE
REENERERRBZEHRBR -

NRABZINBIZEABE B L EEZ ST ELAT
ERABIMBEEHAEENEIRET 2 BBRELE
B BN AN ERFIIEEFATE 2 BIEE
Bk o

RERIR

RIBEETRAF13.39) 5 BRIBERRE L2
EARRGBUREDNET Bt RERBEF
REBEMHEMARBROBUARESNETE
R o
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the supply of heat and electricity,
the oil production and the operation of liquid chemical terminal,
storage and logistics facilities.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2015 are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 48 to 172. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014,
and 2015, and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group as at each of the reporting date.

EFSEREAEEAE_ZT—OF+ R
St HLEFEZEZERELEERMB®R
=o

FEER

ARBZEBEBRREZER KT ENBAF
REREHRE EHLEERBEIREE &
= R R b

ARAR=B-RET=A=+— A2 EME
DR 2 BB H R AN EE3S -

FERERER

AEEBRE_T-AFT_A=T—RALFEZ
R ARARAREAEBRZ B Z M BRI
MEABEFN1T2B ZMGHEK - EFFTEFHIKN
REREZAEMMBE -

MBENBE

TYHEAEBREEZE T —F T —ZF =
T—=F —F-NFER_FT-RAFF+-_A=1+—
BIESFEZETEHGRAEEEUREAEEAR SR
SHHCEE BEREERBRRAEZZIHME -

RESULTS o
Year ended 31 December
HE+t-A=+-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF | ZT—@mFE —ZT—= —E-—F ZT——F
TER FHT FHET FHET FHT
Revenue Wiz 87,480 227,923 292,057 307,131 231,388
Loss attributable to: JELEE
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIE ZS N (492,568)| (673,621) (346,802) (332,719 (61,750)
Non-controlling interests FEER AR R i (39,408) (86,153) (7,534) (910) (3,640)
(531,976) | (759,774) (354,336) (333,629) (65,390)
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

EE BERFERRRESR

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-HLHFE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2001

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-RF | ZF-0mOF T —T——-F IT——F

FaERT FAT FHET FAET FAT

Non-current assets FERBEE 1,115,057 1,257,568 2,112,535 2,543,343 2,948,495

Current assets MBAE 395,769 122,577 152,984 174,084 197,219

Total assets BEH®E 1,510,826 1,380,145 2,265,519 2,717,427 3,145,714

Current liabilities mEAaE 500,682 216,374 235,271 193,688 205,888

Non-current liabilities FERBEE 322,933 305,846 443,065 557,655 674,006

Total liabilities BEBE 823,615 522,220 678,336 751,343 879,894

Net assets BEFE 687,211 857,925 1,587,183 1,966,084 2,265,820

Non-controlling interests JEE R R R i 134,411 24,361 111,776 155,780 150,547
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME BERSZE

ARBRAEENE BEERBRFAZE
BN KM FE14

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL fig 2

Details of the movements in the share capital during the year together FA-BRAZEHFBTEREH 2 BAIMRT B
with the reasons therefore, are set out in note 30 to the financial R MIFE30 -

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BrEERE

RRARZERMBNEARRRZMK L 2 RVEEE
ERASHEAVLEENELBERZ G
EARAREREPABERRIE2HEN MR-

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

BERERREERERAT / —T—AFFR 33



34

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company of approximately HK$2,364 million
as at 31 December 2015, is distributable to the Shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium account may also be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 97% of the Group's total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 46%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 38% of the total purchases for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
9%.

None of the Directors of the Company, any of their associates or
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital), had any
beneficial interests in the Group's five largest customers and/or
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Board members during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral
Ms. Wang Meiyan

Ms. Jin Yuping

Mr. Lan Yonggiang

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Zhao Hangi (Re-designed on 28 May 2015 and resigned
on 11 September 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Hoi Yan
Mr. Wang Jinghua
Ms. Zhao Hangi (Appointed on 6 March 2015
and re-designed as non-executive of Director on 28 May 2015)

Mr. Fung Nam Shan (Appointed on 28 May 2015)

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, certain Directors will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM and are eligible to offer themselves for re-election as Directors.
Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM for
the re-election of retiring Directors will be proposed in the Company's
circular in relation to re-election of Directors and notice of AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 19 to 20 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

=

FARBEAFHROAY EFFRENT:

HITES

RIZE L L
TR E
EEFLL
Bkt

FHUTES

WHH Lt (RZE—AFAHA-+/NAEFT-
WRZFB—HFNA+—HEE)

BYFHTES

FiEERE

HHmrt (R-F—AF=ANAEST
FR-F—FFALA =+ HEFT
BIBTESE)

BELEE (RZFE—AFAA=1T/NHEZF)

RIBEARBZRMENFE108AVE  HETEEBR
MRTZBRERAFRAG LHESR THEE
BEEERETES RERRTESHENER
BRREFAE LIEZEMNASRARBENEHER
ESERBRFRBFRAGBENEARATBEANIRE -

EEEEFR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no Director had
a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENT

Particulars of the pension scheme arrangements are set out in note
3(u) to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which had been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register
referred to therein pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERERARQ KRG R EER G
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND ZHEZERKE

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

RZZE—RF+ZA=+—H RELARAKA
R ERE R EBERARER AR ESFHE
BITRABAHA BAARESTHEBZBITHRAE
SN AT ATRARB R RABBROPHEE R
the Company had an interest or a short position in the shares and REIRBEZFRAEIEANEIBKREATHEFZE
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required st iisr s EmORE !

to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

As at 31 December 2015, based on the disclosure of interest notices
filings revealed by the Company from public records and so far
as is known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company,
the following person other than a Director or chief executive of

Interest in shares Interests in underlying shares

R E REBRH 2 EE

Personal Corporate Personal Corporate Aggregate  Approximate
Name of Shareholders Interests* Interest* Interests* Interest* interest percentage’ Notes
BRR#A AAER* NEEH AARE" NEEH BER BABAL! i3
Mr. Liu Ran s - 584,800,000 - 785,200,000  1,370,000,000 44.92% 1
Giant Crystal Limited FRERAF 584,800,000 - 785,200,000 - 1,370,000,000 44.92% 1
Extra Gain Development Limited - 584,800,000 - 785,200,000  1,370,000,000 44.92% 1
Grace Kind Holdings Limited - 584,800,000 - 785,200,000  1,370,000,000 44.92% 1
ENEAFRAT - 584,800,000 - 785,200,000 1,370,000,000 44.92% 1
Media Forecast Limited 253,164,557 - - - 253,164,557 8.3% 3
Qin Zhiwen SEX - 253,164,557 - - 253,164,557 8.3% 3
Deng Zemin HER - - 240,506,329 - 240,506,329 7.89% -
Wang Jianxin TEH - - 202,531,646 - 202,531,646 6.64% -
Wang Donggian IRE 40,000,000 - 113,924,051 - 153,924,051 5.05% -
* Beneficial owner * EnEA
+ Interests of controlled corporation(s) * SR HIE B R
# Percentage which the aggregate long position in the shares or # REROIBEEARD Z2FERBEHEARAR

Notes:

underlying shares represents to the issued share capital of the Company
of 3,049,704,594 shares as at 31 December 2015

Giant Crystal Limited is a company incorporated under the laws of the
British Virgin Islands. Giant Crystal Limited was owned as to 62.43%
and 37.57% by Extra Gain Development Limited and Z# %84
fR A ] respectively. Extra Gain Development Limited is the wholly-
owned subsidiary of Grace Kind Holdings Limited. Liu’s Trust is holding
Company of Extra Gain Development Limited. Mr. Liu Ran is the
beneficial owner of Liu’s Trust. Extra Gain Development Limited, Grace
Kind Holdings Limited, Mr. Liu Ran and Z#%£EAGR A7) therefore
are deemed to be interested in 1,370,000,000 shares and 785,200,000
underlying shares held by Giant Crystal Limited.

W :

—_E-RAFE+_A=Z+—BZBEITRAK
3,049,704,594f% & p 2 B ot

EFERERAFTA—HRBEBEZHE EE
M 2 AR RAER AT D B fAExtra
Gain Development Limited N £ 4 & & A R
DA HEH62.43%37.57 % 7 © Extra Gain
Development Limited#Grace Kind Holdings
LimitedZ & & i} B & & ° Liu's Trust&Extra
Gain Development LimitedZ #2 i A 7] » 2 ¥4 5L
A ABLiu's TrustZ BB A o Bt - Extra Gain
Development Limited > Grace Kind Holdings
Limited - IR EE R EHEBBRRAAIRER
BHRESBRAFMFA Z1,370,000,0008% i
17 }2 785,200,000 A8 B A 1) < #E 5
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785,200,000 underlying shares consist of shares to be issued upon #%785,200,000/% HHEE B 10 B E R E# R T 7 &
the conversion of (i) the outstanding Tranche 1 Bonds (as defined in FRBETZERG  OMATEZE —HES
the circular of the Company dated 11 October 2010) (which, based (EBRARABEHA-_T—TFT+A+—H
on the conversion price of HK$0.8 per share, can be converted into ZHEE) (RERESGRSEILIE ik
263,600,000 shares); and (i) the Tranche 2 Bonds (as defined in the /$263,600,0000% 7)) « M (g —#tE# (FF
circular of the Company dated 11 October 2010) (which, based on BERARAEBMA-ZE—ZEFTAT—HZ
the conversion price of HK$0.8 per share, can be converted into BE) (REBRESRISETITE it
521,600,000 shares). 521,600,000/ f% 5 ) °

2. The Tranche 2 Bonds and Tranche 4 Bonds have not been issued. Please 2. E_MEFRENBBEFHMARET FEEZ
refer to the Company's circulars dated 15 October 2007 and 6 June REFRBEUBEF 2 TERRZFAE F2
2008 for details of the principal terms of the Tranche 2 Bonds and HMARRBHMRNAZTZTLFTATHBER
Tranche 4 Bonds respectively. ZET N\FERNARNBZBER-
As disclosed in the Company's announcements dated 26 August and 27 MARRBBHS AT —ZTFNAZTH
August 2010 respectively and the Company’s 2010 interim report, the EZ++tBZ2 A REARR ZE—SFHHR
Board, to its astonishment, found out that as from 31 January 2010 the EHEE EEQEVRE mAQARZEER
exploration licence held by QHFSMI, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary ENBRARSEHRE (RPREMET)FEZ
of the Company incorporated in the PRC, had been transferred to Yuen HEBREE T —TF A=+ —HREZE
Xian Company without the Company's knowledge, consent or approval. FRHRAR MARAWLTME  FESBLE -
To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having ERLELN—YRESHEMRM  FIERE -
made all reasonable enquiries, Yuen Xian Company is wholly-owned by BARAFBRAUTEREERRZEEE A
Ms. Leung through HK Yuenxian. However, according to the terms and i RIRE L ESF RE N ES 2 R
conditions of the Tranche 2 Bonds and Tranche 4 Bonds, the Tranche T E-MEFRENIESEEREBKEIRR
2 Bonds and Tranche 4 Bonds will only be issued if the Mining Licence HERZBRATAEEIT - ARARIEREE
has been received by the Group. The Company is seeking legal advice ZEMSIARER UHEERBBRTA
from its legal advisers on whether the Company still has any obligation ARAIRANMEEFERARLTEHTE _HEFK
to issue the Tranche 2 Bonds and Tranche 4 Bonds to Ms. Leung in light FUMES  FRIRRZ THEAR RN AAE -
of the present situation, in particular, in these circumstances where REZstEZERTEEANERZ #iFERE
Ms. Leung has transferred the Group's exploration licence to her own ETEHERHZ QA

company without the Company’s knowledge, consent or approval.

3. Media Forecast Limited is a company incorporated under the laws of the 3. Media Forecast Limited & — 1R & 28 /8 55 2 B¥
British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share capital of which is legally SEEAMKZZ AT B2 MEHITRABR
and beneficially owned by Mr. Qin Zhiwen. Mr. Qin Zhiwen therefore ENEEAERERER - REEEREER
deemed to be interested in 253,164,557 shares held by Media Forecast AT Media Forecast Limited# %5 2253,164,557
Limited. IRAR (5 P A % o
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All the interests stated above represent long positions in the ordinary
shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2015, no short positions
were recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware, no other
person had an interest or short position in the Company's shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which was recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the EGM of the Company
held on 24 June 2013, the Stock Exchange granted approval of the
listing of and permission to deal in the shares to be issued under the
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 26 June 2013.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company'’s Directors, employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company. The Share
Option Scheme was adopted on 24 June 2013 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. The Scheme will expire on 23 June 2023. There was no share
option granted and exercised during the year under review and no
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2015.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

On 5 December 2012, Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi, a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a master agreement
with Shanxi Zhongkai Industry Group Company Limited (“Zhongkai
Group”), whereby Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi will supply and
Zhongkai Group and its subsidiaries will purchase such amount of
electricity generated by Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi for a term of
approximately 36 months, expiring on 31 December 2015. Details of
the continuing connected transactions are as stated in the Company's
announcement dated 5 December 2012 and the Company's circular
dated 17 December 2012.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following transaction
with subsidiaries of Zhongkai Group, which constituted continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. Details of such
transaction are as follows:

RAFEE AEBRGYEXEE I HNBRARE
ATR5 BB ETRAAT ZHERERS
ZERSFHBWT:

Amount

HK$'000

-]

Nature of transaction RaHE FExT
Sale of electricity by the Group REEHES 14,514

Zhongkai Group, as a non-controlling shareholder of Shanxi Zhong Kai
Group Lingshi, is a connected person under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed therein, there were no transactions required to
be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions have been subject to annual
review by the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules and confirmation of the
auditor of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company have concluded
that the continuing connected transaction has been entered into:

o in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

. either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

o in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to perform
certain agreed-upon procedures on the aforesaid continuing connected
transaction. Based on the work performed, the auditor has issued a
confirmation letter to the Board in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Directors are
considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined by the Listing Rules, other than those businesses of
which the Directors have been appointed as Directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 20 to 32 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2015.

LITIGATIONS

Details of the litigations of the Group are set out in note 44 to the
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including
a review of the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors of the Company. During the year,
two regular meetings of the audit committee have been held.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 were
audited by BDO Limited (“BDO"). BDO retired and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
BDO as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 April 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R TR e

IBDO

EEE  +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FETHEPI15E
K&HID251E

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of
Energy International Investments Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to
172, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
as explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement. Because of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs,
however, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion

1. Scope limitation - property, plant and equipment,

intangible assets and deferred tax assets and liabilities

As further set out in notes 14, 17 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2015 are property,
plant and equipment (“PPE”), intangible assets (“Intangible
Assets”) and net deferred tax liabilities with carrying amounts
of HK$46,167,000, HK$557,821,000 and HK$83,358,000
respectively. The PPE and Intangible Assets are collectively
referred to as the "Qil Production Assets” in this report. The
Oil Production Assets relate to the operation of oil production
business, pursuant to the oil production sharing contract
(the “Songliao Contract”) entered into with a state-owned
enterprise engaged in oil exploration industry (the “State-
owned Enterprise”) to develop and produce crude oil in
Liangjing Block on Songliao Basin in Jilin, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"), details of which are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements. The Songliao Contract
was firstly entered into between the State-owned Enterprise
and a company wholly owned by an individual (“Mr. A")
and the Group subsequently acquired the Songliao Contract
through the acquisition of the company firstly entering into the

Songliao Contract in 2010.

As further disclosed in note 17, as at 31 December 2015, the
directors of the Company estimated the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the Oil Production Assets
belong (the “Oil Production CGU"). As the carrying amounts
of the Oil Production CGU exceeded its recoverable amount,
impairment losses of HK$408,954,000 and HK$33,843,000
were recognised for the year ended 31 December 2015
on Intangible Assets and PPE respectively (“Impairment”).
In estimating the recoverable amount, the directors of the
Company have assumed that the Songliao Contract will remain
valid and the Group's oil production business will continue in

operation throughout the Songliao Contract period.
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As explained in note 3(a)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company found that Mr. A,
the sole shareholder of the company firstly entering into the
Songliao Contract at the relevant time, was formally charged
by prosecution authorities in the PRC for illegal operation crime
(the "Charge”), possibly involving allegations about improper
conduct in obtaining the Songliao Contract. The directors of
the Company have obtained the legal opinions in respect of the
Charge which states that the Charge is only at a preliminary
stage and it is not possible to estimate the outcome. The legal
opinion also states that if Mr. A is found guilty for his suspected
improper conduct in obtaining the Songliao Contract, this
might render the Songliao Contract to become voidable and the
State-owned Enterprise will be entitled to claim all economic
benefits passed to the Group previously under the Songliao
Contract from the Group. As a result, the Group may not be
able to exercise its right under the Songliao Contract and its
Intangible Assets and PPE may be fully impaired. In addition,
corresponding adjustment may also be required to adjust the
related net deferred tax liabilities accordingly.

However, as at the date of this report, there is no adjudication
in respect of the Charge yet and the legal opinion obtained
by the Company does not indicate the estimated outcome of
the Charge. As a result, we are unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence concerning (i) the validity of
the Songliao Contract and therefore the ownership of the
Intangible Assets; (ii) whether the amount of Impairment was
appropriately recognised; and (iii) whether any liabilities shall be
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of any claims to be initiated by the State-owned Enterprise. Any
adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in
respect of the above would have a consequential effect on the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, its financial performance for the year then ended and
the related elements making up the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows.
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Uncertainties relating to going concern

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$104,913,000 and incurred a loss of HK$531,976,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2015. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the directors of the Company
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, the appropriateness of which depends upon
the outcome of the underlying assumptions as detailed in note
3(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements which include:
(i) the Songliao Contract continues to be valid and the Group
continues its oil production business, which is the basis on
which the directors prepared the cash flow forecast for the next
twelve months after 31 December 2015; and (ii) the Company’s
application for a new credit line of up to RMB800,000,000
from a bank in the PRC (the “Bank”) for the coming 18 months
would be successful. The banking facilities would be utilised
in the development of the Group's oil and liquefied chemical
terminal project.

However, if Mr. A is found guilty for his improper conduct in
obtaining the Songliao Contract as mentioned in point 1 above,
the Songliao Contract may become invalid and the Group may
not be able to carry out the business relating to oil production
as stipulated under the Songliao Contract and the State-
owned Enterprise may be eligible to claim compensation for
the economic benefits passed to the Group during the period
of the Songliao Contract from the Group. As stated in the last
paragraph of point 1 above, we are unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence concerning the validity of the
Songliao Contract.

In respect of the Company’s application for banking facilities,
up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Bank has not granted the abovementioned
credit line. There were no alternative audit procedures that we
can perform to obtain relevant audit evidence to assess the
likelihood that the credit line would be available to the Group.
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Accordingly, we are unable to satisfy ourselves that whether it Eit - wPIEEE Wﬁzﬁiﬁiﬁﬁgﬁg mE
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements ,ﬁv?él\ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ%% SIRE -MRARBELE
on a going concern basis. Should the going concern basis be BEEWaE  AIAETRAE B &5E
considered inappropriate, adjustments would have to be made é?ﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬂﬁ,ﬁ\%ﬁT """"" WEE
to write down the carrying amounts of the Group's assets to Wk Al B E A 2 R BN B EE L BB
their estimated realisable values, to provide for any further ARGERBEEMIERBBED R EHN
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current FEARDEERABAE ZEHAE
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current HEWEN G E M BERERANR -

liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Disclaimer of opinion FERER

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis %%K%%ﬁﬁzgfﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$EZ§g’I‘E'
for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, we have not been able to BPEARENGERDEENENRE AEHRET
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for %ﬁ%ﬁ"lﬁt'ﬁﬁ?\@%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁi‘%’L‘A&
an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the BEMBRMREREETE LRGN 2 #ER
consolidated financial statements and as to whether the consolidated EEZRRHEERER -

financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited BRI EEZETHEEAERAA
Certified Public Accountants HE DA

Au Yiu Kwan B

Practising Certificate Number P05018 HEFERITPOS018

Hong Kong, 25 April 2016 BE ZE-R"ENA=-T+HHA
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mER@ER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE—Z—AF+-_A=1+—HBILFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-FE —HF
B+ FET FAET
Revenue g &= 5 87,480 227,923
Cost of sales & A (131,917) (210,464)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8B) /=7 (44,437) 17,459
Other income Eug A 5 1,229 8,979
Gain from bargain purchase HEEE W& 37 24,193
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHEAX (3,866) (5, 280)
Administrative expenses TR X (42,495) (31,222)
Other operating expenses B M (52,229) (8,400)
Impairment loss of goodwill mEZRESBE 16 - (62,662)
Impairment loss of intangible assets BV EEZRAEERE 17 (408,954) (441,894)
Impairment loss of prepaid land TS T E R IE 2R EEE
lease payments 15 (6,106) (17,032)
Impairment loss of property, M R R ERE 2R EEE
plant and equipment 14 (82,461) (360,592)
Finance costs B 7% B AR 7 (20,049) (10,577)
Loss before income tax TSR AT 18 8 (635,175) (911,221)
Income tax credit g s R 9 103,199 151,447
Loss for the year KEFEEE (531,976) (759,774)
Loss for the year attributable to: EBiERFEERSE:
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEZ F N (492,568) (673,621)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R R R AE S (39,408) (86,153)
(531,976) (759,774)
(Restated)
(f=E75))
Loss per share for loss attributable EARBEEAERLEBEZ
to the owners of the Company BREE 11
— Basic and diluted —BEAR NS (HK cents 15.45%4l) | (HK cents 22.6/&1lL)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—AF +—A=T—HILFE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
—E-EHE —E-NEF
THERT FHET
Loss for the year TEEEE (531,976) (759,774)
Other comprehensive income Ht2mEEA
Items that may be reclassified subsequently RENHEET A BEZERZ
to profit or loss: HE
Exchange losses on translation of financial BMEBINEBIBHRE 2
statements of foreign operations IE 7 E518 (7,273) (10,338)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEFEHEME2EBA (7,273) (10,338)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEZMBRAERE (539,249) (770,112)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: EBiEEZEWA#EE:
— Owners of the Company . WAEIE7 Z =N (495,532) (681,397)
— Non-controlling interests —FEmRR R RS (43,717) (88,715)
(539,249) (770,112)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEFBRRR

As at 31 December 2015 R—ZE—H&E+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-ffF —E-NEF
B 5 FET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BE KRR E 14 383,943 214,864
Prepaid land lease payments A T A ERIE 15 3,132 11,263
Intangible assets mVEE 17 672,043 971,224
Deferred tax assets RIETIIEE = 29 55,939 60,217
1,115,057 1,257,568
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 925 2,995
Trade and bills receivables EWE ZERBENEE 19 34,085 36,564
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE Re Rk
other receivables H fth JE W FR B 20 97,659 5,972
Financial assets at fair value through RRATEFAERZZ
profit or loss MBEE 21 24,818 -
Pledged bank deposits BEEFRITHER 22 22 1,003
Cash at banks and in hand RITRERFEES 22 238,260 76,043
395,769 122,577
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables JERTE SRR 23 11,172 17,907
Other payables and accruals H M JE 008 I fE 5T FUE 24 383,829 144,406
Amounts due to non-controlling JE A JEFE AR IR SR SR IE
shareholders 25 20,932 -
Bank borrowings RITIE K 26 41,300 43,400
Other borrowings H b a3k 27 29,972 -
Convertible bonds AR & 5 28 3,337 -
Tax payables FEASFEIR 10,140 10,661
500,682 216,374
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (104,913) (93,797)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERARBAERE 1,010,144 1,163,771
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRE

As at 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HRE+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-RE —E—F
M 7 FET FAT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to non-controlling JFE A JEFE AR AR SR SR8
shareholder 25 - 13,887
Other borrowings H & 27 12,533 41,971
Convertible bonds Al IR AR & 5 28 138,113 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIEBIEEE 29 172,287 249,988
322,933 305,846
Net assets EEFE 687,211 857,925
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to the owners of AR TREE AEIEES
the Company
Share capital & < 30 304,970 198,408
Reserves G 31 247,830 635,156
552,800 833,564
Non-controlling interests JE 8 A B R R 2 134,411 24,361
Total equity R 687,211 857,925

Lan Yongqiang

Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

BEoK A PR{ZE
Director Director
s EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEREE2BR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—AF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

NG ZPN 3T $
*Convertible
bond Non-
Share *Share *Capital  *Exchange equity *Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FARRES FER
BEx  RGEE  EARE ERRG BifE EHER it RRER BER
TEL FHL TFEL FHL FEL FHL FHL T FhL
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mE-A-8 174,708 2,241,459 158,473 28,851 479,663 (1,607,747) 1,475,407 111,776 1,587,183
Gain on extinguishment on the loan L #FERB R E 2 iz

from non-controlling shareholder (Fisk25)

(note 25) - - 1,951 - - - 1,951 1,300 3,251
Issue of shares upon conversion of R X R ARERBETHER

convertible bonds (note 28) (Bzr28) 13,700 57,558 - - (71,258) - - - -
Issue of shares for settlement of REBEERBETRA

other borrowings (note 30(ii)) (B &E300i)) 10,000 11,000 16,603 - - - 37,603 - 37,603
Transactions with owners HERAZRS 23,700 68,558 18,554 - (71,258) - 39,554 1,300 40,854
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - - 6Be2) 67361 (86153)  (759,774)
Other comprehensive income Hi2EUA
Exchange losses on translation of BEBNEBHBRRL

financial statements of foreign EXER

operations - - - (7,776) - - (7,776) (2,562) (10,338)
Total comprehensive income AEE2EUALE

for the year - - - (7,776) - (673,621) (681,397) (88,715) (770,112)
At31 December 2014 Wo®-METSAS+-8 198408 2310017 177,027 21,075 408405 (2281368 833564 24361 857925
At 1 January 2015 RZE-81%-A-8 198,408 2,310,017 177,027 21,075 408,405  (2,281,368) 833,564 24,361 857,925
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37)  YeBEM B A A (M5£37) - - - - - - - 153,767 153,767
Issue of shares upon placing RERTTRE (ME300))

(note 30(i)) 36,942 16,624 - - - - 53,566 - 53,566
Share issue expenses BROBETEY - (1,066) - - - - (1,066) - (1,066)
Issue of convertible bonds (note 28) {7 AAREH ([iT528) - - - - 85,742 - 85,742 - 85,742
Issue of shares upon conversion of  HIEAFEREFFETRG

convertible bonds (note 28) (KisE28) 69,620 38,345 - - (31,439) - 76,526 - 76,526
Transactions with owners BREEAZRS 106,562 53,903 - - 54,303 - 214,768 153,767 368,535
Loss for the year rEEBE - - - - - (492,568) (492,568) (39,408) (531,976)
Other comprehensive income Rt 2ERA
Exchange losses on translation of BEBNEBI KRR

financial statements of foreign EXER

operations - - - (2,964) - - (2,964) (4,309) (7,273)
Total comprehensive income AEEREUALE

for the year - - - (2,964) - (492,568) (495,532) (43,717) (539,249)
At 31 December 2015 W-S-EFT-A=+-8 304970 2363920 172,007 18111 462708 (2773936) 552800 134411 687,211
* The total of these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated * ZERBR B BHEEERARE247,830,000%

reserves of HK$247,830,000 (2014: HK$635,156,000). 7L (ZF M4 © 635,156,000 T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—AF +—A=T—HILFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-RF —T-mF
B 53 TER FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEXEESHE
Loss before income tax BATSR AT E 18 (635,175) (911,221)
Adjustments for: HTIIER EHFE:
Depreciation e 8 43,220 47,638
Amortisation of prepaid land T £ b 70 & FOE 8 5
lease payments 8 679 696
Amortisation of intangible assets mHREEEE 8 4,392 8,400
Impairment loss of goodwill mE R EEE 8 - 62,662
Impairment loss of intangible assets EmEEERERE 8 408,954 441,894
Impairment loss of prepaid land TR T ERIEREEE
lease payments 8 6,106 17,032
Impairment loss of property, W BB MEEREERE
plant and equipment 8 82,461 360,592
Loss/(Gain) on disposals of property, HEWE BWME R
plant and equipment HEEE () 8 494 (59)
Fair value loss on financial assets BRAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEERATEEE 8 126 -
Gain from bargain purchase ZEBHEE WS (24,193) -
Gain on extinguishment of HIEMENE R W
non-current borrowings 5 - (2,867)
Interest income B A 5 (24) (70)
Interest expenses FEFAX 7 20,049 10,577
Operating (loss)/profit before working EEESBER LY
capital changes (E8) %7 (92,911) 35,274
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FEZ®L,/ (#En) 1,925 (1,505)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables EWE SERBREZER 2D 710 12,049
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments, FENFIE 2R
deposits and other receivables Ef W RIEAEZ
(3m),wd (77,447) 4,313
Payment to acquire financial assets at MFRAFEFAERZZ
fair value through profit or loss MBEEZMNK (24,944) -
Decrease in trade payables EBRESEBEZH D (5,869) (8,661)
Increase in other payables and accruals Hih BN RIBREFTHIBEZ
o 11,178 33,743
Cash (used in)/generated from operations =& (Fi/H),  E4LZHE (187,358) 75,213
Interest paid EAHE (6) -
Income tax refunded REIAEB 1,704 653
Net cash (used in)/generated AEER (FTH) iRz
from operating activities e FEE (185,660) 75,866

BERERREERERAT / —T—AFFR 53



54

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-RfF —E-ME
FET FET
Cash flows from investing activities RETHRERE
Purchases of property, BEME BERZE
plant and equipment (59) (62,152)
Proceeds on disposals of property, HEME WEREREZ
plant and equipment Fri8501A = 54
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition of ~ WEE A& 2
subsidiaries REMAFE 327 -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EEMRITEITOR D 932 -
Interest received B E 24 70
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETEESL"(BH)
investing activities ZHEFRE 1,224 (62,028)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZHESHE
New bank borrowings HERITIE K - 43,190
New non-controlling shareholder’s loan IR ERE R = 6,352
New other borrowings I8 E M X 231 -
Repayments of bank borrowings EEBITER - (43,190)
Repayments of other borrowings BEEEAMMER - (28,881)
Repayments to shareholder A % B8 - (5,310)
Issue of new shares BATHRAD 52,500 -
Proceed from issue of convertible bonds B 1TA[ # R (E %5 2 FT15 A 294,450 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZBEL " (FH)Z
financing activities B2 FEE 347,181 (27,839)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBELEHEEBER 28mM
cash equivalents (R2) F8 162,745 (14,001)
Cash and cash equivalents R—BA—HBzZzEERK
at 1 January HEEEER 76,043 90,121
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes [EXEH) s & (528) (77)
Cash and cash equivalents R+TZA=+—HZEER
at 31 December HeZEHEER 238,260 76,043
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—AF +—A=T—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —REH
Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the BERBEEKREZERER AT (TARF])
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and RERFASEESTMR LN UHEFS
domiciled in the Cayman Islands. Registered office of the AEEZARETRR - ARQE Z M
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2687, EHR LR Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
place of business is Unit 1508, 15th Floor, The Center, 99 Cayman Islands: MM E B & XM B R A
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company's shares are BERARBETIRFIRF 1518 1508% °
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock ARAZBDREREERSHABR AT
Exchange”). ([BE2ZPT)) e
During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its RAFE Apa REFBAR (5E R
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) include: EENDNZEBERBRE:
- the supply of electricity and heat representing the - REHE ERELEERHBREE
business of generation and supplying of electricity and %
heat;
- the oil production representing the business of oil - Bl EEmMER &

production; and

- the oil and liquefied chemical terminal representing - Mo RREB(E T mEEEE  IBEER
the business of operation of liquid chemical terminal, B{TmEE FFERmnRmE
storage and logistics facilities (new business segment B(FRNEENELDEH) o

under construction during the year).

As described in note 37, in December 2015, the Group MM 37Tt R=ZE—hFE+=A &K
completed the acquisition of 51% of the equity interest EETAWERPINE BRI LFRIBRE
of a sino-foreign enterprise, namely Shandong Shundong BAERAG ([LERIER])Z51%0% # -
Port Services Company Limited (“Shandong Shundong”), a ZARBRPREARLEME ([HE])K
company established in the People’s Republic of China (the 2R BELENPEILEERES
“PRC"), which is designed to operate oil and liquefied chemical oMM R BT mISEE  EE RIRR
terminal, storage and logistics facilities in Dongying Port, Mo LR B B AT EfE &2 B 0 RiFEE -
Shandong Province, the PRC. Shandong Shundong is currently WEFBEHRARFARASE—RF
under the construction of port and terminal. Details of the +Z A+ NBZAf-

acquisition have been set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 18 December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R 7 Bt o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

56

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

As described in note 45, Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi
Heat and Power Company Limited (“Shanxi Zhong Kai Group
Lingshi”), in which the Group owns 60% equity interest,
received a notice issued by the Municipal Government of
Lingshi County (the “Lingshi Government”) dated 23 April
2015. In the notice, the Lingshi Government ordered Shanxi
Zhong Kai Group Lingshi to shut down the operations of all
its power generating units operated by Shanxi Zhong Kai
Group Lingshi, for the purposes of anti-pollution measures
and emission reduction, details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 April 2015. On 30
December 2015, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with the
independent third party (the “Purchaser”), pursuant to which
the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire and the
Group has conditionally agreed to sell the issued shares and
the sale loan of Sunlight Rise Limited (“Sunlight Rise”) which
holding 60% equity interest in Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi
(collectively the “Sunlight Group”), details of which are set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 30 December 2015
and 29 March 2016. As at the date of authorisation for issue
of the consolidated financial statements, certain conditions
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement have not yet been met
and approvals from shareholders have not yet been obtained.
Therefore, no assets and liabilities of the Sunlight Group have
been classified as held for sale and the discontinued operations
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 5.

Other than the above, there were no significant changes in
the Group's operations during the year. The Group’s principal
places of the business are in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 48 to 172 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
135 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—HAF +—A=1T—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued) 1.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
("HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs 2.

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2015

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
(Amendments) HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
(Amendments) HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans:
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Contributions

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the financial statements.

N
—RER (#)
BE RS 3R 25 AR A B 2 T A s M T (%

T2 BREEREBIN ESEOH
mEsELZ TUHEF ([TET]) -

RMHETEETE BB R
% % B

(@) BRMHET BB R
BHRELER - R=-F—1

F-A—H4EX
BB BERSE BB BEREER
28 (B5T) —T-%FE
—T-CFRH
LEEYE
BRBBRE BEMBREER
8 (B35T) —T——F%
—E-ZFEH
LEELE
B astEd EREFEE:
E1957 2185 EEMT
(Z%——%)

R ST T R A BRI
EAYE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 R 7 Bt o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, certain new/revised HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have not been
adopted early by the Group.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of
the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after
the effective date of the pronouncement. Information
on new/revised HKFRSs that are expected to have a
material impact on the Group’s accounting policies is
provided below. The Group is not yet in a position to
state whether these new/revised HKFRSs will result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies
and financial statements.

Except as explained below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

This standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The amendments
are designed to encourage entities to use judgement in
the application of HKAS 1 when considering the layout
and content of their financial statements. An entity’s
share of other comprehensive income from equity
accounted interests in associates and joint ventures will
be split between those items that will and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in aggregate
as a single line item within those two groups.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 75 8 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—HAF +—A=1T—HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

This standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. HKFRS 9
introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell
the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All
other debt and equity instruments are measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7 Bt o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—AF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

This standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The new standard
establishes a single revenue recognition framework.
The core principle of the framework is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—AF +—A=T—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach
to revenue recognition:

- Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

- Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

- Step 3: Determine the transaction price

- Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

- Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

2. BEHEFTRBITEBUBER
HER (a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 75 8RR Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—Z—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at
fair value. The measurement bases are fully described in
the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’'s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R 3% M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—HAF +—A=T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAES:tHFEH®E &)

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Songliao contract

On 25 September 2009, an acquisition
agreement to acquire 100% equity interest
in China International Energy Investments
(Hong Kong) Limited (“China International
Energy”) was entered into by the Group,
Greater China Limited (“Greater China”) and
Mr. Li Weijun (Greater China’s warrantor). The
acquisition was completed on 31 December
2010. Principal assets, rights and operations of
China International Energy were the petroleum
contract entered into between China Era Energy
Power Investment Limited (“China Era”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China International
Energy, and a state-owned enterprise engaged
in oil exploration industry (the “State-owned
Enterprise”) on 13 August 2007 (the “Songliao
Contract”), details of which are set out in note
33. China International Energy was wholly-
owned by an individual (“Mr. A") at the time of
obtaining the Songliao Contract.

As set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 4 July 2015, the directors found that Mr. A
was formally charged by prosecution authorities
in the PRC for illegal operation crime (the
“Charge”), possibly involved allegations about
improper conduct in obtaining of the Songliao
Contract.

(a)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z =%

3.

i e Bl B R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Songliao contract (Continued)

Having taken legal advice by the Company
to uphold and protect its right, on 2 July
2015 (Cayman Islands time), the Group has
commenced legal proceedings in the Grand
Court of the Cayman Islands against various
parties including Mr. A, Greater China, Mr. Li
Weijun (Greater China’s warrantor) and Giant
Crystal Limited (“Giant Crystal”) (which was
nominated by Greater China as the allottee of
the promissory notes, consideration shares and
convertible bonds for the consideration of the
Songliao Contract) (the “Defendants”) on the
basis that (a) the Greater China’s warranties
and/or representations given in the acquisition
were false and misleading and knowing that the
Group entered into the acquisition agreement
in reliance thereon: and (b) the Defendants of
the litigation wrongly conspired and combined
together to defraud the Group to pay the
consideration. In the litigation, the Group sought
(1) a declaration that they are entitled to validly
rescind the acquisition agreement; (2) an order
that the consideration be repaid, a declaration
that the promissory notes and convertible bonds
are at all material times null and void and of no
legal effect; (3) a declaration that Giant Crystal
held and continue to hold the consideration
shares and any shares issued upon exercise of
the convertible bonds on trust for the Company;
(4) an injunction against all Defendants that they
be restrained from disposing of, encumbering
or otherwise dealing with or diminishing the
value of, and/or exercising any rights or powers
(including but not limited to voting rights in
general and/or extraordinary meeting(s) in
respect of, and/or entering into any agreement
to effect any transaction in relation to, the
consideration shares and the converted shares;
(5) an injunction against all Defendants from
completing and/or procuring the conversion
and/or transferring of the convertible bonds;
(6) damages for fraud and/or deceit; and (7)
an order that the Defendants compensate the
Group in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—AF +—A=T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAES:tHFEH®E &)

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Songliao contract (Continued)

In March 2016, the Group obtained the legal
opinion from the lawyers in the PRC stating
that under the laws prevailing in the PRC, all
entities are innocent unless found guilty by the
Municipal Court. However, if the contract is
found to be used to conduct illegal trade by top
management, the contract can be invalidated
through the Supreme People’s Court. According
to the Contract Laws of the PRC, when a
contract becomes invalid or is rescinded, any
property obtained under the contract shall be
returned. In the circumstances when the return
of properties is impossible, compensation shall
be made at an estimated price for the loss
caused by the defaulted parties. As a party of
the contract, the Group is entitled to either
enter into arbitration or to file a civil legal action
to rescind or invalidate the contract and seek
compensation from the defaulted parties.

Included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015
are property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and net deferred tax liabilities with
carrying amounts of HK$46,167,000 (2014:
HK$98,776,000), HK$557,821,000 (2014:
HK$971,224,000) and HK$83,358,000 (2014:
HK$182,283,000) respectively. The property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets are
collectively referred to as the "“Oil Production
Assets”. The Oil Production Assets relate to the
operation of oil production business, pursuant
to the Songliao Contract, entered into with the
State-owned Enterprise to develop and produce
crude oil in Liangjing Block on Songliao Basin in
Jilin, the PRC, details of which are set out in note
33.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 8RR Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—AF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Songliao contract (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the directors of the
Company estimated the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the Oil
Production Assets belong (the “Qil Production
CGU").
Production CGU exceeded its recoverable
amount, impairment losses of HK$408,954,000
(2014: HK$441,894,000) and HK$33,843,000
(2014: HK$185,136,000) were recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2015 on intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment
respectively. In estimating the recoverable
amount, the directors of the Company have
assumed that the Songliao Contract will remain
valid and the Group's oil production business will

As the carrying amounts of the Qil

continue in operation throughout the Songliao
Contract period.

Having taken into account of the legal opinion,
the directors consider that the Songliao Contract
will continue to be valid and will be executed
as planned as the Group has close working
relationship with the State-owned Enterprise
and up to the date of authorisation for issue of
the consolidated financial statements, there is
no indication from the State-owned Enterprise
regarding any potential claim or questioning on
the validity of the Songliao Contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ=—Z—AF+-A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

Going concern basis

The financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis which
notwithstanding that the Group incurred a loss
of HK$531,976,000 (2014: HK$759,774,000)
during the year, and as of that date, had net
current liabilities of HK$104,913,000 (2014:
HK$93,797,000). These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. The directors of
the Company have prepared the consolidated
financial statements based on a going concern
on the assumptions that:

(a) the Songliao Contract continues to be
valid and the Group continues its oil
production business, which is the basis
on which the directors prepared the
cash flow forecast for the next twelve
months after 31 December 2015 and
assuming that the low crude oil price to
be recovered gradually;

(b) the Company’s application for a new
credit line of up to RMB800,000,000
from a bank in the PRC for the coming
18 months would be successful. The
banking facilities would be utilised in
the development of the Group's oil and
liquefied chemical terminal project; and

(c) the Sunlight Group would be successfully
disposed of during 2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 8RR Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—AF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Going concern basis (Continued)

After taking into account the above measures,
the directors consider that the Group can meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall
due in the foreseeable future and believe that
the Group will continue as a going concern
and consequently have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in
business as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made in the consolidated financial
statements to reduce the values of the assets
to their estimated realisable values, to provide
for any further liabilities which may arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities
as current assets and liabilities respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited ("QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI”)

In 2010, the board of directors discovered
that, the exploration licence held by QHFSMI,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
established in the PRC, had been transferred to
a company known as A5 & /NAT LR AR B %
BMRAF (in English, for identification purpose
only, Inner Mongolia Xiao Hong Shan Yuen Xian
Mining Industry Company Limited) (“Yuen Xian
Company”) without the Company’s knowledge,
consent or approval.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—AF +—A=T—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI”)
(Continued)

Based on the searches conducted by the
Company'’s legal advisers, the Group was advised

that:

(a)

(b)

Yuen Xian Company is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in the
PRC in 2009 and is wholly-owned by
a company, namely Yuenxian Mining
Industry Holding Company Limited (“HK
Yuenxian”). Ms Leung Lai Ching Margaret
("Ms Leung”) is one of the directors and
the legal representative of Yuen Xian
Company.

HK Yuenxian (formerly known as Forest
Source Mining Industry Holding Company
Limited) is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong in 2008 and is wholly-owned
by Ms Leung. Ms Leung is also the sole
director of HK Yuenxian.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7 Bt o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—AF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EARETHERA &)

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) () wEEE (&)
(iii)  Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai (iii) XEXHEERFBEXEHZRE

Forest Source Mining Industry Developing RG] ([EEREF])RA
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner B R BEEARERL &
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry ([AFRLHE])EEZHE
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI”) #I#E (4 )
(Continued)
Disputes with Ms Leung BZ LA

In November 2009, a legal proceeding was
commenced by Hong Kong Forest Source Mining
Industry Holding Company Limited ("HKFSMIH"),
QHFSMI and IMFSMI, all of which are wholly-
owned by the Group, against HK Yuenxian,
Ms Leung and such other persons named as
co-defendants to such legal proceedings. The
Group obtained, among other things, an interim
injunction order from the Hong Kong Court in
the following terms:

(a) An injunction restraining, amongst
others, HK Yuenxian and Ms Leung from
carrying on business in Hong Kong and/
or the PRC under the name of Forest
Source Mining Industry Holding Company
Limited (subsequently known as HK
Yuenxian since 7 January 2010); and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 3% 3R & MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—AF +—A=T—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai

Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI”)
(Continued)

Disputes with Ms Leung (Continued)

(b)

An injunction restraining, amongst
others, Ms Leung from acting or
holding out as a director of QHFSMI
or interfering with the business of
QHFSMI, including but not limited to
making any representations, requests,
demands or promises to the Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region Commerce
and Industry Bureau or any other
governmental agencies in the PRC on
behalf of QHFSMI in regard to any affairs
of or relating to QHFSMI.

The interim injunction order was subsequently
discharged on 30 March 2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 75 8RR Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—_ZE—RAF T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI”)
(Continued)

Ms Leung'’s legal status as director and legal
representative in QHFSMI and IMFSMI remained
unchanged during the year in the absence of her
cooperation

Ms Leung was a director and legal representative
of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI. In September
2009, the sole shareholder of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI (i.e. HKFSMIH) resolved to remove
Ms Leung’s capacity as director and legal
representative of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI with
immediate effect. As disclosed in the Company's
circular dated 28 June 2010, the respective
members of the board of directors and legal
representative of QHFSMI and IMFSMI was not
officially changed as Ms Leung, being the then
legal representative, was not cooperative and
failed to provide the requested documents and
corporate seals.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R & M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—T—AF+—A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAES:tHFEH®E &)

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) wWEEE (&)
(iii)  Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai (i) XEZHEERRBEHRE
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing RAG ([EEZEFE])RA
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner SRR BEREERERA A
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry ([AELHREF]) EEZ#E

Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI”) | (A& )

(Continued)

Transtfer of exploration licence without the
Company’s knowledge, consent or approval

The Group acquired QHFSMI from Ms Leung in
2007. QHFSMI was the holder of an exploration
licence which conferred QHFSMI the rights
to conduct exploration work for the mineral
resources in the titanium mine at Xiao Hong
Shan in Inner Mongolia, the PRC. Based on the
search conducted by the Group's legal advisers,
the exploration licence was transferred, without
the Company’s knowledge, consent or approval,
to Yuen Xian Company in January 2010. Such
actions by Ms Leung were not expected in view
of the interim injunction order obtained by the
Company, details of which are set out in the sub-
paragraph headed “Disputes with Ms Leung”
above. Without the exploration licence, QHFSMI
no longer has the rights to, among other things,
carry out exploration of the mineral resources of
the titanium mine, access to the titanium mine
and neighbouring areas and has no priority in
obtaining the mining rights of the titanium mine.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 75 8RR Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—_ZE—RAF T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI”)
(Continued)

Transter of exploration licence without the
Company’s knowledge, consent or approval
(Continued)

As soon as the Group had discovered the loss
of QHFSMI's exploration licence, the Group
sought legal advices. Given the discovery of the
loss of significant assets of QHFSMI, the board
of directors was not able to maintain controls
over QHFSMI and IMFSMI by the Group. As a
consequence, the directors of the Company
considered that the Group no longer had the
power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from QHFSMI and
IMFSMI and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns.

De-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

The Group has been unable to obtain the
financial information of QHFSMI and IMFSMI
since 2010. The directors of the Company
consider that the Group had lost its power over
QHFSMI and IMFSMI with effect from 1 January
2010. Accordingly, the financial information
of QHFSMI and IMFSMI was de-consolidated
with effect from 1 January 2010. Details of de-
consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI are set out in
the 2010 Annual Report of the Company.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015

3.

EX

(a)

BETBRM

rgl;
~
W
—

MBEXE (&)

(iii)

(iv)

KEHEERFIEXARE
RAA([EEHRE]) A
BERFREEARERA A
((AFLFEI)EEZFE
I (E)

FEARR AT HNE R AKEL L
Al B ECHE & T BB R B R HE
(&)

AEBHRRRETEHRRLZ
BREREZ B BISSOR
RER -ZERBERFTEHRR
HAEBEREERK E5g
BEEAGFASEEEER
RN & FRIRZ P -
EREMRE ARBES
RE AEBETHEHEER
BREARHFRRERES
TBEAEERREARSG
AR O R T E A
A IEBENITEEE NI

yeRSTRER-

TEBEEGFRERAR AR
FEEAR

REBEERISTERRK
NREHRRE T 25
ZHBER - RARBEER
R BR-E-FTF—-F—H
B AEBELREEHEER
BREAR LR ZEND - H
- R-ZE—-ZTF—-H—H
g FERREARGHRIR
ZHBEERTBERAEARK
TEEEERREAREH
REAANRZFBHRAR
A_E-TFEFH-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—T—AF+—A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv)

De-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI
(Continued)

Since February 2012, the Group filed writs to the
courts in the PRC to invalidate the transfer of the
exploration licence from QHFSMI to Yuen Xian
Company at a consideration of RMB8,000,000
(the “Change of Exploration Right Agreement”)
and return the exploration licence to QHFSMI.
Finally, in August 2014, the Supreme People's
Court of the PRC accepted the Company’'s
allegations and in April 2015, the Higher
People’s Court of Qinghai Province (the “Higher
Court”) issued an order (the “Final Judgment”)
that the Change of Exploration Right Agreement
was invalid.

In December 2015, the Company received
the review application filed by Ms Leung
with Qinghai Province People’s Procuratorate
("Qinghai Procuratorate”) for seeking to reverse
the Final Judgment handed down by the Higher
Court.

In March 2016, the Company received the final
decision letter from Qinghai Procuratorate which
states that, (a) the grounds raised by Ms Leung
in the review cannot be established; (b) Ms
Leung’s argument of inapplicability of the PRC
law was rejected; (c) it was correctly decided
that the Change of Exploration Right Agreement
was in breach of the legal right of HKFSMIH, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and
(d) the legal right of the Group’s investment
in the PRC should be protected under the PRC
laws.

The Group has appointed the PRC lawyers to
handle the matters in regaining its controlling
power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI. In the opinion
of the directors, the aforesaid legal proceedings
have no material impact on the financial position
and operations of the Group as the Group is still
in the process of regaining the controlling power
over QHFSMI and IMFSMI which had already
been de-consolidated since 2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F 75 8 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by transaction
basis, to measure non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interest and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which non-controlling interests is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 75 8RR Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z =%

3.

i e Bl BRI L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus non-controlling
interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to

is able to exercise control.

use its power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Accounting for production sharing
contracts

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

75 R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 ==

T e N L (TS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Accounting for production sharing
contracts (Continued)

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as

either:

(i)

(if)

Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

Joint operations: where the Group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities
of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The structure of the joint arrangement;

The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by

recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F 75 8 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated into HK$ at the closing
rates. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
exchange reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and the
use by others of the Group's assets yielding interest,
and dividends, net of rebates and discounts. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) sale of crude oil is recognised from the Group’s
share of income (including cost recovery oil,
investment recovery oil and share oil) according
to the terms stipulated in the contract, details of
which are set out in note 33;

(ii) sale of electricity and heat is recognised upon
the transmission of electricity and heat to the
customer; and

(iii) interest income is recognised on time proportion
basis using effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 75 8RR Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—_ZE—RAF T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after reassessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
Goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to
each of the relevant CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (see note 3(l)), and whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

75 R R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—T—AF+—A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

()

Goodwill (continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value
less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value-in-use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is
charged in other operating expenses in profit or loss and
is provided as follows.

- Exploration and evaluation assets under oil
production business is amortised on unit of
production method.

- Interests in oil production sharing contracts
under oil production business is amortised on
unit of production method.

- Sea area use right is amortised on straight-line
method over the terms of the right of use.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z =%

3.

e e Bl B E L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()]

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress (“CIP")) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.

Other than oil properties, depreciation is provided to
write off the cost less their estimated residual values, if
any, over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

The shorter of lease terms
and 29 years

10 to 15 years

3 to 10 years

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Leasehold improvements,
furniture, office equipment
and motor vehicles

Depreciation on oil properties is provided to write
off the cost of oil properties using unit of production
method utilising only proved developed oil reserves as
the depletion base.

The assets’ estimated useful lives, depreciation methods
and estimated residual values are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F 75 8 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

V)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

CIP represents property, plant and equipment under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. Cost comprises direct
costs incurred during the periods of construction,
installation and testing. CIP is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
and depreciation commences when the construction
work is completed and the asset is ready for use.

An asset is written down to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

Prepaid land lease payments

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under
an operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on straight-line method over the term of
lease/right of use except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of benefits to
be derived by the Group from use of the land.

Impairment of assets (other than
financial assets)

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, intangible assets and interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—_ZE—RAF T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

0

Impairment of assets (other than
financial assets) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or CGU (see note
3(h)), discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015

3.

BERXESTTHREME @)

U]

EE(FTEEMBEE)R
5 (&)

fWE—REE 2 RESHE (AR
FERHEXRALEREERS
F)VHFEREREE ZEEL
BREEREH AT @ & 58 - R E R
BARSER S  RIFAEEE
DRER - BBV BRERRZE
MERABEKREE ELERT
EEER R B HEERIR
TEMEREED -

WEREBBRELRAMERD &
EZEREEEMEREERT AR
Yo e 58 IR INEZ REETR
BBIEEFEARREEERME
ER N EREE 2 RH{E - REHE
DR R R BRIEMRRE A
ENRES -—BEMBREELR
EfMESEFEEREE ELIHER
TREBEBERIEZE YR
SEAETE{S M-

ERABENDERKEEEXRDE
H B (2EMFE3(h)) ZfHEHREK
Reng KARATREEFRE
HIBRE MEBITRERBRIRET
LHeERBEMEREESRS
EXBUFERR G-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—T—AF+—A=1T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating lease. Where the Group has the right to use
of assets held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss using
straight-line method over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of coal is determined using
weighted average method. All other cost is determined
using first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Financial assets

Recognition and measurement

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

De-recognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method, less any impairment loss. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ=—Z—AF+-A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. Financial assets are impaired if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the assets and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables has been incurred, the
amount of loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is
reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015

3.

EX

(o)

BETBRM

rgl;
~
W
—

BEEE (&)
HHEERE (&)

68 FH R R U B R IR
HIRREREE AEBESRZEE
REELEAFRRRSRE (T2
BARELEZRREEER)ZMHB
BEZRERME (B RERE
AEZERNE)NR2AERE
ZEBRAB - BRESBENRELR
HEAEBERERPER -

WERREBBESERD MEH
IR R BB R R ERE LY
=R AR B ERRZRE
EiE ERBERBEE A THEEH
BB EREERBINEERRE
ZREBERA - BREENED
HAE MRS RTHER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of
the statement of cash flows presentation, cash and cash
equivalents include bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued. Any transaction costs associated with the
issue of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accruals, bank and other borrowings, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders and convertible
bonds.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3(g)).

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables, accruals and amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders

These are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital
at the option of the holder, where the number of shares
that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability and an equity
component.

Convertible bonds that contain both financial liability
and equity components are classified separately into
respective liability and equity components on initial
recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of
the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the call option for
conversion of the bonds into equity, is included in equity
as convertible bond equity reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z =%
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component (Continued)

Liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost using effective interest method whilst equity
component will remain in equity until conversion or
redemption of the bonds.

When the bonds are converted, the convertible bond
equity reserve and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred to
share capital and share premium as the consideration
for the shares issued. If the bonds are redeemed, the
convertible bond equity reserve is released directly to

accumulated losses.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

These are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F 75 8 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation. All provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF scheme. Assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plans (Continued)

According to the relevant regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiaries of the Group operating in the PRC are
required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments,
whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of the basic salaries of their
employees to the scheme to fund their retirement
benefits. The scheme is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or other post-retirement benefits
beyond the employer contributions. Contributions under
the scheme are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they are accrued to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for unused annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the reporting date. Non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation
The Group operates equity-settled share-based

compensation plans for remuneration of its employees
and directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F 75 8 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

For other goods or services received by the Group
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation, they are directly measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if
vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the equity instruments
granted vest immediately unless the compensation
qualifies for recognition as asset, with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve in equity. If vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the
vesting period, based on the best available estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of equity instruments
that are expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number
of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates. No adjustment to expense
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting
date, when the vested share options are later forfeited
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that these will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants are recognised in profit
or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants relating to the purchase of assets
are included in liabilities as deferred government grants
in the statement of financial position and are recognised
in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in
gross under “Other income” in the consolidated income
statement.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable

segments:

° Oil production

. Qil and liquefied chemical terminal; and
o Supply of electricity and heat.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ=—Z—AF+-A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product line requires different resources
as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers are priced with reference to prices charged to
external parties for similar orders.

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that finance costs, income tax and corporate
income and expenses which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are
not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but corporate assets
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated
to a segment, which primarily applies to the Group’s
headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

EX

(x)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(y) Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R 3% M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE—Z—AF+-_A=1+—HBILFE

102

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
rarely equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Depreciation

Other than oil properties and CIP, the Group depreciates
its property, plant and equipment using straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 29
years. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of these property,
plant and equipment.

(ii) Impairment of receivables

The Group’'s management reviews receivables on
a regular basis to determine if any provision for
impairment is necessary. Impairment loss on receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables.
Allowances for impairment of receivables are
determined by management based on the repayment
history of its debtors and the current market conditions.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.
Management reassesses the impairment of receivables,
if any, at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R 3% M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4., BARETTEFTRHAE &)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(iii) Estimated impairment of goodwill (iii) BEZMEHFRE
The Group tests on annual basis whether goodwill BB 3N 2 FEHBUR - A&
is impaired in accordance with the accounting policy EegFlmERarBimE-
stated in note 3(l). The recoverable amounts of CGUs WeEESEM RO EEETIRE
are determined based on value-in-use calculations. TREEZFEERMETE - B
These calculations require the use of judgement and EREFAYBEAKAREES
estimates of the future cash flows expected to arise BUEEAZARKRBREREZHE R
from the CGUs, the timeframe for the cash flows et NEERTREREBAZE
forecast and the suitable discount rates in order to M#EEREEBRREUGFEARR
calculate the present value. Details in impairment B RE 2 FBEHN M B E
assessment are set out in note 16 to the financial fgaEt16 o
statements.

(iv) Estimated impairment of intangible (iv)y BEFREEMATRERMRE
assets and validity of the Songliao ERZERM
Contract
The recoverable amount of interests in Songliao REE K 2 a2 AT e & BB iR IR
Contract is determined based on the income approach. NEBTE - ZEE R EEREA
These calculations require the use of estimates about HEAERERE WIRERAH
future cash flows, discount rate and oil reserves. In the RE - ETHITRF EEEYHA
process of estimation, management makes assumptions BHEERE KARAMBEEED
about future cash flow, costs and oil reserves. Details % o RERE 2 S IEE AN M iR
in impairment assessment are set out in note 17 to the LA

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(iv)

Estimated impairment of intangible
assets and validity of the Songliao
Contract (Continued)

As described in note 3(a)(i), the directors of the
Company found that Mr. A was formally charged by
prosecution authorities in the PRC for illegal operation
crime, possibly involving allegations about improper
conduct in obtaining of the Songliao Contract. The
directors of the Company consider that the Charge
is only at a preliminary stage and it is not possible to
estimate the outcome on the Group's oil production
business and financial position, arising from the Charge
against Mr. A. Nevertheless, it is possible that the Group
may not be able to exercise its right under the Songliao
Contract and its Oil Production Assets may be fully
impaired if the Songliao Contract becomes void when
Mr. A is found guilty for his suspected improper conduct
in obtaining the Songliao Contract. Having taken into
account of the legal opinion, the directors consider
that the Songliao Contract will continue to be valid
and will be executed as planned as the Group has close
working relationship with the State-owned Enterprise
and up to the date of authorisation for issue of the
consolidated financial statements, there is no indication
from the State-owned Enterprise regarding any potential
claim or questioning on the validity of the Songliao
Contract. Where the actual outcome of the Charge
is different with the directors’ expectation and with
significant adverse change, it will have significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements, in particular
the Group’s intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R 3% M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4., BARETTEFTRHAE &)

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Control on QHFSMI and IMFSMI

As described in notes 3(a)(iii) and 3(a)(iv) to the financial
statements, as soon as the Group had discovered the
loss of QHFSMI's exploration licence, without the
Company’s knowledge, consent or approval, the Group
obtained advice from its legal advisers. Given the
discovery of the loss of significant controls over QHFSMI,
the Board is no longer in the position of maintaining
the Group’s power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI. In March
2016, the Company received the final decision letter
from Qinghai Procuratorate in favour of the Group.
As the Group is still in the process of regaining the
controlling power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI, the Group
was still unable to exercise of its power over QHFSMI
and IMFSMI. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider that it was inappropriate to consolidate the
financial statements of QHFSMI and IMFSMI into the
Group for the year and these two-wholly owned entities
have been de-consolidated since 2010.

Estimation of oil reserves

Oil reserves are key elements in the Company's
investment decision-making process. They are also an
important element in testing for impairment. Changes
in oil reserves will affect unit of production depreciation,
depletion and amortisation recorded in the financial
statements for oil properties and intangible assets
related to oil production activities. A reduction in
oil reserves will increase depreciation, depletion and
amortisation (assuming constant production) and reduce
net profit. Oil reserve estimates are subject to revision,
either upward or downward, based on new information,
such as from developing drilling and production
activities or from changes in economic factors, including
product prices or development plans. In general,
changes in the technical maturity of oil reserves
resulting from new information becoming available from
development and production activities have tended to
be the most significant cause of annual revisions.

(v)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE—Z—AF+-_A=1+—HBILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(vii) Taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
provisions in the period in which such final tax liabilities
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
it is considered probable that those assets will be
recoverable. This involves an assessment of when
those deferred tax assets are likely to reverse, and a
judgement as to whether there will be sufficient taxable
income available to offset the tax assets when they
do reverse. These judgements are subject to risk and
uncertainty and therefore, to the extent assumptions
regarding future profitability change, there can be a
material increase or decrease in the amounts recognised
in the consolidated statement income statement in the
period in which the change occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R 3% M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4., BARETTEFTRHAE &)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(viii) Fair value measurement (viii) 2 F{EFTE

A number of assets and liabilities included in the HAREERBHRECETEER

Group's financial statements require measurement at, BEARATENERHELEHA

and/or disclosure of, fair value. FEEE -

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial NEBEMBERIEVBEERBEZ

and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market AT EFEEEEAMISAEER

observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs BABLREIE -BEAVFEFERN

used in determining fair value measurements are RAza AEHERGERMNET AR

categorised into different levels based on how ANEZABEREMDER TR

observable the inputs used in the valuation technique &

utilised are:

Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for identical E—: HRAER 2 ERMS®RE
items (unadjusted); (REEFE)

Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs other B BMMAENUIINZEE
than Level 1 inputs; S HE A B REAE:

Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from F=: AOEBREAE (B
market data). PTEETmHEE)

The classification of an item into the above levels is BEDBEBEEZEBER 2 ATERNE

based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a BESFEXE  HRERBAEM

significant effect on the fair value measurement of the DEZE PER - EHRHENIER

item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in R EBBER -

the period they occur.

The Group measures the certain assets and financial RZE—RAE+_A=+—A0 'K

assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value as EEEATEFEETEERRA

at 31 December 2015. Detailed information in relation FHEFABRIMBEE - BHEAQ

to the fair value measurement are set out in notes 14, FEFTEZFFHERERMEE14

21 and 41. 2141 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z =%

4.

e e Bl B E L

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Valuation of convertible bonds

The directors of the Company use their judgement in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique for the
Group's convertible bonds which are not quoted in the
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by
market practitioners are applied. The fair value of the
financial liability and equity component are estimated
by an independent firm of the professional valuers. The
fair value of these components varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change
in these variables so adopted may materially affect the
estimation of the fair value of these components.

Estimated fair value of the acquired
intangible assets

Fair value of sea area use right is determined based on
excess earnings method. These calculations require the
use of estimates about future cash flows, discount rate
and production capacity. In the process of estimation,
management makes assumptions about future cash
flow, costs and production capacity.

Going concern

The directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption
that the Group will be able to operate as a going
concern in the foreseeable future, which is a critical
judgement that has the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The assessment of the going concern
assumption involves making a judgement by the
directors, about the future outcome of events or
conditions which are inherently uncertain. The directors
consider that, after taking into account of all major
events or conditions, which may give rise to business
risks, that individually or collectively may cast significant
doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out
in note 3(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has the capability to continue as a going
concern.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015

4.

BERGFHFTRHAE &)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

R ES ZEE

RRABEREREH G R ELR
MIEHMEZ AEBE T MRESTERE
BEEERM -KAMS2EEE
BEAZAEERN - 2RAENRE
@mAbD 2 A ERFEEGEMEL

RAETUARET - ZF# D 2 A FE
AETIBRRZTAZEME T
EH°%%%QSZ§ZEH%E

FHZERI RN FEZ B RRE

WKRBRFLEE 2fhsT 2

P
BIEE Rz N FETRBBREK
SEEE -BRAEAEREHER

RIRE - BhIR K L ERE 15??"
REFHRREP - BEESRRKRE

o BOR R EE BRI RER ©
HEEE
RARERDENKAEERAIAR
AREABBLE 2 RIFERE

EMBHmE - ZBRRBEKRHE
HEEMBRRACHERE Eﬂﬁ
BEXREN HEEKERK
E"ﬁ&§$%$EiTﬁEZ$
BRI 2 AR SR A8 RAE H I - 48
%F%QW%%%W%%Mm%ﬁ
AR R T R B (7T AL 18 Bl 3k
H%;ﬁ#ﬁ%%’“Ziﬁﬁ
BIZHBEREMHZIMARE &
ERRAEERENTELE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R 3% M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5.

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to the
financial statements. Revenue from the Group’s principal
activities and other income recognised are as follows:

AEEZ EBXBERM BRI T IE-
AEBET2EBZHEIECEREMBKA

0T

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—REF T -0
FET FAET
Revenue U 2%
Sale of electricity and heat HERSE 46,805 125,824
Sale of crude oil 5 R 40,675 102,099
87,480 227,923
Other income H ik A
Bank interest income w7 A E WA 24 70
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE BELE&EZ WS
plant and equipment - 59
Government grants IS 6 B 1,168 5,858
Gain on extinguishment of non-current K $#5IE R BN 15 30 2 Y a6
borrowings (note 27) (BFsE27) = 2,867
Sundry income FHEBA 37 125
1,229 8,979

Government grant is mainly unconditional grants from the local
government in the PRC to the Group to compensate for the
heat energy supplied to the local central heat station.

BT EE /PR BUTEAEE 2
AR ERMMITE T EPHAE
U ERBE 2 F (B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &% —

e e Bl B E L

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

6. DEEH

The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared ZK’*IE*E?J{“*HHWZKEIM@Ei&M
segment information based on the regular internal financial HOREDEEIREARE BB H I LIRS
information reported to management of the Group for their Ex%ﬁﬁﬁ%zfﬁZW*Bﬁﬂiﬁﬂ‘ﬁEiHM
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's business EOEMGRESEEN MAKEEERE
components and review of these components’ performance. EITARRE 2 EB D DIRRARERE
The business components in the internal reporting to EEMERBRBEET AEECS B
management of the Group are determined based on the THWEDHE-

Group's major product and service lines. The Group has

identified the following reportable segments.

(a) the Oil Production segment represents the business of (a) EHDE EERES:
oil production;

(b) the Qil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment (b) MR TRISSED I B
represents the business of operation of oil and liquefied EmmRREEIRIEE FER
chemical terminal, storage and logistics facilities (New MImEBEEY (KFEHRILZD
segment during the year); and )R

(0) the Supply of Electricity and Heat segment represents (0) HREMESE BEREEERERE
the business of generation and supplying of electricity %f%"
and heat.

There was no inter-segment sale and transfer during the year REATESBEEZHEREER(ZT

(2014: Nil). — PO ) o

0il and Liquefied Supply of
0il Production Chemical Terminal Electricity and Heat Total
AmRRE

Eh tIRBHR HEHE @z
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HKS$'000 |  HKS'000 |  HKS'000 |  HKS'000 |  HKS'000 |  HKS'000 |  HKS'000 |  HK$'000
“2-hf | “F-MF | ZR-2F | —R-0F | ZB-1f | _F-0F | ZB-1f | _T-0F
TER FET TER FET TERL FET TiERL TiEn

Reportable segment revenue: BEIENE:

From external customers RENEEP 2 W& 40,675 102,099 - - 46,805 125,824 87,480 227,923

Reportable segment (loss)/profit REANE (FB) /57 (6411.973) | (612,210) 24,193 - (90,073) |  (271,662) |  (537,853) |  (883,872)

Bank interest income BAFSHA 23 39 - - - 27 23 66

Gain on extinguishment of BEFRDER 2 M

non-current borrowings - 2,867 - - - - - 2,867
Depreciation il 14,076 17,631 - - 29,121 29,898 43,197 47,529
Amortisation of prepaid land lease ~ TEff T EFAR S

payments - - - - 679 696 679 696

Amortisation of intangible assets BYAESH 4,392 8,400 - - - - 4,392 8,400

Impairment loss of goodwill BB HERE - - - - - 62,662 - 62,662

Impairment loss of intangible assets & &E 2 FHERFE 408,954 441,894 - - - - 408,954 441,894

Impairment loss of property, nE BERERERBES

plant and equipment 33,843 185,136 - - 48,618 175,456 82,461 360,592
Impairment loss of BRI HASHEZRERE

prepaid land lease payments - - - - 6,106 17,032 6,106 17,032
Reportable segment assets BESBEE 629,222 | 1,151,507 577,712 - 152,129 24417 | 1,359,063 | 1,375,924
Additions to non-current segment AEEERHABEELM

assets during the year 45 61,846 - - - 248 45 62,094
Reportable segment liabilities BEDEAR 300,362 409,137 263,900 - 101,176 102,878 665,438 512,015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R 3% M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ=—Z—AF+-A=1+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEHR (@)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

PALEEZE

BENBEMENzET

2 LS A

MBRRT2INAEEEIEWHEHFZ

the consolidated financial statements as follows: HERIMT -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-RE —PHE
FExT FAET
Revenue U 2%
Reportable segment revenue and E D R R kAR
consolidated revenue 87,480 227,923
Loss before income tax F?Fﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁ
Reportable segment loss WEDIEEE (537,853) (883,872)
Finance costs B 7% FX, 7R (20,049) (10,577)
Other unallocated income E AR o B A 9 492
Other unallocated expenses EMRDERZ (77,282) (17,264)
Consolidated loss before income tax BTSSR AI4R A B 18 (635,175) (911,221)
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-RE —PHF
FExT FAT
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets BELHEE 1,359,063 1,375,924
Property, plant and equipment Y B MR 59 67
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEGELFERE 96,249 3,710
Other corporate assets HtrEEE 55,455 444
Group assets REBEE 1,510,826 1,380,145
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities WMENDIFEEE 665,438 512,015
Convertible bonds AR EFH 141,450 -
Other corporate liabilities HirEaE 16,727 10,205
Group liabilities REEBE 823,615 522,220

All revenue from external customers are located in the PRC

(domicile). Geographical location of customers is based on the

location at which the goods are delivered. No geographical
location of non-current assets is presented as substantial non-
current assets are physically based in the PRC.

FERBIEEPZEEBURTE (B
) BPMAEMERIREMR
R ABM IR EE BRI
KRB FAit W EZ5EREBEEMEM

& &y

2 o

1#4&: ]

ERERREERERAT / —T—LFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7 Bt o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Revenue from the major customers is as follows:

TEER (&)

KEXEREPZWzmMT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-afF —Z—mF
FHET FHT
Customer A (derived from the Oil BEA(RIRRERDHE)
Production segment) 40,675 102,099
Customer B (derived from the Supply of EFB (KRR EEHESE)
Electricity and Heat segment) 13,710 60,187
Customer C* (derived from the Supply of BFC* (KRR EAEMH-ES )
Electricity and Heat segment) 14,514 -
Customer D* (derived from the Supply of EFED* (FRIFRZEMES )
Electricity and Heat segment) 12,716 -
81,615 162,286

* Amounts for Customers C and D for the year ended 31
December 2014 had not been disclosed as the revenue from
each of these customers were less than 10% of the Group’s
revenue in that year.

BEPCREFDRBE-_Z—HF+=
A=t—BILFEZeBHAAEE &
RREBUZEEL 2 REINAEE

ZFWEZ10% °

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BABAEA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-RE — T4
FERT FHEIT
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR E S 2 HEE R
(note 28) (P 5E28) 9,268 -
Imputed interest on other borrowings R—F ARz EMmERz
due within one year BHE 5,191 5,748
Imputed interest on non-current FE B 18 R R S IR AR AR R
borrowings and amount due RIEZHERN S
to non-controlling shareholder 5,590 4,829
20,049 10,577
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R 3% M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. KRFIBHAIEE

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting)

BAGERABESING, (GFARTE

the following: g
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
—E—HF —E—F
FTET FHET
Cost of inventories recognised HRAEASZ 2 FERAR
as expense 30,863 83,840
Depreciation (note 14) WE (MzE14) 43,220 47,638
Amortisation of prepaid land lease At LA EREE S (HFE15)
payments (note 15) 679 696
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEENE (ME17) *
(note 17)* 4,392 8,400
Fair value loss on financial assets ERAFEFABRCUBEEL
at fair value through profit or loss* NFEEE* 126 -
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR BN & 998 1,085
Impairment loss of goodwill (note 16) ez REERE (iE16) = 62,662
Impairment loss of intangible assets mEEEREEE (H:E17)
(note 17) 408,954 441,894
Impairment loss of prepaid land lease FEN T ERIBE 2 BEEE
payments (note 15) (K$3E15) 6,106 17,032
Impairment loss of property, Y- BREREE2REEE
plant and equipment (note 14) (FFEE14) 82,461 360,592
Loss/(Gain) on disposals of property, HEME WELRRHEZ
plant and equipment BiE (W) 494 (59)
Operating lease charges on land and T REFEREENER
buildings 2,588 3,872
Employee costs, including directors’ BINA BEESHE
emoluments (note 12) (FfFEE12) 30,593 30,943
* Included in “Other operating expenses” on the face of * Bt ARG EBRERZ [HMEEH

the consolidated income statement.

Depreciation expenses of HK$38,761,000 (2014:
HK$42,953,000) and HK$4,459,000 (2014: HK$4,685,000)
were included in cost of sales and administrative expenses

respectively.

e

P EFI 238,761,000 7L (— T — P4

42,953,000 7T ) & 4,459,000 7T (=&
— Y4 : 4,685,000 70) 2 B EE A S E AR
RREITHRER -

ERERREERERAT / —T—LFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

INCOME TAX CREDIT

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group had
no estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong

Kong for both years.

Fr 8B A

HRAEERMEFEHEEEBEHRK
EEEASFERTOEN WAL BERE L
SRR B -

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RfF — T
FET FET
Current tax — the PRC EHHE -+
— Current year —AEE 7 48
— Over-provision in prior years — BT FEREEE (1,704) (715)
Deferred tax — the PRC RIERITE —
— Current year (note 29) —ARFEEF (H5E29) (101,502) (150,780)
Income tax credit BRI A (103,199) (151,447)

Reconciliation between income tax credit and the accounting

loss at applicable tax rates:

BERREFAEZMERA ARG R
ZHBRWN

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E—-afF —T-mF

FHET FHET

Loss before income tax B PSR A 1B (635,175) (911,221)

Tax at the applicable rates to loss in HRFP BB e E#R 2

the tax jurisdictions concerned EERERAMETE ZHIE (151,526) (226,821)

Tax effect of non-taxable income FERBUMA 2 TG E (6,418) (807)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR BB E 46,436 72,463
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary AEREHEE BB E

differences (936) (1,356)

Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RERRBEB2BBEE 10,949 5,789

Over-provision in prior years BEFERBEREE (1,704) (715)

Income tax credit Frig®Biat A (103,199) (151,447)

Branches of China Era in Beijing and lJilin, the PRC are subject
to PRC enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 25% (2014:
25%) for the year.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F 75 8 R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

10.

11.

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors did not recommend any payment of
dividends during the year (2014: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company are based on the following data:

iz B

FR-EFEFMRMNEMBRE (ZF
—POF ) o

BRER

AL AR SR 518 TR 8 A
TS

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
—E-HF —Z—mF
THERT FHET
Loss for the year attributable to RAUFEEREAREEZ
the owners of the Company for AKRAREBAEBLEARFEEE
the purpose of basic loss per share (492,568) (673,621)
Number of shares R4 EE ‘000 000
(Re-presented)
TR TR
(g=E7))
Weighted average number of RAUFtEEREAREEZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of T AR A 9 B
basic loss per share 3,198,407 2,985,854

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares. For the year ended 31
December 2014, the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue was restated, after adjusting for the bonus
elements in the shares issued under the placing (note 30(i)).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, no adjustment has been
made to the basic loss per share amount presented in respect
of a dilution as the impact of the convertible bond outstanding
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amount
presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares in issue.

BREABEBRDLIBREARGHEE ARG
BEREBERNEFOBRAE - BE_F
—WEFTZR=+—HIFE KRRE
REDHTZRN 2ANMAZELHFR
% ERETEBRZMEFHHERET
(M$3E30() ) -

BE_ZT-AF+-_A=+—HLFE"
HRARAI 2 AIRREFH25 2 81K
EABREeREGRESYE Y EHMSE
BRI BREABERSBEFHARE-

HE-2-WET-A=+—BLFE
IR E BT EAEEREERR

ERERREERERAT / —T—LFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7 Bt o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

13.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

12. RERIHX (ERESHE)

2015 2014

HKS$'000 HK$'000

—E-hF —E—mEF

TET FET

Wages, salaries and allowances T&- e kER 27,888 28,445
Pension costs — defined contribution RIRE AR — F B HFURRET &

retirement plans 2,705 2,498

30,593 30,943

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a)

13. EERFENUBESHFMALTHE

Directors’ emoluments () EEMS
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees in kind scheme Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fe 2R RIREA
ok BENEA RN @gt
Wi zE TER THER THET TET
2015 —B-If
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Wang Meiyan TRELT - 780 - 780
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung REBELE
Admiral - 725 18 743
Ms. Jin Yuping 2FNRT 0) - 120 - 120
Mr. Lan Yonggiang EoKREE (ii) - 390 - 390
Independent BIFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Wang Jinghua IHERE 36 - - 36
M. Lee Hoi Yan FHBREE 120 - - 120
Mr. Fung Lam Shan HE Lk AE (iii) 71 = = 71
Ms. Zhao Hangi HEEZ L (iv) 59 - - 59
286 2,015 18 2,319
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R 3% M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 13. EERTANEBSHFMATHE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) (&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE=M<E (@)

Salaries, Contribution
allowances  to retirement

and benefits benefit
Fees in kind scheme Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e EER ERAE R
we EWREH FHEI R st
Wi sE FEL FEL FEL FET
2014 —E-mF
Executive directors BITES
Ms. Wang Meiyan FEEMLL - 856 - 856
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung REELE
Admiral 581 - - 581
Ms. Jin Yuping EEFLT (i) - 10 - 10
Mr. Lan Yonggiang Bk EE (ii) - 22 - 22
Mr. Wang Donghai ITREEE (v) - - - -
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Wang Jinghua TIHELRE 36 - - 36
Mr. Lee Hoi Yan FHREE 85 - - 85
Mr. Lan Yonggiang EoKEEE (ii) 46 - - 46
Mr. Choi Chi Fai BEEBRE (vi) 35 - - 35
783 888 - 1,671
Notes: B 5T
(i) Appointed on 22 July 2014. (i) RZZE—WNFLA=-_+-HAE
EiEo
(ii) Appointed on 22 July 2014 and re-designed as an (i) R-ZE—WFLA=-+=—HE
executive director on 8 December 2014. ZE YR _ZT—NF+=A
NAEATARITES-
(iii) Appointed on 28 May 2015. (iii) R-E—RERA-+NHE
EE
(iv) Appointed on 6 March 2015 and resigned on (iv) RZZT—hE=ABEZ
11 September 2015. T TR=ZF—REFNLA+—
HEfT-
(v) Resigned on 2 December 2014. (v) RZE—NF+=-_A_-H#
fFo
(vi) Resigned on 31 July 2014. (vi) RZZ-—WHF+A=+—HE
fFo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2014: Nil).

There were no arrangements under which a director
of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2014 Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group during the year included 3 (2014:
2) directors and their emoluments are included in
the above analysis. Details of the emoluments of the

13. EERFENUBESHFMALTHE

(#&)

(a)

(b)

EEME (®)

FR AEELBAARBDEES
MERME  (FRMAREELR
AR 7 BE N AFRBERME (=
T-MOE|E) -

FR YEECAARAREERER
REREEAME 2L (ZF
—EE ) e

TfusESHFEMAL

FA-AEEBLUESFHALE
B (Z2—WF -Mu)EF-
BZMEFBER2E LXMW -F
AT (ZZ—MHF: =41)

remaining 2 (2014: 3) individuals during the year are as ATZHEFBEROT
follows:
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
—E-FfF —E 04
FET FAET
Basic salaries, housing benefits, ~ EA#ZH & EE28k-
other allowances and benefits EHAZB R EYRF
in kind 1,560 1,490
Pension costs — defined RIS RA — EBEHR
contribution retirement RUK & T 5T 28
benefit plans 36 34
1,596 1,524

Number of the remaining highest paid individuals whose
emoluments fell within the following band is as follows:

B& N T AT EE 2 8% T 5o 5
ALTHEHEWT:

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mEF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000/%8 70 2 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the above highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office (2014: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 35 3R 3% M &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

ES
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture, office
il Plantand  equipment and
Buildings properties machinery  motor vehicles ar Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BENEEE.
B BORE
g3 RRRE BEREE RAE ERIR @it
TET T T TR THET TET
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mE-A-H
Cost KA 138,552 400,806 322,816 27,806 5,930 895,910
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 23 47E RE (22,025) (163,774) (113,914) (16,572) (2,312) (318,597)
Net book amount REHFE 116,527 237,032 208,902 11,234 3,618 577,313
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z-IE
TZAZT-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENSEEE 116,527 237,032 208,902 11,234 3,618 577,313
Additions RE - - 167 798 61,187 62,152
Transfer from CIP ERAAETR - 56,262 - - (56,262) -
Disposals fe - - - (183) - (183)
Exchange differences EFER 2,717) (8,203) (4,736) (352) (180) (16,188)
Deprediation (note 8) & (firis) (4,467) (13,983) (25,151) (4,037) - (47,638)
Impairment loss (note 8) HERE (f1:s) (65,819) (179,320) (107,860) (2,194) (5,399) (360,592)
Closing net book amount FREEDFE 43,524 91,788 71322 5,266 2,964 214,864
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015~ R=Z-WE+-FA=1—H
kZE-1%5-A-8H
Cost KA 135,279 447,150 315,356 32,491 10,676 940,952
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 7E REE (91,755) (355,362) (244,034) (27,225) (7,712) (726,088)
Net book amount FHFE 43,524 91,788 71,322 5,266 2,964 214,864
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-Z-1f
+ZA=Z+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FORAFE 43,524 91,788 71,322 5,266 2,964 214,864
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) W B AR (His37) - - 1,161 1,039 310,582 312,782
Additions hE - - - 59 - 59
Transfer from CIP BREgrEIER - 27 - - (221) -
Disposals HE - (290) - (204) - (494)
Exchange differences EREE (5,147) (4,094) (7,865) (110 (371) (17,587)
Depreciation (note 8) & (Hizks) (4,360) (10,519) (24,556) (3,785) - (43,220)
Impairment loss (note 8) HERE (fris) (22,485) (32,617) (25,713) (494) (1,152) (82,461)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 11,532 44,495 14,349 1,1 311,796 383,943
At 31 December 2015 R=B-EE+ZA=+-H
Cost KA 128,733 425,733 301,258 27,420 320,386 1,203,530
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ 2&FTE kA E (117,201) (381,238) (286,909) (25,649) (8,590) (819,587)
Net book amount REFE 11,532 *44,495 14,349 1,11 *311,796 383,943
* Balance of HK$46,167,000 included in these amounts * SFAZE LML 246,167,0008 T 4
represents property, plant and equipment relates to the HEBCEMAIVRESNABENY
Songliao Contract entered into with the State-owned ER 1
Enterprise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 7% 3R R Y B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Buildings are located on the prepaid land lease payments in the
PRC (note 15).

During the year, provision for impairment loss of oil properties,
furniture, office equipment and motor vehicles and CIP
relating to the oil production of HK$32,617,000 (2014:
HK$179,320,000), HK$494,000 (2014: HK$1,587,000)
and HK$732,000 (2014: HK$4,229,000), respectively, were
recognised in profit or loss to write down to their recoverable
amounts due to the decrease in the projected crude oil prices
and amendments to the drilling and extraction schedules,
totalling HK$33,843,000 (2014: HK$185,136,000)(note 17(ii)).

For the year, provision for impairment loss of buildings,
plant and machinery, furniture, office equipment and motor
vehicles and CIP relating to the supply of electricity and heat
business (the “Electricity and Heat CGU") of HK$22,485,000,
HK$25,713,000, nil and HK$420,000 respectively (2014:
HK$65,819,000, HK$107,860,000, HK$607,000 and
HK$1,170,000, respectively), were recognised in profit or loss
to write down to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable
amount for the Electricity and Heat CGU was determined,
based on fair value less costs to sell. This is a non-recurring fair
value which has been determined by income approach, and
is therefore within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The key
assumption used to determine the fair value less costs to sell is
that the management expected the sales of the Sunlight Group
would be completed in 2016.
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BRERAE A REETIE/RERER
#5951 432,617,00008 70 ( =& — P 4F -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ =T —AF +—A=T—HILFE

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15.

16.

These represented the Group's interests in leasehold land
and land use rights in the PRC, held without a specific term.
Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position are summarised as follows:

syt
A& <F TA

AREXAEERTERFA ZEET

FHD > T 0 o+ 4 MR A28 o R
RABBIRRE 27 Y EEES Bt

T

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-HF —E—UEF

TER FHET

Opening net carrying amount FAREFE 11,263 29,687
Exchange differences PEH =% (1,346) (696)
Amortisation (note 8) #iE (MYEs) (679) (696)
Impairment loss (note 8) REEE (MiFE8) (6,106) (17,032)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 3,132 11,263

For the year, impairment loss relating to the Electricity and Heat
CGU of HK$6,106,000 (2014: HK$17,032,000) was recognised
in profit or loss to write down to their recoverable amounts.

FRN - BRARETREESU 2 RERIE
6,106,000/ 7L (==& — M4 : 17,032,000
B BN IESRERARREHE Tk E

TEAC
GOODWILL 16. BHE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
—E-HF —ET—mF
THERT FHET
At 1 January R—HA—H
Gross carrying amount REEE 323,366 323,366
Accumulated impairment 2R E (323,366) (260,704)
Net carrying amount REFE - 62,662
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—-BLHFE
Opening net carrying amount FAREFE - 62,662
Impairment losses (note 8) BAEEE (KIE8) - (62,662)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE - -
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
Gross carrying amount BREBE 323,366 323,366
Accumulated impairment 2R E (323,366) (323,366)
Net carrying amount BREFE - -

ERERREERERAT / —T—LFFR
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16.

GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill as at 31 December 2014 arose from the acquisition of
the Sunlight Group in 2010 and was allocated to the Electricity
and Heat CGU based on value-in-use calculations, performed
by an independent firm of professional valuers, APAC Asset
Valuation and Consulting Limited (“APAC"), covering a detailed
5-year budget plan followed by an extrapolation of expected
cash flows at the growth rate stated below. The growth rate
reflected the long-term average growth rate for the country in
which the entity of the CGU operates. Key assumptions used
for value-in-use calculations were as follows:

16.

]

R-ZZE-—MF+-R=+—HZBEEL
B-ZE-ZFUBFEEE YORER
BREEAEMN ABLEEMGEMTE
REEFEMBERARDR ([GEREERT
mEREREESE  BRFAZOF
BEE BRETXAEREXEER
HHRERE BERERMBESELENUE
BEEMERR ZRAFHBEE - AR
AEEREEZIERRET:

TR

(&)

2014

—ZE—E

Discount rate W= 15%
Growth rate HEX 3%

Key assumptions included profit margins, which had been
determined based on past performance, and management'’s
expectations for market share, after taking into consideration
published market forecast and research. The discount rate used
was pre-tax and reflected specific risks relating to the Electricity
and Heat CGU.

In 2014, total impairment loss of HK$255,150,000 was being
identified for the Electricity and Heat CGU and that in respect
of goodwill of HK$62,662,000 was recognised in profit or
loss. The remaining impairment loss was charged pro rata to
the assets related to the Electricity and Heat CGU. For the
year ended 31 December 2014, impairment losses in respect
of property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease
payments of HK$175,456,000 (note 14) and HK$17,032,000
(note 15) respectively, were recognised in profit or loss to write
down to its recoverable amounts in light of the decrease in
expected selling price of electricity and heat and persistent low
profitability for the Electricity and Heat CGU.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015

TERRBEMNEE MABETIRESB
ERAREEBLHAREAMTHER R
MERETHDBEIEL 2 TBREE - ik
AFRERIEHA IRRERERSE
EBENBEZEERR-

—E-NF BERBBERSELEH
& #£255,150,0008 T 2 R EEE - W5t
R 7 R EE 862,662,000/ TR B R
R 8T 2R EE B IE L Bl AR R &
BEReELBEUZEE-HE-_T—NF
TZA=t+—HLFE ENRBHAEE
BREERRERSESEMATENSHE
Kk - B BYE  BE REERTEN T
HEIE 2 R EEE S RI175,456,00078
7t (M 5E14) }%17,032,0005% 7T (P 5E15)
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREE
Exploration Interests in
and oil production
evaluation sharing Sea area
assets contract use rights Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note (i)) (note (i) (note (iii)
BAR BEHREBLE
THEE ERZER BEERE @t
FEL TR TR BT
(FIEEG)) (B (i) ) (B 2 i) )
At 1 January 2014 RZE-—mE—HA—H 3,748 1,417,897 - 1,421,645
Amortisation for the year (note 8) AEFHHE (MH58) (35) (8,365) - (8,400)
Impairment loss (note 8) REEE (M1:8) (2,363) (439,531) - (441,894)
Exchange difference X Z5 (127) - - (127)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R-Z-—NFE+-A=+—AR
“E-1%¥—-H—H 1,223 970,001 - 971,224
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) WEsH B (HE37) - - 116,602 116,602
Amortisation for the year (note 8) AEFEHE (H58) (27) (4,365) - (4,392)
Impairment loss (note 8) HEBE (M) (506) (408,448) - (408,954)
Exchange difference R ERE (57) - - (57)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-AF+-A=+—H 633 557,188 116,602 674,423
Current portion (included in prepayments, ~ EDERER2 (FF AR R 4
deposits and other receivables (note 20)) & E b fEURFRIE (K 5E20) ) - - (2,380) (2,380)
Non-current portion FEEH S 633* 557,188 * 114,222 672,043
* These amounts represent intangible assets of HK$557,821,000 * ZESTHAERBCEMIINRNERYN

relate to the Songliao Contract entered into with the State-
owned Enterprise.

FERA Y A2 & 557,821,000/ 7T °
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17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Exploration and evaluation assets

These are mainly classified from exploration and evaluation
assets arising from the Oil Production segment when the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting the
oil resource had been determined and that the commercial
production commences are recognised initially at cost. The
valuation does not take into consideration of the legal case
as described in note 3(a)(i). Should Mr. A be found guilty, the
balance may be required to be fully impaired.

Interests in oil production sharing contract

These were recognised at fair value on business combination
and are charged to profit or loss on unit of production method.
Details of the oil production sharing contract are set out in note
33.

For the purpose of impairment testing as at 31 December 2015,
the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
exploration and evaluation assets and interests in oil production
sharing contract relating to the oil production operations in the
Songliao Basin, Jilin, the PRC was determined based on value-
in-use calculations, which is derived by using discount cash
flow analysis. The discount cash flow analysis uses cash flow
projection for a period of 16 years up to 2031 (2014: 17 years
up to 2031) with a growth rate of 3% (2014: 3%) for direct
cost and cash expenses. The growth rate reflects the long-term
average growth rate for the country in which the entity of the
Oil Production CGU operates. The pre-tax discount rate used to
determine value-in-use in 2015 is 19% (2014: 19%).

In order to determine the recoverable amount of the Oil
Production CGU, management made reference to the valuation
report, issued by APAC, on the Group’s oil production sharing
contract together with other variables and assumptions related
to the operations. Key assumptions used for discounted cash
flow calculations are as follows:

17.

BmILEE (&)

(i)

BHRMFHEE

ZEAENEERROBERZ R &
BRI FEIGEEEER  TEN
REERDBZ RN EEEETS
o VB R AR R EL R E B
FE3(@)()PTll 2 R R B o BAS W H
BRI MBI ARERE.

ERMEBAZAOzER

ZERDREBAFZATERR X
IEEFMEBBERMNG - EBER
AEEHZFBHNMFEIS -

BRR-T—AF+-A=+—BZHE
AR S - B R B RAE A8 E
HEBZWE BB RERE - BIRRT
HEEREGEBEZAN IS
ke G ERREAEETESHAT
BRETREDMEE - IRBRESTED
WMERBRE —T=—F I+ FHH
(Z2—WF HE2E_T=—F1t++t
FHB)zHeREEN BEKAK
BEMT s BRERA3% (ZT—NEF:
3%) HMERERBERRCELEME
BEEMTERRZ RAFIHERE R
—E-hFANBEEFEREBEZRBIA
PFIREH19% (ZZT—MMF:19%) °

RETERRSELELZI KOS
BOERES2EZTAAENGHARE
EREBRZANBHZHERSER
Hitb BERAEBNEB L BRRMET - 47
BHREMEAETNTERRMT

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—mF

Pre-tax discount rate BRI AT ITER K 19% 19%
Growth rate # R K 3% 3%
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17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Interests in oil production sharing contract (Continued)

Key assumptions also include budgeted gross margin based
on past performance, estimated crude oil reserve of technical
report and management expectations of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to these intangible assets.

During the year, total impairment loss of HK$442,797,000
(2014: HK$627,030,000) has been identified for the Oil
Production CGU and is charged pro rata to the assets related
to the Oil Production CGU. Impairment losses in respect of
property, plant and equipment, exploration and evaluation
assets and interests in oil production sharing contract
of HK$33,843,000 (2014: HK$185,136,000) (note 14),
HK$506,000 (2014: HK$2,363,000) and HK$408,448,000
(2014: HK$439,531,000) respectively, were recognised as
expenses in profit or loss as the assets’ carrying amounts exceed
their recoverable amounts.

As results of decrease in the projected crude oil prices and
amendments to the drilling and extraction schedules, the
carrying amount of the Oil Production CGU has been reduced to
its recoverable amount of HK$603,988,000 (after impairment)
as at 31 December 2015, any adverse change in the key
assumptions used to calculate the recoverable amount would
result in further impairment losses. The valuation does not take
into consideration of the legal case as described in note 3(a)(i).
Should Mr. A be found guilty, the balance may be required to
be fully impaired.

17.

BILEE (&)

BfeE: (&)

(i)

g

ERMEBRZAN 2R (F)

TERBRNBERBBERENEEZ
BHEEMNE RS 2 G Rm#EE
NREBBRBZTHER - MEBFE
KB MRREZEBVEAER
MR ERR-

FR BRERRSEEEMHBFE
&5 18 458 4 5442,797,0008 T (= F
— P94 627,030,000/ 70 ) + I 3% b Bl
SABRERRCELENCEE A
B BRE REE IR R EEE
REBREBEZEN 2 BERRREERE
B B A33,843,00008 T (—ZF—M
4 :185,136,0008 7t) (MizE14)
506,000/ 7T (= Z — P 4F : 2,363,000
7 7T) 408,448,000/ 5T (—ZF — M
4 :439,531,00087T) - HREERE
B8 E AT UL 0] & 58 i R 1B 25 FE SR A
gzo

A TE B R Ve (B 18 TN K IS 7T S 4% K 5
EEMEX R-_E-—AF+-_A=+—
B EhARSELEMZREEER B
ZH A Y [E & 58603,988,000% 7T (0
BB E®R) AT E R e &5
FERBMERERMTFES  19GE
B — S L BFBERBE - HELRERE
B 53 (@) () AT it 2 R R - AL A
HEB TR AR IBRE
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17.

18.

19.

i > -
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. BEEE (&)
Notes: (Continued) Miax: (&)
(iii) Sea area use rights (iii) g1 {5 A
Sea area use rights as at 31 December 2015 was acquired MARFTBHAZZ—AFTZATN
through acquisition of Shandong Shundong as detailed in Az s - R=F—RF+=A
the Company’s announcement dated 18 December 2015 and =t+—HZEEEREDFERIE LR
represent prepaid operating lease payments for maritime space IESRES - At BILR 2B TEN 2
in Shandong, the PRC. The fair value of sea area use rights as KEBERNF - RNUEE B R ER
at the date of acquisition were valued by a firm of independent B2 AV EHBLGEARIRANEER
valuation firm, APAC. The valuation was based on the income- fEEE - HEERWASEI IR A B
based approach and the excess earnings method is adopted. B EET
Key assumptions and parameters of the valuation as at the date HERNKERHZFERZRZ2EMN
of acquisition are as follows: i
Expected commencement of production 2017 TEHRE —T—+tF
Annual production capacity 3.6 million tons FES 3.6 B
Capital expenditures RMB751 million EARAX ARBISIEETT
Discount rate 14% BLIR & 14%
Sea area use rights are assessed for impairment when facts and BEEERENRAEGEEREZEERE
circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of sea area use DRERINEI£%E  BEFERES/ED
rights is less than its recoverable amount. AR -
The Group entered into various memorandum of understanding REE R B ERE( T RIEEEBER
and a written intention letter for funding in the oil and liquefied BE L ERRESEE—HEBER
chemical terminal business. E=R)
INVENTORIES 18. #&
Inventories as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were raw R-ZE-—RFR-_T—NF+_A=+—
materials. AziFEREME -
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. BEREZFRERE
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-HF —T-mF
FHET FAT
Trade receivables JEWE 5 HR1A 30,545 33,142
Bills receivables FEWE & 3,540 3,422
34,085 36,564

The Group normally allows trading credit terms ranging from
30 to 120 days (2014: 30 to 120 days) to its established
customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. For
certain customers with long established relationship and good
past repayment history, a longer credit period may be granted.
Trade and bills receivables are non-interest bearing.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015
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19.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the

19. EWESRERERE (&)

FEUE 5 0R1E M RIBIR BT B2 IR

invoice date, is as follows: IR U lNE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E2-AfF —Z -
TER FET
1 - 90 days 1£290H 13,600 36,477
91 — 120 days 912 120H - 25
121 - 365 days 1212365H 12,463 36
Over 365 days 365H M 8,022 26
34,085 36,564
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no trade and bills RZE-—RAFER-T—NEF+_A=1+—
receivables that were individually determined to be impaired. A I EWE 5 ERIE & R 8 5 & F R
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. B AEETERZEEHRTEEMER

o

Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are past due

EBHERREZERREZRARERZ

but not impaired are as follows: BRECOMTINT -
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EB-RHE —E-ME
TER FET
1 - 60 days past due but not impaired BEI Z60H B I KB E - 36
Over 60 days past due but not impaired  #HI608 A 1B KIFE 20,485 26
20,485 62

As at 31 December 2015, trade and bills receivables of
HK$13,600,000 (2014: HK$36,502,000) were neither past
due nor impaired. These related to the different customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade and bills receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to several customers that had a good track
record of credit with the Group. Based on past credit history,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered to be fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any
collateral in respect of these balances.

RZZE—RAF+ZA=+—8"

13,600,000 T 2 B E 5 BR1E K £k
—Z— P4 1 36,502,000 7T ) I £ 38 HA
MO E -z SRIBD BN BB ENRTHE 2
TREFEB-

EEHERAREZERKEZRBAREE
HEHREPEW REEPRAKE 2B
AEECHRT -REBETEELE A
REEERTESAEHAZFERIIK
BAFRARWE A EREMRE HA
RAE BRI ER R - AR E AL EFL
AERBF AT
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. ENRE RERHMEW
RECEIVABLES MIE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hF —E—mEF
FET FET
Prepayments TET I8 60,670 1,711
Deposits (note i) e (M) 30,314 326
Other receivables (note ii) Hfth E U FRIE (B EEI) 4,295 3,935
Current portion of amortisation of I s P R B 8 2 BN R &
sea area use rights (note 17) (BtsE17) 2,380 -
97,659 5,972
Notes: Bt

Included in the amount was a refundable deposit of
HK$30,000,000 paid for the proposed acquisition. On
16 September 2015, the Company entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding with
the vendor (a third party) pursuant to which the vendor
intends to sell and the Company intends to acquire
the entire issued share capital and all shareholders’
loans of Reap More Limited (“Reap More"”), a company
incorporated in Samoa with limited liability. The
consideration for the proposed acquisition is still subject
to further negotiation and has yet to be determined.
According to the information provided by the vendor,
Reap More (itself or through entities controlled or
agreed to be acquired by it) entered into enforceable
contract(s) to acquire and co-invest for 90% equity
interest with the following companies to engage the
clean energy projects:

ZTHEBRIERKBEEARMNZ
Al 3R B4 $©30,000,000/8 7T« ;A =
E-AFAA+TARB ARAFHEE
F(—BE=ZNIALTRERY
RO HRBRETE BHETE
HEMARRGEWELZEERA
A8z 2R EHTRAR
FERRER Z QB RNREE:
AWML ZBERAR - EHRKEE
Az REMAFE-FEBRER
BE-REESRHZEN ZE
(AEEBEEHRABNEZ
BEHE) BT A BRI L AT 8 Bl AT
ZAaRANERARRERE TR
FFERERTA R Z90% R Atk

(a) Ningxia Dalishi Power Generation Company (a) EEENNBEEERAT
Limited
(b) Ningxia Shenpeng New Energy Power Generation (b) EEBBHEREEERD

Company Limited
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ENARE -ZeREMER
FIE (&)

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20.
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (Continued) Mz : (#&)

21.

()

(if)

(Continued)

() Ningxia Dalishi Taiyangshan Power Generation
Company Limited

)

(%)

(0 EBENHABLEEER

NG

(d) Ningxia Dalishi Solar Power Generation Company (d) BEENMARGREEAR
Limited NG
(e) Shangri-La Geji River Hydro Power Development (e) BRBANRENKEREE

Company Limited

(f) Lushui County Jinman River Hydro Power
Development Company Limited

On 2 November 2015, the Company entered into a
supplemental memorandum of understanding with the
vendor, Reap More and the vendor’s guarantors and
the payment of a refundable deposit in the amount of
HK$30,000,000 by the Company to the vendor. On 24
March 2016, the Company and the vendor entered into
a second supplemental memorandum of understanding
to carry out the due diligence review by the Company
on Reap More and negotiation of the finalisation of
formal sale and purchase agreement will continue for
a further period of six months (i.e. on or before 15
September 2016); and the refundable deposit in the
amount of HK$30,000,000 has been refunded in full
before the date of the authorisation of the consolidated
financial statements. Details of the proposed acquisition
are set out in the Company’'s announcements dated
17 September 2015, 2 November 2015 and 24 March
2016.

Included an amount of HK$2,360,000 related to Mr. A
and receivable from a company which is independent
to the Group. This amount has been settled before
the date of authorisation for issue of the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

These represented investments in the listed equity securities
held for trading purposes. The balances at the reporting
dates are stated at fair values which have been determined by
reference to their market prices at the reporting dates.

21.

(i)

R A

(f) EKGE A KEREER
BEERA

E—RAF+—A=H ARF
HER ZLYREHERARLE
RERE R BARFIMRE R X
< & %430,000,0007% 7T 2 7] iE [@4%
& NR-_E—ARF=ZA=-+WA-
KAABIHEFRILE DR
B NERARFEZEETT
ERAECRIXNEERRCER
18— E N E A BB (B =F
—A~"FERLATHRBHZH)  BAE
30,000,000/ 7T 2 Al iR Bl iz & A 1%
BHEEEHERERABIEE
BRE -EREWESHE L FBHR
AATBHA_ZE—RENA++
H- ZFE—hF+—AZHEZZ
—RNEFEZA-tHBZR M-

=T

BIEEAK £ B 22,360,000%
TR WEKR—MB LR AEE
pA/NCIRE S LY T Rl =N
Bz BB LS

URAFEFABRRZMBEE

ZEEBENRRE LTREESZKRE
FIER H Mg AR HE AR ZHERA
FEEH AFESREXRBSEHZ™
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22.

23.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT
BANKS AND IN HAND

Pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2015 and 2014
earned interest of 0.35% to 0.50% per annum. Cash at banks
earns interest at the floating rates based on the daily bank
deposits rates.

As at 31 December 2015, included in the pledged bank
deposits and cash at banks and in hand of the Group were
approximately HK$22,000 and HK$140,969,000 respectively
(2014: HK$1,003,000 and HK$71,273,000 respectively) of bank
balances denominated in RMB placed with the banks in the
PRC.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through the banks that are authorised to
conduct the foreign exchange business.

Subsequent to the reporting date, certain bank accounts have
been frozen by the court in Taiyuan City and the frozen amount
of bank balances was approximately RMB500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$590,000), details of which are set out in
note 44(c).

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables were non-interest bearing and are normally
settled on 60 days (2014: 60 days) terms.

Ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

22.

23.

CEFRITERURRBITER
RFERE

R_E—RAFR-_ZT—NF+_A=+—
Bz BEFRITERIEFFNER035%E
0.50%5F B - SRITHEFRIEF HRITER
FIEZZEFIEE B -

R-ZE—RAF+_A=+—H AEED
EHRBTFRARBTEFEFHERSE
FERRPESRBITUARBEZR
1714715 9 B #922,0007% 7T 5 140,969,000
BT (ZZF—M4F : 5 5141,003,000% T
71,273,000 7C) °

ARBTEEE AT BINE - RIBFER
GMEEZEP) Rk (BE - EERMNE
ERRE)  AEE R EREREETI
PEXERZRITHARBELBBINE -

RiE AR ETRITEPERARTE
BoRAE RITEBRZRESEROARE
500,0007T (48 M #9590,0008 7T) » &
BRI EE44(0) °

BNEZKRE

ENESZEBEAEENBEN6R (=
—PUE 600 ) NEEE -

BNESRBREZEZAAZER ST
T

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

—ZE—-FF —ZF—OF

FET FHET

1 - 90 days 1£290H 3,164 9,702
91 - 120 days 91£120H - 670
121 - 365 days 1212365H 5,218 7,373
Over 365 days 3658 A 2,790 162
11,172 17,907
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24.

25.

26.

T e = L (TS

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, HMEAFRIBREFTR
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z-HF —
FET FAT
Construction cost payables FEAT R SRR AR 315,200 112,185
Deferred government grants iR FE B 4 B 708 1,116
Other payables H h & 55108 30,459 6,997
Amount due to a shareholder A — R R EFKIE 1,300 1,200
Accruals FEFTFIE 36,162 22,908
383,829 144,406
Amount due to a shareholder is unsecured, interest-free and [EN—2BRRERAELERFE 2ENED
repayable on demand. KB °
AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 25. BEFERRRNRIE

SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

The balance as at 31 December 2014 with a principal of
HK$17,138,000 was unsecured, interest-free and due on 1 July
2016.

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying value of interest-free
loan of HK$13,887,000 was determined based on the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows discounted using
effective interest rate of 14.82% per annum. As a result of
a change in the terms of the loan on 31 December 2014, a
gain on extinguishment of HK$3,251,000 was recognised in
2014. Amounts of HK$1,951,000 and HK$1,300,000 had been
credited to capital reserve and non-controlling interests in
equity respectively (note 31) in 2014.

BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were
all repayable within one year. These bank borrowings was
denominated in RMB, charged at a fixed interest rate of
12.35% per annum and guaranteed by an independent third

party.

26.

RZF-AF+TZA=+—8 ENFE
BERRRERERT 2 RERKME

R-ZT—NE+_A=+—B24ALEAR
17,138,000 T 2 &5 82 B EEIF - R B X
RZZTE—XEFLA—AHH-

RZZE—MNF+=A=+—H" 13,887,000
BLREERZRABERGHFTARRRESR
ﬁZﬁ@(@%aviﬂﬁma%ﬁﬁ)

CHRZEERZGRRZZE—NF
+ A=+—HB8X% R_ZT—NFHER
3,251,000/ T2 MsE M zm - M =T — I
ﬁi 1,951,000/ 7T 52.1,300,00078 JT 2 758

DRI AR N2 A RS R IR
ﬂﬁ(WaEBU

AT AKX
R=F-BFR=F-ME+=A=+—
A2 R ER —F P -

fﬂfﬂﬁ?xu}\ﬁﬁ%aﬂa 17 [E TE A R
12.35%:T B WM —ZBBILE = H1EE
fRe
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

27. HAbER

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—EHF —E-NEF
FHERT FH&T
Current: TE
Obtained from the independent MEBYE=F:
third parties:
Loan B, unsecured (note (i) BB mE I (MEEa)) 5,682 -
Loan C, unsecured (note (i) ERC |IEW () 1,107 -
Loan D, unsecured (note (i) BD - SR (BE()) 15,734 -
Loan E, unsecured (note (i)) BRE I (KM EEG)) 1,670 -
Loan F, unsecured (note (i) BERF S () 1,584 -
Loan G, unsecured (note (i) BRG  EEE (MY EEG)) 4,195 -
29,972 -
Non-current: JERE :
Obtained from the independent HEBIE=R:
third parties:
Loan B, unsecured (note (i) BB #IEHE (HEG)) - 6,232
Loan C, unsecured (note (i) BC \EE (EG) - 1,156
Loan D, unsecured (note (i) E KD - AR (M EEG)) - 15,794
Loan E, unsecured (note (i) EFE I (MEE>G)) - 1,613
Loan F, unsecured (note (i) B RF - R (MEG)) - 1,608
Loan G, unsecured (note (i) BERG EIEE (K EEG)) - 3,927
Loan H, unsecured (note (ii)) BFH EIEE (K EEG)) 9,675 8,868
Loan I, unsecured (note (ii)) Bk mEEE (HREG)) 2,858 2,773
12,533 41,971
(i) These loans were interest-free and were originally ZEERRERBVFRER -F
agreed to be repaid in July 2016. —~"FEtAE
(ii) As at 31 December 2015, these loans are interest-free R-ZE—hAF+_A=+—8H %
and repayable in July 2017 (2014: July 2016). EERARE WEAR_Z—LF
T ABE(ZFT—MmOF: Z_T—X
FtAH)-
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27.

28.

OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

In 2014, the Group had negotiated with the lenders of loans C,
E, F. G, H and | to modify the existing terms of the borrowings.
As there were modifications in the terms of the borrowings,
these had been accounted for as extinguishment of non-
current borrowings. Accordingly, a gain on extinguishment of
HK$2,867,000 (note 5), representing the change in the present
value using the new terms, was recognised in profit or loss in
2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the effective
interest rates of the loans were 8.58% (2014: 8.58%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has renegotiated with
certain lenders on the terms of the loans H and | (2014: loans
B and D). The directors consider that such revisions do not
represent a substantial modification of the original loan and
accordingly, the effective interest rates have been adjusted at
the date of modification.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

CB2 and CB4

According to the sale and purchase agreements dated 5
November 2007 and 8 April 2008, zero-coupon convertible
bonds with face value of HK$400,000,000 (“CB2") and
HK$380,780,000 (“CB4") will be issued on the fifth business
day following the date of receipt of mining licence in respect
of the underlying mine. CB2 and CB4 are convertible into
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.60
and HK$0.25 per share respectively. As the mining licence has
not yet been obtained, CB2 and CB4 are not issued and are
not recognised in the financial statements. As mentioned in
notes 3(a)(iii) and (iv), as the exploration licence was transferred
without the Company's knowledge, consent or approval, the
Company is now seeking for legal opinion on this matter.

27.

28.

Hi g @)

R —NF AEECHEERCE-F-
G HERINERAER LUEIIERZRE
B -BHRERZEREREB WEB
EREEIERBBRAR Bt EEH WK
# /32,867,000 7T (IEES) « AHE 7 A
FBERZEFREZE ERT—0F
ZIEBEAER -

HE-Z—R&+t-_A=+—RHIEE"
ZEERHNERFH X A858% (=&
— P04 :8.58% ) °

—E-hAF+-A=+—H A&EH
HETERARERHR (ZF—MF:
EFBED) ZGRETERER -EER
B ZEEBILETRRABERRAE
FORBERMEEMERE BELR

o

R &S

TMRESE-_HESFRATRK
BxFEEALES

BRIEHRHAZTZ+F+—AREE=ZE
ZNFOANBZEEHZ BESHA
400,000,000 7T ([ ATk E % 5 —#E &
%) 380,780,000/ 7t ([ A2 AR &5 5
UHtES | ) v TE B A RREF B HRES
EHRBEREZHREBEARZFAAL?
AT - AR ESFE _EH R TR
&5 F UL EH 5 B 1% 5 B 8 A%0.60
BT R0.25B T KM AR AT KRG - BR
MAMBHFRER THRREFE _ME
ERABBESFENIESF S AT B
I 48 1A B 75 R R N RE R o 0 B 5 3(a) i) &
(iv)FTiRi - Bk RRE AR 2 &) AN ok
CARDNRIBEES M EZ BRI T HEE K
AEBRERESIERER -
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 28. WREZE &)
CB6 and CB7 JHRRESEABESRITERR
BEELtMES

In December 2010, the Company issued zero coupon RZE—ZFF+A ARAEBETEAS
convertible bonds (“CB6"”) in the principal amount of #H526,880,000/8 T 2 TR B A R EFH
HK$526,880,000 as a part of the consideration for the (TR EHFF A ESR])  EAWE
acquisition of China International Energy. CB6 bore no interest FREBERERZEDRE - AT RRESSE
and matured on 31 December 2015 and were convertible into AMEFREE R_ZE—DF+_A
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.08 =+ —BREHRARET AR EARHF
per share (subject to the standard adjustment clauses relating LEBESR0.08E T (B RIERND A 6
to share sub-division, share consolidation, capitalisation issues FAER0.80EIIT) HIARATIRD (AR
and rights issues) at any time after the issue date and has been WA AR - Bt & 0F « BAME 31T RECAR
adjusted to HK$0.80 as pursuant to the Share Consolidation. 2 BEFRER) - EAR T —1F
Any CB6 which remains outstanding on 31 December 2015 F+_A=+—BIHREL Rz ATRRE
shall be converted automatically into the shares of the BFEABEFHEBABRABRRATRG -
Company. Details of CB6 are set out in the Company’s circular AMRESFEAMES ZFFBERNABHA
dated 11 October 2010. ZE-EFTAT—RAZARRABEK-

As a part of the consideration for the acquisition of China AAR#ERIEFEEREREAEF
International Energy, a zero coupon convertible bonds (“CB7") Tz xERTEHME ER - BE-
in the principal amount of HK$526,880,000 shall be issued BT BB BARKRERBETASEH
upon the final and absolute dismissal, striking-out, withdrawal, 526,880,000 T2 TEE A KR EFH
discharge, release, settlement or discontinuance of a litigation ([ATMmEESFELHES]) ERIE
which existed at the date of acquisition of China International FEIEIBR G2 IR < S B - AREFFAE &2
Energy. Since the litigation was discontinued, CB7 will be issued b ATMRES BT ESFER AR AE
when written request for the issuance was obtained by the BRERBTERFBEIT - ATRKRESS
Company. CB7 bore no interest and matured on 31 December +tHESFREE R _Z—AF T A
2015 and were convertible into shares of the Company at =+ — BRI BRI AT B BEE A RE
the conversion price of HK$0.08 per share (subject to the %R ESR.08E T (BERIERG & 6
standard adjustment clauses relating to share sub-division, FER0.80/ETT) R R ARRIKY (A8
share consolidation, capitalisation issues and rights issues) at WA AR - Bt & 0F « EAME 21T KRB
any time after the issue date and has been adjusted to HK$0.80 HAZREREGR) - EAR T —0F
as pursuant to the Share Consolidation. Any CB7 which F+_A=+—BIREZRZATRRE
remains outstanding on 31 December 2015 shall be converted FEIHMESFEEDHBRBERARRMRG -

automatically into the shares of the Company.

The fair values of CB6 and CB7 were calculated using income AR ESE AU ES RATBMRESS
approach and are included in the convertible bond equity HEFTDRBRAESE Wt AR AR
reserve in the owners’ equity. wmo A MRESE RS-

As described in note 3(a)(i), in July 2015, the Company sought WK 3@ R=—E—RHFEA A&
an injunction against the holders of CB6 and CB7 from ARRB-EREH S REITRRESSE
completing and/or procuring the conversion and/or transferring AEFRAIRRESELHESZHEA
of CB6 and CB7. AFTER R HA B RER AR ES

FAREFRTRBRESE CHES-
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28.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 28. FAERAKREZ (&)
CB8 AlREFEN\MES
In September 2015, the Company issued approximately RZE—-—RFENA ARAEITH
1,898,734,000 convertible bonds (“CB8") in the principal 1,898,734,00017 7 & §8300,000,000/% 7T
amount of HK$300,000,000 due in 2018. CB8 are “E-NFRYPzABRERES (TR #]RK
denominated in HK$, unsecured, bear interest at 5% per BHE/\MEHF]) - AIRRESEN\IE
annum and will be matured on the date falling on the third FUAETTIIE - AR - F85% K AFR A
anniversary of the issue of CBS8. Interest will be payable on BMRESFEN\FEFETE=ZBEERZ
the maturity date. Neither the Company nor the holders of AR RS BREE B 2o ARA Ak
CB8 may demand early redemption of the CB8 in any event. AHMRES B N\BES 2 B AR RER
CB8 are convertible into the shares of the Company at the BRATEREMEBELARRESE\HE
holder’s option before maturity at an initial conversion price of FoF A AREER AT RRES
HK$0.158 per share (subject to adjustments). B\ EFEDBHIBREFR0I58E T
R BARRNRIRGD (BBRARE) -
The fair value of the liability components of CB8 was calculated MRESFEN \IESFBELD 22 FE
using market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible DIERETAIRRES 2 TSR EHE -
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the equity TRl AERERE s 2EE Wit
conversion component, was included in convertible bond equity ABBEARZ 2 BRESFESFHE-
reserve in the owners’ equity.
CB6, CB7 and CB8 recognised in the statement of financial R ISIRR R NTER 2 (TR ES it
position are calculated as follows: BF AMRESFELIESRITBRRE
HFE HEHFEOT :
CB6 CB7 CB8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARRES AR EF CE-V3-
FAHES ELHES EN#ES
FHEIT FHET FHET
Face value of convertible EETARKES cHEHE
bonds issued 526,880 526,880 300,000
Proceeds of issue (fair value BT
on initial recognition) (BXRERZAFE) 342,557 342,557 300,000
Equity component 1 % 2B (342,557) (342,557) (87,358)
Liability component BES - - 212,642

ERERREERERAT / —T—LFFR
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 28. AMARES (&)
Movement of liability component BERIEH
Movement of liability component for the years ended 31 Bz -—AFER-_FE-—HWNE+=H
December 2015 and 2014 is as follows: =T —HIEFEZBEHLHEEHWT
2015 2014
CB8 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-&F
CE-VdE —ZT—F
EN#ES s
S FHET
At 1 January w—HA—H - -
Issue of convertible bonds BITAIRRES 212,642 -
Transaction costs R KA (3,934) -
Exercise of convertible bonds ITEA BRI ES (76,526) -
Imputed interest expenses (note 7) HEANBER (M7) 9,268 -
At 31 December W+=ZRA=+—H 141,450 -
Current portion BNERER & (3,337) -
Non-current portion FEBNEAER &> 138,113 -
Movement of equity component o828
Movement of equity component for the years ended 31 HE-_ZT—RAFER=-ZT—NFE+=ZA
December 2015 and 2014 is as follows: =t—HIEFEZzEEHBEEHWT
CB6 CB7 CB8 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRRES TRRES TRRES
EAMES FLiES ENMES @it
TEL TEL FTEL TRL
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NF—HA—H 137,106 342,557 - 479,663
Exercise of convertible bonds TRAARESR - (71,258) - (71,258)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-MF+-A=t—HkK
1 January 2015 —Z-h%¥—-HA—H 137,106 271,299 - 408,405
Issue of convertible bonds RITARARES - - 87,358 87,358
Transaction costs RBMA - - (1,616) (1,616)
Exercise of convertible bonds TEABRES - - (31,439) (31,439)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-1f+-F=+-H 137,106 271,299 54,303 462,708
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28.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
Movement of equity component (Continued)

The fair value of the liability component of CB8 at the date
of issue amounted to approximately HK$209 million. Interest
expense was calculated using effective interest method with
interest rate of 18.5% per annum to the liability component of
CBS8.

In 2014, 1,370,000,000 new ordinary shares in aggregate were
issued, at the conversion price of HK$0.080 per share to the
bond holders upon the conversion of CB7 (note 30). As a result,
there was an increase in share capital and share premium of
HK$13,700,000 and HK$57,558,000 respectively in 2014.

During the year, approximately 696,203,000 new ordinary
shares in aggregate were issued, at the conversion price of
HK$0.158 per share to the bond holders upon the conversion
of CB8 (note 30). As a result, there was an increase in
share capital and share premium of HK$69,620,000 and
HK$38,345,000 respectively during the year.

28.

ARRES (&)
BEXreH (&)

RETH TRBREFEN\EHFEES
D2 A F{EZE209,000,000/8 7T ° F| BB
FB T8 B B ) R 5K DA F R 18.5% Ft 7] &
BEHFE ) \WEHFEELITE-

MN-ZE—NFE KRR BBRESE
BEFEIT R R IEH R E S K0.080%8
TLE 174 $£1,370,000,0000% 37 & 58 A (B
$130) cAH R —WERA RIS %
& I3 Hn13,700,000% 7T K 57,558,000
VI

FRN AARRABRBESFEN\HPESH
HEITHBEIR A RETRR0.1588 LM
EFHHFAE ANEITA H£49696,203,0000% 1
LA (M #E30) A RERZ A
K15 5 B 5 5l 1 5069,620,0007% 7T &
38,345,00058 7T ©
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29. DEFERRED TAX

Details of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised and

29. EFERIH

REERBEFENCHERAECHEBEE

movements during the current and prior years are as follows: ReERHEEEHFENT:

Fair value  Undistributed

Accelerated adjustment profit of

capital  on business foreign
allowances combination subsidiary Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B

MEE K EBasz MEAR
B ATERE R 7 K A @t
FHET FTET FTiET FTiET
At 1 January 2014 RZE-—W¥—F—H 21,228 (354,474) (7,488) (340,734)
Credited to profit or loss (note 9) ABEREE (H5E9) 38,806 111,974 - 150,780
Exchange differences ME =5 183 - - 183

At 31 December 2014 and RZE—WFF+ZA=+—H
1 January 2015 k=—Z2—-H%—A—H 60,217 (242,500) (7,488) (189,771)
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss (BBzRNG) GFrABRE

(note 9) (Ki5E9) (1,701) 103,203 - 101,502
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) WEEH B 2R (KIE37) - (25,502) - (25,502)
Exchange differences 0 5 =58 (2,577) - - (2,577)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZB-RZF+ZRA=+—-H 55,939 (164,799) (7,488) (116,348)
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29.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For the purpose of presentation in statement of financial
position, the following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

29. EZERIE (&)

HEFNPFBRRRME AT A B
i 1F th R E TR IR S R DA

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-—RF T -0

FExT FAET

Deferred tax assets R IBE E 55,939 60,217
Deferred tax liabilities FEBIBEE (172,287) (249,988)
(116,348) (189,771)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investment enterprises established in the PRC effective from
1 January 2008. The Group is liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by the subsidiaries established in the PRC
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of the loss of HK$49,774,000
(2014: HK$43,051,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the loss can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses will be
expired within five years under current tax legislation.

As at 31 December 2015, included in the above net deferred
tax liabilities are deferred tax assets of HK$55,939,000 arising
from accelerated capital allowances and deferred tax liabilities
of HK$139,297,000 arising from fair value adjustment on
business combination relate to the Songliao Contract entered
into with the State-owned Enterprise (a net deferred tax
liabilities of HK$83,358,000).

RIBHBEMEMSHE AP BEKILZIH
BRETIRZBEALI0% 2 M EH KA
AR B -_EENF-A-BELER K
SEARZERTBEKZZMBART =
ZENF-A-BREEZAEFNTMAIKZ
M S BB -

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H Xx&H
W #E5449,774,0008 T2 HIEHBE (ZF
— PO 4F : 43,051,000/ 7T ) & 3R E IE Fi 1R
BE ANE@ERE AR REHER
RO IR FE SR s R A B) B iz 5 18 LAE
W 2GR BIBRITHBED B
BEEBBERAFANIE-

RZE—RAF+-_A=+—8"  LiliEE
MBS EFEEIEMNRE NEE S| BNIE
HERHTE & 55,939,000/ 7T M BRI A 1 2
FREI M MMEA KB ERE M2 A TE
AR S| B AYIE IE B TE B 15139,297,000/%8
7T CRIERE I8 & {&/$%883,358,000/8 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z =%

aggregate of 369,417,012 new ordinary shares were issued
at the placing price of HK$0.145 per share to independent
investors. This placement was completed on 12 June 2015 and
as a result, there was an increase in share capital and share
premium of HK$36,942,000 and HK$16,624,000 respectively.
Details of the placement are set out in the Company's

announcements dated 18 May 2015 and 12 June 2015.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R
2015 2014
—E-1fF —mE
Number of Number of
shares shares
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
BRAEE O ]
T TEx Fhiz FHEL
Authorised: ETERRA :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREE 1B T EBR
At 1 January R—A—H 5,000,000 500,000 50,000,000 500,000
Share consolidation (note (iii)) & Bt (HEEEGi)) - - | (45,000,000) -
At 31 December R+-ZA=+—H 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRMBRA:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEIBTZERAR
At 1 January R—A—H 1,984,085 198,408 17,470,851 174,708
Issue of shares upon placing (note ()  RECER TG (M) 369,417 36,942 - -
Exercise of convertible bonds and aEABRRESRETRR
issue of shares (note 28) (HsE28) 696,203 69,620 1,370,000 13,700
Issue of shares for settlement of RBEEMEREEITRG
other borrowings (note (ii)) (Bf ity ) - - 1,000,000 10,000
Share consolidation (note (i) & Bt (M) - - | (17,856,766) -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—~H 3,049,705 304,970 1,984,085 198,408
Notes: Bt 5 -
(i) On 15 May 2015, the Company entered into a placing (i) RZE—RAFRA+HEAB ARQF
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which an RMERBIIEEHE Bt &%

369,417,012 3T LB E L EF0.145
BLZEEERBYREERT KBE
RZTE—RAFNATZBTA AR

(AL

VLS

71 m1E

&% Bl )136,942,0007% 7T

1216,624,0007% 7T - Bt & 2 5 IBH AN A
ANRBHA-_ZT—RFRAA+NBRZ
T-RAFENA+-BZAM-
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

In 2014, the Company and Maycrown Capital Limited
("Maycrown”) entered into the settlement agreement (the
“Settlement Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company
issued and alloted a total of 1,000,000,000 new shares under
the general mandate to Maycrown in consideration of full
and final settlement of the sum of HK$37,603,000 payable to
Maycrown. The closing market price of the Company’s share
at the settlement date was HK$0.021. As a result, there was
an increase in share capital, share premium and capital reserve
of HK$10,000,000, HK$11,000,000 and HK$16,603,000
respectively (note 31(a)).

Pursuant to a resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 7 October 2014 and approvals from relevant
government authorities, the Company consolidated every ten
shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each into one consolidated
share with a par value of HK$0.1 each with effective on 8
October 2014. Upon the share consolidation, total number of
issued shares changed from 19,840,850,617 shares with a par
value of HK$0.01 each to 1,984,085,061 shares with a par
value of HK$0.1 each and the Company’s authorised share
capital remained at HK$500,000,000.

All issued new ordinary shares in 2015 and 2014 rank pari

passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

31.
(a)

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein during the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share premium

(i) the difference between the combined net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 2001, over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefor;

30.

31.

PR (&)

BfsE: (&)
(i) R-Z—MF ARREXTAAEGR

(iii)

-%

A ([ER]) T —BEMER R ([
fEWE]) B AR AR — R
17 R il % 4 ££1,000,000,000% 37 B
MNFED EARTEWHRKREEENST
¥ 237,603,000/ 7T BUH - AR A
R EE B B2 T8 A0.021%8 T -
Bt A B fn i B R E A EE D B
3% 5110,000,000/% 7T * 11,000,000/ 7T
%.16,603,000/% 7T K& Fff3E31(a) ) ©

BER_ZE—NF+ALHETZRR
FRIAE F@B 2z RER RIEHEAR
IR E - RARBE HIREREE
0.01B Tz KRG & R —REE01E
TZAHKD R-_ZE—mE+ANHE
ER R & O E B ETIRG B8 A
19,840,850,617% TR EE0.01E T2
%17 ¥ Bk 4 1,984,085,06 118 & Ik @ &
0 NVBITZIRG - MART ZEERAR
/500,000,000 JT °

—hER-E-MEZMBECETH
TRRER T HEREBEEITROEFAR

AREREAZ BRI B
ISR R A EER DR

BEEE

(i) BRERAEEN_TZT—F2
BHRKBZBARZA G
BEFEBHARRBRMR
MEETZRAEE 2 Z58
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31.

RESERVES (continued)

(a)

Group (Continued)
Share premium (Continued)

(ii) the premium arising from the capitalisation issue
in the previous years;

(iii) issue of shares of the Company at a premium net
of the transaction costs associated with the issue
of shares; and

(iv) amount transferred from other equity reserves
upon exercise of share options and conversion of
convertible bonds.

Capital reserve

As described in note 30(ii) above, in 2014, pursuant to
the settlement agreement with Maycrown, the Company
issued and alloted a total of 1,000,000,000 new shares
to Maycrown as full settlement of HK$37,603,000
due to Maycrown. As the closing market price of the
Company's share was HK$0.021 at the settlement date,
there was an increase in share capital, share premium
and capital reserve of HK$10,000,000, HK$11,000,000
and HK$16,603,000 respectively in 2014.

In 2014, the Group entered into the borrowing
agreement with non-controlling shareholder. As at
31 December 2014, the carrying value of interest-
free loan of HK$13,887,000 was determined based
on the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows discounted using effective interest rate of
14.82% per annum. Upon the change of terms of the
loan on 31 December 2014, a gain on extinguishment
of HK$3,251,000 was recognised. Amounts of
HK$1,951,000 and HK$1,300,000 were credited to
capital reserve and non-controlling interests in equity
respectively (note 25) in 2014.
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31.

RESERVES (continued)

(a)

Group (Continued)
Exchange reserve

Exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from
their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation
currency (i.e. HK$) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in exchange
reserve. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy of foreign currencies set out in note
3(e).

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Under HKAS 32, convertible bonds issued are split into
liability and equity components at initial recognition
by recognising the liability component at its fair value
determined using market interest rate for equivalent
non-convertible bonds and attributing to the equity
component the difference between the proceeds from
issue and the fair value of the liability component.
The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost whilst equity component is recognised
in convertible bonds equity reserve until the bonds are
either converted (in which case it is transferred to share
premium) or the bonds are redeemed (in which case it is
released directly to accumulated losses).
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31. RESERVES (continued) 31. #E& &)
(b) Company (b) A21F
Convertible
Share Capital  bond equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RRES
RAEE BEXRE ERRE RiTEE “@st
FHT FHL FHL FHL FHEL
At 1 January 2014 R-_E—NFE—F—H 2,241,459 141,357 479,663 (1,513,968) 1,348,511
Issue of shares upon RABARRERE

conversion of convertible BTk (F5E28)

bonds (note 28) 57,558 - (71,258) - (13,700)
Issue of shares for settlement ~ REEEMERKEETRR

of other borrowings (FiFE30(i)

(note 30(ii) 11,000 16,603 - - 27,603
Loss for the year KEFEE - - - (753,433) (753,433)
At 31December 2014 and R=-EB-WE+=-A=+-H

1 January 2015 k-Z2-H1¥-HA—H 2,310,017 157,960 408,405 (2,267,401) 608,981
Issue of shares upon placing ~ RE&ERETRA

(note 30(i)) (B EE30()) 16,624 - - - 16,624
Shares issue expenses BIIROER (1,066) - - - (1,066)
Issue of convertible bonds BATARRES (Hi528)

(note 28) - - 85,742 - 85,742
Issue of shares upon RABARRERE

conversion of convertible BTk (Fi5E28)

bonds (note 28) 38,345 - (31,439) - 6,906
Loss for the year XEERBE - - - (398,500) (398,500)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1%

+=BA=+-H 2,363,920 157,960 462,708 (2,665,901) 318,687
Details of share premium and convertible bonds equity RARRDEERTRRES#En
reserve of the Company are set out in note 31(a) above. fEE BN LilkiiE31a) - &
Capital reserve arose from the Company's capital NEBEREARTR_EZTRHF=
reorganisation on 10 March 2005 and represented the AT B#ETHNERSANTIERRA]
reduction of share capital of the Company. B A B ©
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32.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has a share option scheme, which was adopted
by the shareholders on 24 June 2013 (the “Scheme”) and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from the date of adoption. Eligible participants of the
Scheme include the Company's directors, independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of
goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, any
person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company's subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on
24 June 2013, the general scheme limit of the Scheme is
set to 1,746,849,000 shares which have been adjusted to
174,685,000 shares pursuant to the share consolidation in
2014, representing 10% of the Company’s issued share capital
on the date of meeting, with the passing of ordinary resolution,
which allows the Company to grant further options carrying
the rights to subscribe for a maximum of 1,746,849,000 shares.
This is also the maximum unexercised share options currently
permits to be granted under the Scheme at any time.

Maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1%, of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

32.

LR AER ZHE

ARFBEBRRER T —=F/"A=+HEA
H—IEERET S ([5HE])) BRIES
TEUBSIEE] - BAIGTEI B ERA B B st
10FAN—BEER ez ERL2HER
BARRRBIZEE BIUFNTES AE
ErEMES AEEzEmKRBEHE
B AEEZER  AASEBIRENRE %
R EMBEMTIEZ ERALKERERAR
RAMB AR 2 ERFEZEARMER

BER-_ZE—=FXA-+tHWOASKTZ
BEENAE B2 —BRFAERED
R E A1,746,849,00008 0% 17 (2B #H —
T—FRH A AT R174,685,0008%
) (BRERITEHPEARRBDELT
BRAZ10%) BEZRRAZREBRR:
ARaa#E—SEENERZARE
1,746,849,0000% % 17 1 F) 2 & B o 1t 75
AR RERE D FIRE 2 MR
FEEREZSEE -

EEA+—EAAREAR REERETE
AERNZEBRRER2RERTZRRR
BB T FBBAR BN EMEBE#T
Pt 2 1% ° i — SR LB REE 2 B
Pk RIZBERR RS ERGBRERALE -

BYFRARRES FTBTHABRETER
RABEZFMBEAZERE BEL
ESBIENITE S 2 © o - FEE
FTZERABEARRFARG 2 EBRFT K
WY IERITE BN EZE 2 MHEAZE
B - W iB AN R A MM B B B 1TAR
19 20.1% 3k 48 {8 8 %15,000,000/%8 7T (1R
BRBEHABARGZREMESE)E
BIZEE SRR RS FESIREHRLME -

BERERREERERAT / —T—LFFR

145



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7 Bt o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—Z—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

32. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued) 32. UGB AER2EHE &)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within RbEREz ERARKEBRERRZ
14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal HiBaT148 REZ M - A E A INER IS
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise REHFIBTzBENRE FIRD 2 ERE
period of the share options granted is determinable by the ZITHEHBRARREERE  BHRT—K&
directors of the Company, and commences after a certain ERHERB mERBIATNSERER
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10 R E B BRFH10F skt ElE M 2 B
years from the date of the offer of the share options or the (AR P BEERAE) -

expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the BREZITEBHRARRERRE ED

directors of the Company, but may not be less than the higher BERATzE®SHE

of:

(a) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company'’s (a) RERELEREZ BBRARREKR
shares on the date of the offer of the share options; DB A2 P 2 W 1B

(b) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the (b) RATIRM AR EZEE R D ERE
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately B i AT A2 5 B 7R 3P 2 19
preceding the date of the offer; and WifE: &k

() the nominal value of the shares. (0 Mz EE

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends B AR M A AR, T R R A MR AR B s R IR R

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. A B ZHER -

There has been no share option granted or exercised since the BT —=FXARMTEILAR - W

Scheme was adopted in June 2013. As at 31 December 2015 Bk fTEERE- R_TE—AFR=-ZF

and 2014, the Group has no outstanding share option. —mFE+—A=+—8 AEBETEH X

TR
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33.

T e = L (TS

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT -
SONGLIAO CONTRACT

In August 2007, China Era, previously owned by Mr. A and
subsequently sold to the Group as a subsidiary in 2010, entered
into the Songliao Contract with the State-owned Enterprise to
develop and produce crude oil in Liangjing Block on Songliao
Basin in Jilin, the PRC (the “Songliao Oil Basin”).

In accordance with the Songliao Contract, China Era provides
funds and applies its technology and managerial experience to
cooperate with the State-owned Enterprise for the development
and production of crude oil in the Songliao Oil Basin. The
production period will be ended in 2031, unless extended.

China Era bears all costs required for the evaluation operations
and development operations. Operating costs incurred are paid
by the State-owned Enterprise and China Era in accordance
with 51% and 49% respectively. However, the State-owned
Enterprise’s portion of operating costs are advanced by China
Era and recovered from the production of crude oil.

Under the terms of the Songliao Contract, evaluation costs,
development costs and operating costs are to be recovered
according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil and investment
Remaining oil, after cost recovery, all applicable
taxes and royalty that might apply in the PRC, is shared in the

recovery oil.

proportion of 51% and 49% by the State-owned Enterprise
and China Era respectively.

In December 2009, the approval of Overall Development
Program from the State Development and Reform Commission
was obtained. The technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting oil are demonstrated. the State-owned Enterprise
is the holder of oil exploitation licence.

33.
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33.

i e Bl B R

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT -
SONGLIAO CONTRACT (continued)

Set out below is the summary of assets, liabilities and results for
the year recognised in the consolidated financial statements in

relation to the Group's interest in the Songliao Contract:

(a)

(b)

ERRBHRES
(%)

H-MESH

DATﬁﬁIJﬁA%é@?ﬁ‘xi&i’%ﬂpﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’\\\T’A
GHZEEERCAFEZEE BE
%%ﬁz*ﬁix-

Results for the year () FEXSE&
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HF —E-NE
FHET FAT
Revenue g =5 40,675 102,099
Other income H A ug A 18 2,898
Expenses 3 (99,780) (276,333)
Loss before income tax BTSRRI E 18 (59,087) (171,336)
Income tax credit T8 ®iat A 3 39,520
Loss for the year KEEEE (59,084) (131,816)
Assets and liabilities (b) EERAE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—HF —E—mEF
FET FAT
Property, plant and equipment V¥ BB R E 44,838 95,909
Intangible assets mEAE 633 1,223
Other non-current assets HAn3EmB & E 78,142 60,218
Current assets mENEE 10,496 18,389
Current liabilities mEEE (148,339) (124,447)
Non-current liabilities EmEBE (34,734) (41,971)
Net (liabilities)/assets (8fE) EEFE (48,964) 9,321
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33. OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT - 33. EHEBHEESHN-—NESY

SONGLIAO CONTRACT (continued) (#)
(c) Commitments (c) &¥E
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
—E-RF — &
FTET FHET
Other commitments: Ho b A
Contracted but not provided for BB RMERE &
in respect of administrative fee BB RS
and training fee 50,622 50,986
Operating lease commitments: A A R
Contracted but not provided for E&IABRMAE i K%
in respect of leasehold land BFARBERETREE
and buildings and equipment
rental 3,061 2,480
53,683 53,466

As detailed in note 3(a)(i), the directors of the Company found
that Mr. A was formally charged by prosecution authorities in
the PRC for illegal operation crime, possibly involved allegations
about improper conduct in obtaining of the Songliao Contract.
The directors of the Company consider that the Charge is only
at a preliminary stage and it is not possible to estimate the
outcome on the Group's oil production business and financial
position, arising from the Charge against Mr. A. Nevertheless, it
is possible that the Group may not be able to exercise its right
under the Songliao Contract and its Oil Production Assets may
be fully impaired if the Songliao Contract becomes void when
Mr. A is found guilty for his suspected improper conduct in
obtaining the Songliao Contract. The directors consider that the
Songliao Contract will continue to be valid and will be executed
as planned as the Group has close working relationship with
the State-owned Enterprise and up to the date of authorisation
for issue of the consolidated financial statements, there is
no indication from the State-owned Enterprise regarding any
potential claim or questioning on the validity of the Songliao
Contract.

AERE3(a)()FTRF il - R AR E F AL

BT Bl
He A g

B RENES

ZHEBENIES

IEEKEE T
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TR-ARAREZRR FHESEER
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34.

HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

34. ERDAHBARR K

2015 2014
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HF —T—mMF
s FERT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
Non-current assets ERMEEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 22 15
Interests in subsidiaries NI PNGIPA: £ 663,039 844,309
663,061 844,324
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEBREZ
through profit or loss WMBEE 24,818 -
Prepayments, deposits and ERNRIE -m2 Rk
other receivables H b & Y 5k I8 30,280 98
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEGFELRFERE 94,086 3,703
149,184 3,801
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b FE < 5RIB KR JEET BB 8,002 1,492
Amount due to a subsidiary FER —KM B R RIFIA 39,136 -
Convertible bonds R fR & 5 3,337 -
50,475 1,492
Net current assets RBEEFEE 98,709 2,309
Total assets less current EEHAERRBERE
liabilities 761,770 846,633
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE — M8 A R FRIA - 39,244
Convertible bonds Al E 138,113 -
138,113 39,244
Net assets EEFE 623,657 807,389
EQUITY e
Share capital A% 30 304,970 198,408
Reserves ] 31 318,687 608,981
Total equity B 623,657 807,389
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35. SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (a) RZE—hE+-_A=+—Hz=*x

December 2015 are as follows:

35. B2 E]

EMBARFEET:

Percentage of

ownership
Place of interests/
incorporation/ Paid-up share/ voting rights/ Principal activities and
Name establishment registered capital profit share place of operation
SR KNFEMS
NAEH B 3L 3t B BERRE/EMER REBLL TEERRBEHHY
Directly held
EERA
Smooth Way International Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary United States 100% Investment holding,
("BVI") dollars ("US$")1 Hong Kong
IEEEIR AR AR KBRS TERIET 100% REBRR &BE
Cheerful Dragon Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
BEARLA KBRS TERIET 100% REBRR &E
Precious New Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
ERERAT EBRRHES TERIET 100% REBRR &E
Mission Achiever Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 100% Investment holding,
("Mission Achiever”) * Hong Kong
Mission Achiever Limited BED TERIET 100% BEER B
(Mission Achiever | ) ¢
Indirectly held
BEEE
Energy Investments (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
BERRE (AE)BRARA &k ERBRIET 100% BEER B
Treasure Tone Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
ERBERAF &R ERRIET 100% REBRR &E
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. i &l (&)
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (a) R-E—RE+-_A=+—H2Z=E
December 2015 are as follows: (Continued) EMBRARFEBOT: (&)

Percentage of

ownership
Place of interests/
incorporation/ Paid-up share/ voting rights/ Principal activities and
Name establishment registered capital profit share place of operation
HMREL ERAEMS
DAREB B 3L s B BARE ZMER BREBDE TEXBREEHE
Indirectly held (Continuea)
BiEEE (&)
Kanson Development Limited BVI Ordinary US$200 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
Kanson Development Limited RERUES L®B200ET 100% BEER A%
Hong Kong Forest Source Mining Hong Kong Ordinary 100% Investment holding,
Industry Holding Company Limited HK$70,000,000 Hong Kong
BERRBEERERAF 3 % i®770,000,000/ 7T 100% REER &8
Sunlight Rise Limited BVI Ordinary US$2 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
AEERAF RBERAHE ERk2ER 100% REER &8
Pride Treasure Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
HEERAT 3 Li®iR10,000% T 100% REER &8
Precious New Energy Hong Kong Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
BN RAABERAA 3 ERRVER 100% REER &8
Precious New Energy Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
BN RREBRRA BB LERIET 100% REZKR BB
Mid-Ocean Hong Kong Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Limited (“Mid-Ocean”) * Hong Kong
HEREREBRAR 3 ERRVER 100% REER &8
Ontop Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
Hong Kong
LREREERAT 3 ERRVER 100% REER &8
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. BT (&)
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (a) RZE—hE+-_A=+—Hz=*x
December 2015 are as follows: (Continued) EMBARFBEOT: (&)

Percentage of

ownership
Place of interests/
incorporation/ Paid-up share/ voting rights/ Principal activities and
Name establishment registered capital profit share place of operation
SR KNFES
NAEH B 3L 3t B BERRE/EMES REBLL TEERRBEHY
Indirectly held (Continued)
MEss (4)
Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi Heat PRC RMB185,000,000 60% Supply of electricity and
and Power Company Limited* heat, the PRC
LERERERREERAA hE AR #185,000,0007C 60% REHE TE
China International Energy Investments BVI Ordinary US$2 100% Investment holding,
(Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong
REEREREE (BB)BRDA KBRS LER2ET 100% REERR &E
China International Energy Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% Investment holding,
(Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong
REEREREE (BB)BRDA &R ERRIET 100% REBRR &E
China Era Energy Power Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100% Qil production, the PRC
Investment Limited
REERERREEBRAA &R L@ERI0ET 100% AAEE $H
Shandong Shundong Port Services PRC RMB204,081,633 51% QOil and liquefied
Company Limited** chemical terminal,
the PRC
WRIEREBEBR AR w AR#204,081,6337C 51% R R REC I REE:
H
* Established in the PRC as a sino-foreign equity * RABRIFINEERE
enterprise
# Newly acquired during the year # RE R TR
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015

35. B =) (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 (a) R-E—RE+-_A=+—H2Z=E
December 2015 are as follows: (Continued) BB ABIFBONT: (&)
The financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year MREAEEGE M BHRE HE
ended 31 December 2015 have been examined by BDO ZE-RFtZA=T—HLEFE
Limited for the purpose of the Group's consolidated B AR M BREREEB I EE
financial statements. SEMEKMARARERZ
The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company ERFBINARAESRAENAFE
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, HASBE 2 EEBEERTESER
principally affected the results for the year or formed a EERARIDEEFEZIARRLZ
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To MEBAR AAREFRA RH#
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion HMMWB AR 2 HBERBR TR -
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities FIEMBRRNF/AEAEERITRE
at the end of the year. AETEE 5 o
Particulars of the entities de-consolidated since 2010 are (b) BE-E-TFRITEREARCEHE
as follows: BN :
Percentage of
ownership
Place of interests/
incorporation/ Paid-up share/ voting rights/ Principal activities and
Name establishment registered capital profit share place of operation
FEMKL KT
RS B L 30 B BARK ZMEXR RAEA FEEBREEHY
Indirectly held
BEEE
QHFSMI (notes 3(a)(iii) and (iv)) PRC, wholly owned HK$40,000,000 100% Exploration of mine,
foreign enterprise the PRC
("WOFE")
BB (M3 R (v)) HENEBEME 40,000,000 7 100% BRHR #H

IMFSMI (notes 3(a)(iii) and (iv))

ARG (I EE3 (@) R v))

PRC, WOFE

TEMEEELE

Not yet paid up

HARSE

100% Not yet commenced
business

100% HARGEEES
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—F—AF +—A=T—HILFE

36. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 36. FERBRERER
ERLUETYEERA (A0 THE
B60% 2 W B 2 51) 2540 AR Ak ST 4
HYBMEEREE (EHEERNA
AR AT 25T :

(a) Summarised financial information in relation to the non- (a)
controlling interests of Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi,
a 60% owned subsidiary of the Company, before intra-
group eliminations, is presented below:

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E—MmEF
FET FAET
For the year ended 31 December #HZE+-—A=+—HLFE
Revenue ez 46,805 125,824
Loss for the year REEEE (98,520) (215,381)
Total comprehensive income ENEL PNk (109,293) (221,788)
Loss allocated to non-controlling DEEFEERE R R 2 EIE
interests (39,408) (86,153)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ) FF 2 % A 3R 4 2 R AT B
interests - -
For the year ended 31 December ®HZ+-A=+—HLEE
Cash (used in)/generated from (BR)/REBEZRS
operating activities (60,070) 3,298
Cash used in investing activities AREEES s Be - (521)
Cash (used in)/generated from (AR /RamBEHrie
financing activities (1,759) 5,865
Net cash (outflows)/inflows B ORd) / mAFE (61,829) 8,642
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Current assets mENVEE 82,429 97,133
Non-current assets ERMEBEE 28,068 127,284
Current liabilities mEBE (158,887) (149,627)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - (13,887)
Net (liabilities)/assets (@) BEFE (48,390) 60,903
Accumulated non-controlling ZET TR R S
interests (19,356) 24,361

BERERREERERAT / —T—LFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—_ZE—RAF T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

36. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(b) Summarised financial information in relation to the non- (b)

controlling interests of Shandong Shundong, a 51%

owned subsidiary of the Company

eliminations, is presented below:

, before intra-group

36. FFERBEER @)

BRALRIER (RRBHEB51%L
MEB AR FER IR R R 2 I
ERBE (FHEBAQERESH

A) 25T

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—RF —E-MEF
FTHExT FHET
For the year ended 31 December HBE+_-_A=+—HLEFE
Revenue & - -
Loss for the year REEEE - -
Total comprehensive income FHEFALLEE - -
Loss allocated to non-controlling DEEFEEBRA R R 2 B
interests = -
Dividends paid to non-controlling IF) FF 22 i A 3R 2 R AT IR B
interests = -
For the year ended 31 December HE+_-_A=+—HLEE
Cash generated from operating RELEZRS
activities - -
Cash generated from investing REBREETH 2HES
activities - -
Cash generated from financing KEBMEETH 2B
activities - -
Net cash flows B D E = - -
At 31 December Wn+=—BA=+-—H
Current assets BN EE 150,707 -
Non-current assets ERBEE 427,004 -
Current liabilities BB (& (238,398) -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (25,502) -
Net assets EEFE 313,811 -
Accumulated non-controlling ESE i et
interests 153,767 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—T—AF+—A=1T—HILFE

37.

BUSINESS ACQUISITION

On 18 December 2015, the Company, an independent third
party (the “Vendor”) and the Vendor's guarantor entered
into a sale and purchase contract that the Company acquired
100% equity interest in Mission Achiever, which holds 100%
equity interest in Mid-Ocean, a company holding a capital
injection agreement with Shandong Shundong. This acquisition
was completed on the same date and total consideration for
this acquisition is cash payment of HK$185 million (based
on the exchange rate on the date when the acquisition was
completed), of which an amount of HK$47 million was paid
directly to the Vendor. The remaining amount of RMB115
million (approximately to HK$135.9 million) was paid by
the Company to Mid-Ocean as a loan and this amount was
intended to be used as capital contribution to Shandong
Shundong. Both Mission Achiever and Mid-Ocean are
investment holding companies as at 18 December 2015 and no
businesses were carried out by these two companies.

By end of December 2015, the Group made capital contribution
of RMB115,000,000 (equivalent to HK$135,851,000) to
Shandong Shundong in cash and Shandong Shundong
becomes a 51% subsidiary of the Group since then as the
Group obtained controls over Shandong Shundong. Principal
activity of Shandong Shundong is oil and liquefied chemical
terminal which is under construction. Details of this acquisition,
which stated that the total consideration was HK$185 million
translated at the estimated RMB exchange rate of 1:1.2,
have been set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18
December 2015.

The amount of HK$47 million was directly paid to the Vendor
and is recognised as other operating expenses in profit or loss.

37.

EBWIE

WZZ—-—FFE+-A+N\B K27
—BBUE=F([EFIREHZE
RAGIMLEE A4 A2 U EMission
AchieverZ 100% % # - Mission Achiever
BAFRGZ100%KE mMPEFELRE
B 7 ¥ &k - R EWBRE B EK -
Ui B8 Z 48 X {& 5185,000,000/8 T 2 IR &
MR (RREBEXE BNEERE) - &
47,000,000 T EHE M E 5 X HER A
K #115,000,0007T (4 A&135,900,000/%8
TL) AR R MR EIERERIN &K
B AERLRIER 2 TE-R=-Z—1
F+ = A+/UH - Mission Achiever &z 1%
HAEBEZERAR  ZMEAARTERAE
ESoE

RZZE—AF+-AK ANEERAILEIE
HAIR &8 ARK115,000,0007T (HHE
135,851,000/ 70) Bk IR AEE A
PEERAS L R E SR 2 42 4 - LR ER L A
RRNRHEBS 1% e 2 EBRA - ILEIE
R EE2EB AL EHMIREL IR
SE (fE2) - RIBEWBZHE (Eh#EHA
K {€185,000,000/8 LIz et A R B IE =
T2BRE)EERARRHBEA-ZS—H
F+-_A+NBZRAM-

47,000,000 TEHEMREH XN WE
ABEMEERATRBEER -

ERERREERERAT / —T—LFFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—_ZE—RAF T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

37.

BUSINESS ACQUISITION (continued)

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of Shandong

Shundong as at the date of acquisition were:

37. E¥BWE @)

(L SRTSR 2 T 38514 2 I B A MR 2
ZAFEBIMT

2015

HK$000

—E-1F

F#ExT

Property, plant and equipment (note 14) M- RE R & (MiE14) 312,782

Intangible assets (note 17) mEEE (MFE17) 116,602

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIE - 12e R E M EWFKRIA 12,149

Cash and bank balances e RRITEH 136,178

Other payables and accruals H M FE S R8I FE AT FUE (234,663)

Amount due to non-controlling shareholder JE A IR AR IR SR SR8 (3,735)

Deferred tax liabilities (note 29) FEFEEEE (M 5E29) (25,502)

313,811

Non-controlling interests (49%) FEE AR I TR A 53 (49 %) (153,767)

Net identified assets acquired Fr i i 2 AT 38 Rl & B R A 160,044
The fair value of consideration transfer: HEREB A TE:

Cash Re 135,851

Gain from bargain purchase HEBE 2 WS (24,193)

Fair value of other receivables amounted to HK$334,000. The
gross amount of these receivables is HK$334,000. None of
these receivables have been impaired and it is expected that the
full contractual amounts can be collected.

Gain from bargain purchase arose in the acquisition because
the Group obtained some intangible assets arising from the
business combination.

The Group has elected to measure non-controlling interests

in this acquisition at proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZ—T—AF+—A=1T—HILFE

37.

38.

BUSINESS ACQUISITION (continued)

Since the acquisition date, no revenue and no profit or loss was
contributed by Shandong Shundong to Group’s revenue and
profit or loss as the oil and liquefied chemical terminal is under
construction. Had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2015,
the Group revenue and loss would have been HK$87,480,000
and HK$539,716,000 respectively. This pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future performance.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease falling
due as follows:

37.

38.

ERUWE @)

BUHEHEBLASR - A B OB BB (L T &
WEEERE  LEIER W ERANEE 2 W
MR E IR RBE - WkEEE
ER_ZT—RAF—A—B¥E AEEZ
U= & B 184 2 5 /587,480,000 7T &
539,716,000/8 7T ° s HE B BHE A7 A
BoANRBAEERBREESEER
—E-AF—A—HEXZEBERLTAER
BERNKEREEES N TBRIERE R
RN 2 T8

REBENERE
R-Z—RFT-A=+—0 ALER

THIEHAER 2 NI BHELEBN 2K
T DEENFRAEMNT

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E—RF —E—uF

FHET FEIT

Within one year —F R 3,469 1,017
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFRF (REEEMSE) 6,440 1,854
After five years hFE 542 1,963
10,451 4,834

The Group leases certain leasehold land and buildings and
equipment under operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of three months to twenty years (2014: one to twenty
years), with an option to renew the lease and renegotiate the
terms at expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed between
the Group and respective landlords/lessors. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

AEBERBECEROBRETHE L MR
BFUREH ZEH0ONTEE—FE
ZHF(ZE—EF:—FE2EZ+F) A
REEESAE@MELBEE HHEAHL
FEEs BRREERREAOKER-
ZERHTRERAREE -

ERERREERERAT / —T—LFFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

39. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

39. EXRRHMAE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-RE —Z—OF
THET FHEIT
Capital commitments for acquisition of — UHEYIZE - WiE N2 2 & AR
property, plant and equipment 752 791
Capital commitments for construction i MR T i R 2 5L
cost of oil and liquefied chemical PR 2 B AR A
terminal 587,704 -
Other commitments in respect of HEEE RIFIE 2 HMFE
administrative fees and training fees 50,622 50,986
639,078 51,777
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BEALXRS

Apart from the balances and transactions with related parties
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had

the following transactions with its related parties during the ALTHENTRS:
year:
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEBABZHE

Included in employee costs are key management personnel
compensation (including directors” emoluments) and comprises
the following categories:

PREA TSR M AR D PR 2 R K HL
BALTZRBIN FR AEBERERE

T2EERABZAE(BREEMNE)
SREABIAA BHELTER:

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-FF —E—mF

FET FAT

Short-term employee benefits EHEB R 2,301 1,671
Contribution to retirement benefit BRRE R FHEl 2 R

scheme 18 -

2,319 1,671
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ=—Z—AF+-A=1+—HILFE

41. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 4. ROBE 2N BEERME
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY EEHME
2015 2014
—E-AF —Z-|mF
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REE AT E FHAE AFE
TER TER TET TET
Financial assets MEEE
Loan and receivables ER R EYRIE
— Cash at banks and in hand -BIIEGRFERS 238,260 238,260 76,043 76,043
- Pledged bank deposits —-BEBRTER 22 22 1,003 1,003
- Trade and bills receivables -ERESRERER 34,085 34,085 36,564 36,564
- Other receivables — B th YR 4,295 4,295 3,935 3,935
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABR HBEE
profit or loss 24,818 24,818 - -
301,480 301,480 117,545 117,545
Financial liabilities B8R
Financial liabilities measured REEKAFEZHEAE
at amortised cost
- Trade payables -ENES5EE 11,172 11,172 17,907 17,907
- Other payables and accruals — Ef JE 9 5RO IR JE R B 383,121 383,121 143,290 143,290
— Amounts due to non-controlling — NI BRI R FRIE
shareholder 20,932 20,932 13,887 13,887
— Bank borrowings —RITHEK 41,300 41,300 43,400 43,400
— Other borrowings —H b fER 42,505 42,505 41,971 41,971
- Convertible bonds — AR ES 141,450 141,450 - -
640,480 640,480 260,455 260,455
The Group’s financial instruments not measured at fair value AEEWHEZATFEFECLHBITES Tﬁ
include cash at banks and in hand, pledged bank deposits, RITHEFRFERS SERPRITER - JE
trade, bills and other receivables, trade payables, other payables WE 58RI - RN R 1R K H b JE U 5118
and accruals, bank borrowings, other borrowings and amounts FERTE 5 BR1E - HAb B I8 M EET K
due to non-controlling shareholders. Due to their short term WA R SRAT A R B 8 3R R JE A 3 4% Hxﬂx
nature, the carrying value of cash at bank and in hand, pledged REIE- EBE/:\ﬁE EAME A RITHETT
bank deposits, trade, bills and other receivables, trade payables, EFERe BERROTER -ERES
other payables and accruals and bank borrowings approximates BRI B E R R H A B RIE - BT E
fair value. S 0RIE - H M FE T FRIB R EETRIB IR 1T

fERZREEEE N FEMES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—_ZE—RAF T+ -_A=T—HBILFE

41. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 41. BOBE D e UKEERME
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY SEME &)
(Continued)
The fair value of other borrowings, convertible bonds and BWEMS  EMER JRRES KE
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders for disclosure IR R R IB 2 A E T ERRMIEE
purposes has been determined using discounted cash flow EREAET IRAFESRPHIER
models and is classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. F=H o BREAHBEEE AU RBEK
Significant inputs include the discount rate used to reflect the ARAEEEERR 2R E-

credit risks of the borrowers or the Group.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TERIIIERFEZERE D 2R A FEET

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: EZEBMIEST:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F—H: HREESABEZERMIZME
identical assets or liabilities; (REEHARE)

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level FoH BASREUIN AIREESA
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either EEZE (AMER) kHEZE (BERB
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from THEIBRSHZBAE &
prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on FH WIHEBREATBERMISHEIEEL 2
observable market data (unobservable inputs). BESBEGAEB(TAERE

INEDE
2015
—E-AfE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E-4 B/ E=H @t
TR Tz TR TEx
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BRAFEHABBZHKEE
profit or loss
— Listed equity investments —EMRARE 24,818 - - 24,818
2014
—Z-ME
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EF— EF-8 F=H B
THT THT FET FiEx

Financial assets at fair value through ~ BEAFEFABBZHKEE
profit or loss
— Listed equity investments —EmRARE - - - -

There were no transfers between levels during the year. FANESH 2 FWEEITERER-
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42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group does not have written financial risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors meets
periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to manage
the Group’s exposure to credit risk, market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk.
Generally, the Group employs conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group's exposure to market risk is kept at a
minimum level. The Group has not used any derivatives or other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group's
exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit
to customers in the ordinary course of its operations and
its investing activities.

The carrying amounts of these financial assets presented
in the statement of financial position are net of
impairment losses, if any. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties, performing ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial conditions of its debtors and tightly
monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances on
an ongoing basis. In addition, management monitors
and reviews the recoverable amount of the receivables
individually or collectively at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In respect of trade and other
receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed
on all debtors requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the debtors’ past history
of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific
to the debtors as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtors operate. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from its customer. The
Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor.

42.

BEERER

A 8% [0 488 1 7T & T A VR e i T IR
Eol-AM EFEE@EHETER D
I R BRI R e E R AR BAAE 2 EER
@ misER (RIEIMNERR RFXER)
ERnBEeRB - —RM 5 ARESH
HERERRA —ERZ ZEE (LM
S B AGE 2 T 5 B R 4 4 FE AR B K
AEEYEEREMITETAREMTA
ETER ARBEYEFSARBTIILES
BMTANEESERZ-

(a) FERB

EERREEMIAEZHT T RE
BOTEREMIAKRETZE
EMalIBAEERZMBER A
B ARBZEERREIERER
HARXGRAERRETRTEFPZ
FEREREXRRK-

ZEMBEENTBRARKRESNZ
FREECHMBREBR(ME) -
AEBEBREHLEEF T HH
BEBAZHBRRETHEREE
Al A R E R B ENEOE 2R
B RAREREEMAEZES
[ B o AN SR B BR AR A RE HE R K
ClE MR- LN EREENE
HEHHERN R AR EE R E
WeskTE z FT il m 58 RER LT AT
Wm BRI R 2 BERR - 5t
FE W E 5 R T8 I H & MR IR T
FOHRMBERETEREE®ELZ
BB AL GETERNEEE - 1t
FHE T2 HEB AT
ZEFA S RBR Z BN A
ZREMBAZERE R R EH AP
BZEBERRZEMN - —RME
AEBEYEERFFRGEMR K
SEEHZEERRIBEZZEY
AZBERIERFE

ERERREERERAT / —T—LFFRH

163



164

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7 Bt o

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ—ZE—hAF T -_A=1T—HBILFE

42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Default risk of the industry in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. As at 31 December 2015, the Group has a
certain concentration of credit risk as 63% (2014: 38%)
and 84% (2014: 71%) of total receivables was due from
the Group's largest trade debtor and the three largest
trade debtors respectively.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets,
which comprise pledged bank deposits and cash at
banks and in hand, is also limited because almost all the
Group's cash at banks and in hand are deposited with
major banks located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

As the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy counterparties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk
to a desirable level.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there is no financial
guarantees issued by the Group.
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EERB &)
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F:38% ) M84% (—ZT—PWF:
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cContinued) 42. BIEERER (&)

Sales and expenses of the Group are mostly in US$ and
RMB. Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from
certain of the Group's cash and bank balances which are
denominated in US$. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency
risk. The Group reviews its foreign currency exposures
regularly and does not consider its foreign exchange risk
to be significant.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
reporting date to foreign currency risk from the above
stated items denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of relevant group companies.

(b) Foreign currency risk (b) HMEE [E B

AEBZHERAXTEUETR
ARMEFIE < SMER B 2K B A& B
UNETINEZE TRE RRITHE
roREBYRERTESRT A
S ESIME LB o AR B E B iR A
HOMNE R B - 3037 A H SN E R R I
TEKX-

TREANNNHE R AL LR
BREBEBE AR ZNEEE SN
ZERFEZSNE R o

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$’000
—E—FF —E-MEF
TER AT
Cash and cash equivalents EETIE2RE KR
denominated in US$ 315 431

By assessing foreign currency risk on cash and bank
balances, the effect arising from a reasonably possible
change in the exchange rates of HK$ against US$ in the
next twelve months was not material to the loss for the
year and accumulated losses at each of the reporting
date, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

RIHRERBITEFZINER
B Y RRAAEEMEERTT
BORET_EABTHETZE
EAENREPEL T EHTN
ZERRERERRZ RETBEY
REKX-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 B Z =%

42.

(c)

i e Bl BRI L

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) ~ 42. W EKEE (&)
Interest rate risk (c) F=EmEb
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for changes & B A R R B FTARYE 2 B R B
in interest rates relates primarily to the Group's floating GEEEAEE T EERERH-
interest rate borrowings. The Group has not used any Zﬁ’ilfﬂiﬁ]&ﬂmﬂia@ﬂﬂ:
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest B @ b o ERE Y
rate risk. However, management monitors interest rate JR\ Bz 3 1T BE Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest B K & R g e
rate exposure should the need arise.
The following table indicates the approximate change TRINEAEE 2 BRATSHEER
in the Group's loss after income tax and accumulated REFAEFEEANESERE
losses in response to reasonably possible changes in (Kglﬁf‘i&iaﬁﬂ%ﬁikﬂ B2 )
the interest rate, to which the Group has significant i 2 4 2 B A &
exposure at the reporting date.
2015 2014
—E-Rf —mF
Effect on Effect on
loss after loss after
income tax income tax
Increase/ and Increase/ and
(decrease) in  accumulated (decrease) in accumulated
interest rate losses interest rate losses
HKS$'000 HK$'000
HRmREH% HRMERE
AELH/ FERRT Fl& 7/ BERZEH
(TH) FEz¥E (k&) FRzy2
TER T
Cash at banks RITRE 0.1% 17 0.1% 58
Cash at banks RITRE (0.1%) (117) (0.1%) (58)

The sensitivity analysis above is determined assuming
that the change in interest rate had occurred at the
reporting date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 0.1% increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.
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42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk
in respect of settlement of its financial obligations, its
cash flow management as well as potential adverse
outcome on the Songliao Contract and the litigation
as described in note 44(c). As mentioned in note 3(a)
(i), the Group’s ability to meet its financial obligations
when they fall due is dependent upon the sustainability
of the cash flow forecast with underlying assumptions.
Management of the Group is satisfied that the Group
will be able to meet in full their financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

The Group maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents assessed as adequate by management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies
on internally generated funding and borrowings as
significant sources of liquidity.

42.

KRR ER &)

(d)
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42. BERAKRER &)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) d) "BESEKR &)
The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company's REERKRRRBEES L MEEAIE
financial liabilities as at the reporting dates, based RERHEEH Y BaERHA
on the contractual undiscounted payments, were as BRAT
follows:
2015
ZZ-5f
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 6 months or 6 to 1to
amount cash flow  on demand 12 months 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERMERE AEANAR
FHE RERELE RER ARE+=fEA —ZnF
TET TR TET TET TET
Trade payables ERESRE 11,172 11,172 11,172 = =
Other payables and accruals ~ EH & SR8 K Bt 308 383,121 383,121 383,121 = =
Amounts due to non- FEFEERR AR R 0B
controlling shareholder 20,932 20,932 20,932 - -
Bank borrowings RITER 41,300 41,300 41,300
Other borrowings HifE 42,505 43,544 29,972 - 13,572
Convertible bonds AR ES 141,450 235,000 - 15,000 220,000
640,480 735,069 486,497 15,000 233,572
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cContinued) 42. BIEERER (&)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) "BELE (&)
2014
—mE
Total
contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted 6 months or 6 to 110
amount cash flow on demand 12 months 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHRMERER NEANAR
FEE BerREgE BBk AE+=fA —ERF
FHL FHT FHL FHL FHL
Trade payables BB SR 17,907 17,907 17,907 - -
Other payables and accruals — E & 708 R 5T 4 143,290 143,290 143,290 - -
Amounts due to non- FETFE 2 AR R R 08
controlling shareholder 13,887 17,138 - - 17,138
Bank borrowings BITER 43,400 48,759 - 48,759 -
Other borrowings HipfER 41,971 46,819 - - 46,819
260,455 273,913 161,197 48,759 63,957
43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 43. EXEHE

The Group's objectives when managing capital are: REEZERERBERR:

(a) To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going (a) REAEE G N EBIERFBEK
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and ENR B RRE A R E R R
benefits for stakeholders; Gy

(b)  To support the Group's stability and growth; and (b) XBEASEREEEERER &

(0 To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the (0 7%$% REERUZERARRE
Group's risk management capability. 2ge
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43,

44,

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group. The Group currently does not
adopt any formal dividend policy. Management regards total
equity less equity component of convertible bond as capital, for
capital management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2015 amounted to approximately HK$224,503,000
(2014: HK$449,520,000), which management considers as
optimal having considered the projected capital expenditures
and the forecast strategic investment opportunities.

LITIGATIONS
(@) Transfer of the exploration licence

Details of litigations are set out in notes 3(a)(iii) and 3(a)

(iv).

(b) Injunction order to the holder of CB6
and CB7

Details of litigations are set out in note 3(a)(i).
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Kai Group Lingshi

In November 2015, two individuals filed the civil writs to
the People’s Court of Taiyuan City Xiaodian District (&
BN ERARER) (the “Taiyuan Court”) separately
that as the non-controlling shareholder of Shanxi
Zhong Kai Group Lingshi failed to repay for the loans
of RMB4.5 million (equivalent to HK$5.3 million) lent
by these individuals to the non-controlling shareholder
of Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi. It was stated in the
writs that these individuals considered Shanxi Zhong Kai
Group Lingshi is one of the three companies controlled
by the non-controlling shareholder (i.e. borrower) and
thus Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi is identified as one
of the defendants by these individuals.

In December 2015, the Taiyuan Court judged that the
bank accounts of all defendants in these writs and
certain properties of other defendants to be frozen
during the legal proceedings including certain bank
accounts of Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi. The
frozen bank balance was approximately RMB500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$590,000). As at the
date of the approval of the financial statements, the
legal proceedings are still in progress.

In March 2016, the Group has sought legal opinion in
respect of the civil writs. The legal adviser opined that as
Shanxi Zhong Kai Group Lingshi (i) has never authorised
nor involved in the loan agreements; (ii) has not issued
any guarantee document; and (iii) did not receive any
money through its bank accounts in respect of these
loans, these loans are not related to Shanxi Zhong Kai
Group Lingshi, it is likely that Shanxi Zhong Kai Group
Lingshi will have no liabilities in respect of these loans.
Based on these, no provision is considered necessary by
the Group accordingly.

44. LITIGATIONS (continued) 44, R (&)
(c) Frozen bank accounts of Shanxi Zhong () RELAFHNEESE
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45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 45. HEBHEREIE

As described in note 1, on 30 December 2015, the Group W IR R = FE—RAF+=A=+
entered into the sale and purchase agreement with the H AEFEEE T EERE BHEH
Purchaser, pursuant to which the Purchaser has conditionally CEEH MRS REMAER D B (S EH
agreed to acquire and the Group has conditionally agreed RIELEFE OB ITROEFEET
to sell the issued shares and the sale loan of Sunlight Rise KABA1,500,000/8 e RZZE—RFE=H
at a consideration of HK$1,500,000. On 29 March 2016, a ZthB AEE BEFRERAGIVEES
supplemental agreement to the sale and purchase agreement BEZETHE B AER - EHRER
was entered into by the Group, the Purchaser and the AEEEZERZEESHE Y SEE L
guarantors, pursuant to which the Group, the Purchaser and HEHEEZ " T—NENLA=1TH A
the guarantors have mutually agreed in writing to extend BRI GEAMERRZA BAARKE
the long stop date of the sale and purchase agreement to 30 RERERIRRAD FBENERZRI
September 2016. As at the date of the authorisation for issue HEESHELER NGHETZZHN
of the consolidated financial statements, save for the passing BEEMEE N Z2HMAEREHERER-

by the shareholders of the Company at the extra-ordinary
general meeting the necessary resolutions to approve the sale
and purchase agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, the other conditions precedent under the sale and
purchase agreement have been fulfilled.

46. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 46. BEMBE® K
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December HEZZ—RF+A=1+—"8BI1LtFE2Z
2015 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of R RER_E—ARNFNA-+HHLK
directors on 25 April 2016. EEgREMEBEM-
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